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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBUC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-4501 1-800-852.3345 Ext 4501

Fax:603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dbhs.Db.gev

November 10, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source Amendment of an existing contract with JSI Research &
Training Institute, Inc. (VC #161611), Bow, NH, to expand the Public Health Professional Support
Services to include technical support for the viral hepatitis elimination program, by increasing the
price limitation by $216,154 from $3,081,735 to $3,297,889 with no change to the contract
completion date of December 31, 2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 22,2021, item
#35, as amerxled with Governor and Council approval on June 1, 2022, Item #27A.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is expanding the range of Public
Health Professional Support Services provided by the Contractor to include temporary staff to
support the Viral Hepatitis Surveillance and Prevention program. The original agreement was
procured through the competitive bidding process. Therefore, per MOP 150, this action must be
identified as sole source. The Contractor is providing qualified and trained temporary staff to the
Department currently and has the capacity to provide additional temporary, technical support staff.

The Viral Hepatitis Surveillance and Prevention program is dedicated to preventing and
controlling viral hepatitis. The Contractor will develop and conduct a Viral Hepatitis Srluational
Analysis in order to provide an evidence-informed basis for formuiating the strategic direction of
the five (5) year Viral Hepatitis Elimination Plan, prepare the five (5) year Viral Hepatitis
Elimination Plan to establish a clear vision on how to reverse the rates of viral hepatitis, prevent
new infections, and improve linkage to care services. In addition, the Contractor will plan and
design a New Hampshire Outbreak Detection Response Plan (NHODRP) to identify and respond
to outbreaks of hepatitis A. B, and C infections, as well as coordinate with the Tristate Viral
Hepatitis Elimination group to prevent and control viral hepatitis by monitoring viral hepatitis
disease trends, detecting and responding to viral hepatitis outbreaks, advancing viral hepatitis
research, and increasing public awareness of viral hepatitis. .

"Hie Department ofHealth and Ruman Services'Mistioft i$ to join communitits and fomiUes
in providing opportuniliea for citizeru to achieve health and independence.
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■■ t? He^titls is an inflammation of the liver most often cauwd.by a virus. In the US;- the mostr;.u:.:;i:
comrhon ty^ of viral hepatitis are hepatitis A. B. and C. While each.type can produce similar - -
symptoms; each hepatitis virus affects the liver differently, has different routes of transmission:
and infection, arid: typically affecte different populations.V Fortunately, effective vaccines are-H-^d^ pv
available to help r^>fent hepatitis A and hepatitis 8. Although no vaccine is avaiiat>le forhepatitis:
C. Itfersaving trea^ent can cure, the vinjs. Hepatitis C virus is the mo^;common blood borne.
p^ogen in the US leading to substantial sickn^ and death.. . d.

.  ' A principal goal of the Department's Integrated Viral Hepatitis Surveillance and Preventionrrt ; .
program is to eliminate viral hepatitis as a public health threat by 2030. TNs means reducing the -
numt)er of new hepatitis B arKi hepatitis C cases by 90%, and related deaths by 65%, through
outbreak detection and response, characterizing disease burden, and monitoring progress in
achieving public health goals. The Contractor will work with federal, state, and community
partners as well as health care systems artd providers to increase access to viral hepatitis
prevention, diagnosis, and treatment services for aQ populations. , . j

The Department will continue to rhonitor contracted services to ensure:
• A minimum of 90% of all Department requests for high-priority consultation services

are responded to within twenty-four (24) hours; arxl
• A minimum of 90% of an Department requests for high-priority technical assistance. .

are responded to within twe^-four (24) hours.
Should the Govemor and Coundl not authorize this request, the Department may not be

property prepared to meet the program's mission to reverse the rates of individuals with viral
hepatitis, prevent new infections, improve care arwi treatment, or respond to outbreaks. Viral
hepatitis, a disease that is t)oth preveritable and curable, will remain a costly and significant public
health threat that puts infected individuals at an irKreased risk for serious disease and death.

Area served: Statewide

Federal Funds:Source of Assistance Listing Number. (ALN) 93.270, FAIN
NU51PS005173.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General and
Other Funds win not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.
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Lori A. Shibinette
Ivr'Commis^orier.
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aS-»f0401S10-743<HEAlT>l AND SOaAlSCI(ViaS.DCrT OF HEALTH ANOHUMWISVltfltt:
^ ; PUHK HEALTH oiv.CNVMbNMCHTALnnUC HEALTH

CTCM nj>70 FAM NUUEH0013S7-M LOOK

:.f.' ..

yJl.
.• - - -• .. , V.,- ;

StMtFbcairwr Oan/AoMini dMsTWt • lobNwnbw. CurrmBudftt MOMMAfoCrMM RMtMdBudtcl

.  2022 . 102-500731 ■ Contncts for Prof Svc . 900*1000 S1SJ300 -  - SO S1S.000

•  ' 2023 102-S0073I Contnets for Prec 5vc 900*1000 .  SIS.OCO SO S1S.OOO

■*: . 2024 I02-S00731 . Certtr»ets for Pret Swc 90041000 SIS.000 -  'SO $15,000

202S 102-500731 ContrvcU for Prof Svc 900*1000 $15,000 so 515.000

1  • :|| ^ ir ^ ■ ' *- Sutuai •  $*0,000 •  SO SOLOOO

•. . c:-A.V

" 0S-»S.9ft«lSlft-Sm HEALTH ANO SOOAL SERVKZS, OCTT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HKS:
OMSION OF PUmC HEALTH, EUREAU OF PUEUC HEALTH PROTECnON, FOOD nOTEOION

m 6CNCML FUNDS, EM OTHER FUNOS

SttMFfoairMr Oan/ActeyrR -  OmiTW* lebNumbw OvTOTt BudfM ■ RiCTMMA'MIRBM R««iM4BHdEM

2022 102-500731 Centrscts for Pret SVC 90000022 S7J00 .  $0 S7,500

2023 102-500731 CorrtTRCU for Prof Svc ' 90000024 S15.000 $0 S1S.OOO

2024 102-500731 Contrsetsfer Prof Svc 90000024 SIS.OOO so Sis.ooo

2025 102-500731 CentivcUfor ProiSvc 90000024 SlS.000 so Sis.000
SrtWMf SS2.S00 so SS2,S00

OS-ES-EO-tOlSlO-7964, HEALTH ANO SOOAL SERVKES, OCPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUUK HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUSUC HEALTH PROTECTKM, LEAD FROTECTKM

CFOA 9Sa»7 FAIN NUEZEHOOUST UQK FEDERAL FUNDS

SOMFbolTMr dns/AKBURl akHTRN MBNipnbM Curr«MBuO|tl tnerm%*/Ooumm RovtoodBwdBM
2022 102-500731 Contncts for Prof Sve 90034000 S2S.333 SO S26333

2023 102-500731 CentrKU for Prof Svc 90036000 $65,000 SO $65,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prof Svc 90036000 SSS.OOC SO $65,000

2025 102-500731 Contract* for Prof Svc 90036TO0 $32,500 SO $32,500

SoOtetal Si9o,m SO

OS-tS-W-mSlO-TMA, HEALTH ANO SOOAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTXM. LEAD PROTEOXW PPG

CFDA«B.Ca5 FAMBGOOAOOTn lOOKFEOERAL

StaM FlKal Vaar OwF/Accotint Cla»Tltfo JobNumBtr Currtnl BuOfft incrMM/DfcraM* RavMBydfM

2022 102-500731 Contract* for Prof Svc 90030022 ioo.no $0 $60,730

2023 102-500731 Contract* for Prof Svc 90036022 $62,165 $0 $62,165

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prof Svc 90039022 $55,734 $0 $55.73*

2025 102-500731 Contract* for PiOf Svc 90039022 ' ■ $27467 $0 $27467

SwBCMDf M4«4» so S24«496

OS.9S.BD401Slfr.S3Bl. HEALTH ANO SOOAL SERVKES, DEPT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVS. HKS:
DMSION OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUSUC HEALTH PRCTTEOION. RAOFOLOQCAL HEALTH

ASSESSMENT, CFDA SBDU FAM OOimw lOOK FEDERAL

Stat* FbcN Vtor Okn/Account OanTltlt lob Numbtr Ciprtnt Budftl mcrono/OtJWa RavisadBudfat

2022 102-500731 Contract* lor PrOf Svc 90035100 $60,000 SO S60.000

2023 102-500731 Corrtract* lor PrOf Svc 90035100 $40,000 SO $40400

2024 102-500731 Contract* for Prof Svc 90035100 $40,000 so $40,000

2025 102-500731 Contract* for Prof Svc 90035100 $20,000 so $20,000

■HRU.'-: r SuOteui smooe so $160,000

OS4S404Q3S10.U13. HEALTH ANO SOOAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HKS:
DMSION OF PUBLK HEALTH, BUREAU OF EMERGENCT PREPAREDNESS $. RESPONSE, HQSPfTAL

PREPAREDNESS, CFEM fSJS9 FAM USREPIBOSBO lOOH FEDERAL '

Stata FHcal Taar Clan/Account OanTttfo JobNumb«r CurraiRBudfat incraaM/DactaaM Ravbad Budfai
2022 102-500731 Contract* for Protram Sarvlcai 90077700 510,000 SO $10,000

2023 074-S005» Grants for Pub Asit and R«Utf 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
2024 074-Se05<9 Grant* for Pub Aut attd Rabaf 90077700 $20400 so $20400 .  ..

2025 074-5005S9 Grants for Pub Asst attd Rallaf 90077700

Subtotal

$10400

ssaooe
so

so

$10400

- $54000 ■■-rr''"*

OS4S4fr403S10.U14. HEALTH AffO SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF ICALTH AF«> HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DMSION OF PUBUC HEALTH BUREAU OF EMERCENCT PREPAREDNESS fr RESPONSE. PH

'  ' EMERGENCT PREPAREDNESS. CCOA 93Dt9 FAM NUSOTPBZlOtt ..
C3KFEDERAL 37HGENERAL' ..7;'.. . '

stata FbcM Taar Oan/AccauM OanTWa lobNunkbar CurraiN Budfai biciaasa/Dacriaia Ravlatd Budfat
2022 07*-5005«9 Grants for Pub Asst ind RaUtf 90077410 $67426 •  SO $67426
2023 074-5005S9 Grant* for Pub Asst and RaBtf 90077410 SllS.OOO SO $115,000

2024 074-500S<9 Grants lor Pub Asst artd RaHcf . 90077410 $115,000 so $115,000

2025 074-5005B9 GtarRs for Pub l^t and Rallaf 90077410 $57400 so • $57400
■P^SS .  Subtotal $3540Z< -i-SO r $354026

|SW»FbOlVMr|0

HEALTH ANO SOOAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEMTH ANO HUMAN SVS, HHS:

HEALTH BUREAU OF INKCnOUS DISEASC COFOROL. ARP IMMUNIZATION.
CF0AB3JM FAMN^WZZSBS^iflCKFpaCRAL-]. ''
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■ •■■ ■ ■ /c.;- state .of New Hampshire
Depaitment:bf Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract Is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or . "Department") ahd JSI
Research & Training Institute, Inc. ("the Contractor"). . . . : . - .

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council . .
on December 22, 2021 (Item #35), as artiended on June 1, 2022 (Item #27A), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from.the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend asfoilows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.6, Account Number, to read:

05-95-90-902510-5170
05-95-90-901510-7426
05-95-90-901510-5390
05-95-90-901510-7964
05-95-90-901510-7964
05-95-90-901510-5391
05-95-90-903510-1113
05-95-90-903510-1114
05-95-90-902510-2496
05-95-90-902510-5178
05-95-90-902510-2229
05-95-90-902510-7536.
05-95-90-903010-1901

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,297,889

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Viral Hepatitis Surveillance and Prevention,
Paragraphs 1.4.10. through 1.4.33. to read:

1.4.10. Viral Hepatitis Surveillance and Prevention: The Contractor shall provide a range of ' .
viral hepatitis prevention: and surveillance services in collaboration with the New
Hampshire Bureau of Infectious Disease Control (BIDC), the Maine Centers for Disease " .
Control (ME CDC), and the Vermont Department of Health (VT DOH) (collectively herein
referred to as the Tristate Viral Hepatitis Steering Committee"), which must include but . . . ,

. • •=- 'is^not limited to: ^ V •" ••v-v - ;

1.4.10.1. Developing and conducting, in consultation with the Tristate Viral Hepatitis • .
Steering Committee, a Tristate Viral Hepatitis Situational Analysis. (tVHSA)
within six (6) months of the G&C approval date of this Amendment #2 that: ' - ^

^ L- 4 mustinclude:'?-7v - ■'

■  ■.1-4.10.1.1. ^-pise^epidemioloigy; , ■
.'■■"■1 -4;10.1.2. * 7A desOTptioh of existing assete; ^^'^-^-^ fj - /—

t.-y -ar.iir- tx. -a-.t • -.v.- -ity?

"V i JSf Research & TraihitwYlhstiftrteVlricy' Initial^■  • . ...n. •: , 11/10/202*
rr-^ii'-RFA.2022.DPHS4)5:PUBUC-01-A02 V'Page?J.rof 9V Date ^

" ■ ' '■■■ •
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1.4,10.1:3. s :|A healthcare systems needs-assessment of:
- -..I,.

••• - -

1.4.10:1.3.1. Current resource gaps; - . ^

1.4.10.1.3.2. Projected future changes to the current
landscape; and

1.4.10.1.3.3. A description of the governance roles related
to viral hepatitis and disease prevention.

1.4.11. The Contractor shall:

1.4.11.1. Describe the current state of viral hepatitis programs and services within the .
Tristate area;

1.4.11.2. Identify local assets and determine resource gaps and areas that need to be
strengthened;

1.4.11.3. Research and incorporate relevant contextual data, Including but not limited
to census data and literature reviews;

1.4.11.4. Review de-identified surveillance data provided by the Tristate Viral Hepatitis
Steering Committee to integrate a Tristate epidemiological overview and
profile into the tVHSA that must include, but Is not limited to:

1.4.11.4.1. Prevalence.

1.4.11.4.2. Incidence.

1.4.11.4.3. Treatment initiation.

1.4.11.4.4. Sustained viremic response (SVR12) rate.

1.4.11.4.5. Unmet need data by:

1.4.11.4.5.1. Age;

1.4.11.4.5.2. Gender;

1.4.11.4.5.3. Race/ethnicity;

1.4.11.4.5.4. Geographic area; and

1.4.11.4.5.5. Transmission risk factor(s).

1.4.11.5. Conduct a descriptive trend analysis of In hepatitis C (HCV) and associated
comorbidities since 2014, including state and regional disparities in
prevalence, screening, testing, and treatment initiation.

1.4.12. The Contractor shall review and incorporate community population estimates into the
tVHSA development process including, but not limited to:

1.4.12.1. The number of Individuals diagnosed and living with HCV within each state.

1.4.12.2. The number of Individuals treated for HCV within each state.

T.4.12.3. A description-of individuals at-risk for HCV Infection.
j. « j.: 1.4.12.4. A description of the health needs of ^e population, including actual and

potential sources of inequity, and health needs specific to populations at
greater risk of infection.
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describe'exjstlng as^ts to Identify arid a'ssessxiifreht resourcerr^i?;^^
needs, gaps, and barriersTelated to prevention, diagnosis; and treatment; and provide
recommendations to address the gaps. Assets may include:; • ' !

1.4,13.1. Syringe Service Programs. ,

.1.4.13.2. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Prograrns. .

.  1.4.13.3. Hepatitis Testing Sites.

1.4.13.4. Hepatitis A and B. Vaccine sites. -

1.4.13.5. All assets related to prevention (primary, secondary, and tertiary levels),
diagnosis, and treatment.

1.4.14. The Contractor shall identify the five (5) healthcare systems in New Hampshire, Maine,
and Vermont with the highest volume of hepatitis 0 testing, and must:

1.4.14.1. Conduct a needs assessment of those healthcare systems; and

1.4.14.2. Provide feedback to the Department, with recommendations to improve
routine hepatitis C and hepatitis B testing.

1.4.15. The Contractor shall describe the current governance roles related to viral hepatitis,
including:

1.4.15.1. A description of governance and organizational structures related to viral
hepatitis within Maine, Vermont, and New Hampshire, which may present
barriers and opportunities to testing, treatment or surveillance;

1.4.15.2. An overview of the processes of each states' policies and legislation
formulation related to viral hepatitis and disease legislation; and

1.4.15.3. A description of key contributors to policy formulation.

1.4.16. the Contractor shall identify potential and existing overlaps between viral hepatitis
prevention, diagnosis, and treatment services, and other healthcare system and/or
disease-specific strategies and plans including, but not limited to syndemic approach,
i.e.: HIV. The Contractor shall make clear references to other relevant policies or plans,
which may include, but are not limited to:

1.4.16.1. Overlapping priority populations.

1.4.16.2. Overlapping strategies or shared/similar interventions and priority action
areas.

1.4.16.3. Overlapping workforce development needs.

1.4j6.4. Overlapping funding mechanisms.

1.4.17. The Contractor shall, in consultation with the Tristate Viral Hepatitis Steering Committee,
develop a Five (5) Year .Tristate Viral Hepatitis Elimination Plan (tVHEP) including a
feview/feedback/revision cycle within one (1) month of the G&C approval date of this

•  Amendment #2, that must include: : c . v,'.-. ..

.. w 11.4^-17.1. Viral Hepatitis'Situational Analysis as described in Section.1.4.10.1.

i.4;l7!2. Five (5) year Goals, Objectives, and Outcome Measures that niust: '..; :
;  1.4.17.2.1. Align with the Federal Division of Viral Hepatitis: 2025

—-'Strategic ■ Plan-^r-.-^available .online:-_.-ri-.{at:.
-7'---- ' rhttps://www.cdc.Qov/hepatitis/pdfs/DVH-StrateqicPlari2026^"

•• ■.•:7-7'7i?2025.Ddf: • • •••-••: : y' ;:'l?^2025.Pdf: '
yy: 1.4.:17:2.2;{;":;?{:;Be^oun on .data^,co|lect€^ during theCf^SA tarid.
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JSI Re^^[&r7raningilnstit^^
RFA-2022-PPHS^5-P.UBLIC-01-A02

•  ... • - •• ..■.-..-JU.rs.' --r •> i-i'J.'yr s.' ri.-!- ■
•  -• T fc. ccri'.v • r ■ - -



—jtCv. ■: •"it--. • -«JT .-■•j-h-z I/-' •'■iiaij. u-J
•  """ T.." 'ir.rr;

♦• OocuSlgn En^ope !D: E189ApCP:AbB7-4807-B9qE-4BB3F122FB13j- - v
-r-;

Vi-:"
'.v. 'i

m
'•iV

&  , —I ssii' .. ■.
Ki»-T,r' «.-■ fv-' : :t -

•.V. •--

ffcj \\r • .rr •

y-A J

_ 1

'o ■ :•. •

•j . nr

■V / .Y •-.-

n.:/..

±:i:-

.A.:v...-. . '.v.

as well as'6f5ideiTil6ioglcal data. " "^^7-"
1.4.17.2.3; Integrate health equity ai^ancement by following the CDC .

SMARTIE principles . available online , at
httDs://vww.cdc.QOv/cahcer/nbccedp/pdf/smartie-obiectlves-

■ 508.pdf

i;;" 1.4.17.2.4. -Meet the key strategies and measures as described in the
Integrated Viraf Hepatitis Surveillance and Prevention.
Funding for Health Departmerits (CDC-RFA-PS21-2103)
available online at:

.  https://www.cdc.qov/hepatitls/policv/pdfs/PS21-
2103 Publlshed.pdf.

1.4.17.3. Five (5) Year Strategies. Interventions, and Implementation Plans, which
must:

1.4.17.3.1. Be based on evidence gathered during the tVHSA and the
stakeholder engagement activities described in section 1.4.25
below.

1.4.17.3.2. Include a justification of how efficiency and equity are taken into
consideration. For the purposes of this agreement, efficiency is
defined as interventions that maximally leverage existing and
available resources, and equity is defined as interventions that
address health disparities.

1.4.17.3.3. Be local to New Hampshire, Maine, and Vermont; and leverage
existing resources in the Tristate area.

1.4.17.3.4. Identify:

1.4.17.3.4.1. Opportunities where existing health system
policies and programs can be reshaped or
extended to include hepatitis-related activities,
and

1.4.17.3.4.2. Opportunities to link service delivery pathways
to existing structures to increase efhciencies.

1.4.17.3.5. Address strategies for increasing Hepatitis C Virus (HCV)
Ribonucleic Acid (RNA) reflex testing, increasing provider
training in prescribing HCV and HBV treatment, Increasing
health systems that promote routine HCV and HBV testing, and
rural health strategies.

1.4.17.4. Financial Framework. . : -y-

.1.4.17.4.1. The Contractor must describe potential Internal and external.,
funding, and financing mechanisms to support the goals,
objectives, strategies, and interventions identified in thetVHEP.

1.4.17.5. Data-Sources and Systems. - .-r - ' . ' i. r .• •

1.4.17.5.1. The Contractor must ensure all data sources and systems are .
clearly identified and defined.
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.  1.4.18.7Th"e Contractor shall complete the fristate Viral Hepatitis Elimination Plan within'two!{2)^i<5'! ■
:  • •^yearsoftheG&CapprovaidateofthisAmendment^:' • - ■ • .. :::i:-:!^zr:rrtr,--rrT -

1.4.19. the Contractor must Identify, map, and engage stakeholders who are Involved m
prevention, diagnosis, and treatment services across the Tristate area to formulate a

' ■ Tristate Viral Hepatltis Elimination Planning Group, of which a minimum of 50% of the

« -sc

t  f'J •

Stakeholders.must be external partners. Stakeholder representation must include, but
Is hot limited to: '

1.4.19.1. External stakeholders including, but not limited to:

1.4.19.1.1. Healthcare organizations and providers.

1.4.19.1.2. Hepatitis care and treatment programs.

1.4.19.1.3. Commercial laboratories.

1.4.19.1.4. Community-based organizations.

1.4.19.1.5. Academia.
•■s

1.4.19.1.6. Professional organizations.

1.4.19.1.7. Patient groups.

1.4.19.1.8. Nonprofrt/advocacy groups.

1.4.19.1.9. Private insurers.

1.4.19.1.10. Pharmaceutical companies.

1.4.19.1.11. Refugee/resettlement services.

1.4.19.1.12. Organizations supporting the social determinants of health
and wraparound services.

1.4.19.2. Internal stakeholders including, but not limited to:

1.4.19.2.1. Hepatitis B surveillance or prevention programs. Including
perinatal prevention.

1.4.19.2.2. HIV and sexually transmitted infections surveillance and
prevention programs.

1.4.19.2.3. LIcensure boards.

1.4.19.2.4. Communicable infectious disease surveillance and prevention
programs.

1.4.19.2.5. Drug and alcohol programs.

1.4.19.2.6. Immunization programs.

1.4.19.2.7. Public health emergency preparedness and responise programs.

1.4.19.2.8. Substance use disorder and mental health programs.

1.4.19.2.9. Health care-associated infection surveillance and prevention
-  ''-•V-"--""-'''"prpgrams. "

1.4.19.2.10. Cancer surveillance and prevention programs. ; . - • .

.  , , 1.4.19.2.11. Overdose prevention surveillance and prevention programs. .

1.4.19:2;12. Vital statistics prbgrahis^ ' Lr.-I.
J^.4;19.2.13. State Medlcald/Medjcare programs. V . • .f -

Public heai^^aioraitdrl^, maternal;"
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1.4.19.3!, Representation from high Impact settings including, but not limited to:

1.4.19.3.1. Harm reductionandsyringeservicesprograms.!
1.4.19.3.2. Substance use disorder treatment programs iand mental health

•  •'■: • ■ • services. •

1.4.19.3.3. Correctional facilities and re-entry programs.

1.4.19.3.4. Emergency departments.

1.4.19.3.5. Hospital-based programs..

1.4.19.3.6. Sexually transmitted infection clinics, homeless services.
1.4.19.3.7. Health centers including Federally Qualified Health Centers

(FOHCs).

1.4.19.4. Representation from People with Lived Experience (PWLE), and People
Who Inject Drugs (PWID), as well as the organizations that serve them.

1.4.20. The Contractor shall ensure stakeholder engagement Is coordinated through the Instate
Viral Hepatitis Elimination Planning Group.

1.4.21. The Contractor shall ensure stakeholder engagement meetings occur as follows:

1.4.21.1. Bi-Monthly two (2) hour planning group meetings; and

1.4.21.2. Monthly (1) hour workgroup meetings, on an as-needed basis but no less
than monthly. , ■

1.4.22. The Contractor shall ensure the Instate Viral Hepatitis Elimination Planning Group
provides logistical support including, but not limited to:

1.4.22.1. Preparing and distributing meeting agendas and pre-meeting materials to all
meeting attendees.

1.4.22.2. Taking meeting minutes that include any action items.

1.4.22.3. Distributing post-meeting materials.

1.4.23. The Contractor shall ensure the Instate Viral Hepatitis Elimination Planning Group
provides facilitation support including, but not limited to:

1.4.23.1. Setting the meeting agendas and meeting goals with consultation from the
Instate Viral Hepatitis Steering Committee.

1.4.23.2. Guiding discussions and managing the group process to ensure meeting
goals are met

1.4.24. The Contractor must engage all stakeholders in tVHSA and tVHEP development as
described in Sections 1.4.10.1 and 1.4; 17 respectively. - -

1.4.25. The Contractor must conduct stakeholder engagement activities, including: . . ..

.1.4.25.1. Recruiting;and engaging stakeholders for the thelristate Viral.Hepatitis.
Elimination Planning Group, in accordance with 1.4.19 above;

1.4.25.2. Review and. ; share relevant data, literature, and findings' with all
stakeh6lders,;collect feedback; and integrate feedback into Elimination Plan
preparation; and' •

J  Share..the!4yHEP development tirheline, as identified inS.1:4rl7,-T;with!.all
stakefcldei#4Jk;

JSI Res^^v&-Traini^Tnstitute, ContractorInitiai-  - . ..'.i.-.v;;-/..-;.::! • •-■■^"•11/10/2022RFA:2022;pPHS-^S-PUBLiC-01-A02;^;;gj^gpt|^^-F^ 6 Of 9
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1.4.27. ...The Contractor shall coordinate .with the Tristate Viral Hepatitis Elimination Planning
• Group to identify gaps in expertise necessary for developing and Implementing the

tVHSA and tVHEP including, biit not limited to:

1.4.27..1. Biostatistician support. : «

1.4.27.2. Policy and regulatory support.

1.4.27.3. HCV-specific clinical expertise.

1.4.28. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Tristate Viral Hepatitis Elimination Steering
Committee throughout the development and preparation of the tVHSA and tVHEP
ensure the Tristate jVlral Hepatitis Elimination Steering Committee retains supervisory
and editorial authority over the content and prioritization of the tVHSA and tVHEP
developed in collaboration with the Contractor.

1.4.29. The Contractor shall participate in bi-weekly meetings with the Tristate Viral Hepatitis
Steering Committee to:

1.4.29.1. Ensure committee action items are met; and

1.4.29.2. Receive updates on progress, clinical and tactical feedback, and assistance
with prioritization.

1.4.30. The Contractor shall submit the tVHSA, tVHEP, and other final planning documents to
the Tristate Viral Hepatitis Steering Committee and Tristate Viral Hepatitis Elimination
Planning Group for edits and approval prior to public or governmental submission.

1.4.31. The Contractor shall develop a New Hampshire Outbreak Detection and Response Plan
(NHODRP) to identify and respond to outbreaks of Hepatitis A, 8, and C infection within
12 months of the G&C approval date of this Amendment that must include, but is not
limited to:

1.4.31.1. Outbreak Response Checklist.

1.4.31.2. Outbreak Preparedness:

1.4.31.2.1. Organizational structure.

1.4.31.2.2. Partner engagement.

1.4.31.2.3. Continuity of operations plan.

1.4.31.3. Outbreak Detection:

1.4.31.3.1. Outbreak definition and characterization.

1.4.31.4. Outbreak Investigation and Response:

1:4:31.4.1. Data collection and management.

1.4.31.4.2. Just-in-time training plan.

vu, ... . 1.4.31.4.3. Internal and external communication plan.

.  1.4^31.4.4. Escalated response.
1.4.31.4.5. Cross-jurisdictional response.

'.VS
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. -1.4.31.5.1. Trigger^ for initiating, escalating, deescalating, arid :cl6sihg ; - ,
outbreak response.

1.4.31.6. Post-Outbreak Activities:

.  . 1.4.31.6;1. Debriefing procedures. r
1.4.31.6.2. outbreak plari maintenance.

1.4.32. The Contractor shall erigage internal stakeholders in NHODRP development and
preparation, which may include, but is not limited to: . . .

1.4.32.1. The Bureau of Infectious Disease Control (BIDC), which encompasses the
Infectious Disease Surveillance Section (IDSS), Infectious Disease
Prevention, Investigation, Care Services Section (IDPICSS), and
Immunization Section (IS).

1.4.32.2. Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Services (BDAS).

1.4.32.3. Bureau of Healthcare Access.

1.4.32.4. Equity and Policy (BHAEP).

1.4.32^5. Bureau of Emergency Preparedness, Response, and Recovery (BEPRR).
1.4.32.6. Public Information Office (PIO).

1.4.33. The Contractor shall engage extemal stakeholders in NHODRP development and
preparation, which may include but is not limited to:

1.4.33.1. The Manchester Health Department (MHD).

1.4.33.2. Nashua Health Department (NHD).

1.4.33.3. New Hampshire Harm Reduction Coalition (NHHRC) and Syringe Service
Programs (SSPs).

1.4.33.4. New Hampshire Hospital Association (NHHA).

1.4.33.5. Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN).

1.4.33.6. The Tristate Viral Hepatitis Elimination Steering Committee.

1.4.33.7. Tristate Viral Hepatitis Planning Group.

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:
1. This agreement is funded by:

1.1. 79% Federal Funds:

1.1.1, 2% Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response, as awarded on May
20, 2021 i by the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS),
CFDA #93.070, FAIN NUE1EH001357-04.

6% Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Projects, State and Local Childhood
Lead Poisoning Prevention and Surveillance of Blood Lead Levels in Children, as "■ •
awarded on 8/5/2021, by the United States Department of Health and Human
Services (HHS), CFDA #93.197, FAIN NUE2EH001457. •
7% Performance Partnership Grants, as awarded on 7/14/2021, by the
States " Environmental ProtectionAgency (EPA), CFDA:r#66;605, FAIN ^
BG00100731..'

1.1.2.

1.1.3.

•• :*5
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•ai'- 1.1.4f" 5% StateOridbor Radon Grants-.as on 9/13/2021,.by.^tiie}United.StatesL-
•  : ir Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), CFDA #66.032, FAIN 00162332.

1.1.5. 1% National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness-Program, as avyarded on
7/1/2021, by the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS),
CFDA#93.889. FAIN U3REP190580.

1.1.6. 7% Public Health Emergency Preparedness; as awarded on 5/12/2021, by the
united States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), CFDA #93.069,
FAIN NU90TP9220i8.

1.1.7. . 8% Immunization Cooperative Agreements, as awarded on 3/31/2021, by the.
' United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), CFDA #93.268,
FAIN NH23IP922595.

8% Immunization Cooperative Agreements, as awarded on 7/1/2021, by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), CFDA #93.268,
FAIN NH23IP922595.

1.1.8.

1.1.9. 15% HIV Prevention Activities Health Department Based, as awarded on
3/8/2021, by the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS),
CFDA #93.940, FAIN NU62PS924538.

1.1.10. 11% ELC Enhancing Detection Funding, as awarded on May 18, 2020 by the
Center for. Disease Control & Prevention (CDC), CFDA #93.323, FAIN
NU50CK000522.

1.1.11. 3% Federal Funds, Public Health Emergency Response, as awarded on May 18,
2021, by the Unit^ States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS),
CFDA #93.354, FAIN NU90TP922144.

1.1.12. 6% Federal Funds, Center for Disease Control and Prevention, as awarded on
1/21/2021, CFDA #93.270, FAIN NU51PS005173.

1.2. 5% General Funds

1.3. 16% Other Funds (Pharmaceutical Rebates)

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual experiditures incurred in the fulfillment
of ̂ is Agreement, and shall be in accordance vtrith the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits
C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-50, Budget - Amendment # 2, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-50, Budget - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.
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^ . All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain

^  t.. <;-iV • .-V

_  . - v.-:—-. •;

the Contract and prior amendments not mpdifi
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval. ..
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date virritten below,

State of New Harnpshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/13/2022

Date

•OocuSlonx) by:

|4>FPaifiBFP4C|..
NarhelPatricia m. Tiiiey

Title:
01 rector

JSi Research & Training Institute, Inc.

11/10/2022

Date

•DoeuSl^wd by:

Wrtyf

Title: Di rector
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.  ̂',-jhe preceding Amendment, having been, reviewed by this office. I? approy^jas to form, substan^.^hd
'"'"^^executibn. • 'V-i: '

::L- ; . ^ OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

11/15/2022

Date

•AilMVtO

*Nan'ie:'ttot'yn".Guari no
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
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■  -New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Seiylces -r '7
Complete onio budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name: |JS/Research & Tra/n/ng/nsWufe,; /nc::' : v, j . 7 ■

Budget Request for: tV/>a/.Hepaf/f/s E//m/naf/on P/anmng ' '- aj
Budget Period ''oj-W'/sAoo " -■•••" •" - —- ' •■ =;- .rsrr-ss- .' R ■ ■■Sry 2023 o'^ •-c nv-"

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)

21.23% on all costs less subcontracts/awards and
equipment costs over $5,000, . "

,-.-v.-r.;. . -.a,™:;;#;".?-.- -r.--;- .-• .••■• • .r.-y.-.-,- 7-. y,-V"-

" ^ - Line'ltem " . i 7 -RrogramiCost-iFunded by.pH^^ ; |
:  ■" A' 7 - ■ ,

1. Salary & Wages ■  $110,484

2. Fringe Benefits -  ■ ■ A;7 . T:- . - ■■ -■;■ $51,817

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment $0

5ia^ SuDDlles - Educational $0

S.fb'i SuDDlies - Lab $0

5.fc^ SuDDlies - Pharmacy ■$o

S.fdl SuDDlies - Medical so

5.fe> SuDDlies Office ,  ■ - - . ■ . . . $0

6. Travel $2,000

7. Software $2,000

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Community Enaaaement .  - $12,000

Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) ■ , . . ■ ■ $0
Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts V.. . , , . . . . JQ

Total Direct Costs $178,301

Total lndlrect Costs . . ..... ■ - ■ ■ r.7'^: t$37,853

TOTAL $216,154
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CERTIFICATE

I,.David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSl RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 17,

2016.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739507

Certificate Number: 0005859542

s

1^.
%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of September A.D. 2022.

David M. Sc^Ian

Secretary of St^e
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CERfiRCATE OF"AUTHORITY"

Alex Baker: Chief Operating Offer

.  (Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)
.* ' ' ' f . . .«

1. 1 am a duty elected Cleilc/Secretary/Officer of JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. •

^ hereby certify that:

(Gorporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is.a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on August 8 , 2019 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were pre^nt and
voting.

VOTED: That

(Date)

Katherine Robert (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on t>ehalf of.
agreements with the State

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

to enter into contracts or

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority, i further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire wili rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. f—Doeusioi»#diiy:

(Lijuy frakr
Dated: Novemt>er10.2022

SignaSr^S^l^ed Officer
Name: Alex Baker

Title: Chief Operating Officer
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ACORtf CERTIFICATE OF LIABlLWlNSURANCE ' i-:rf
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)
r~ ■ ~ ~ u'.if

10/26/2022 •-
iCft

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE'HOLDER.' THISY-
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED 8Y THE. POUCIES, ̂
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZEDT:
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. ■

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poiIcy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A staternent on

PRODUCER

AHT insurance, A Baldwin Risk Partner .
458 South Ave
Whitman MA 02382

License#; CA#0658748

tMktr
NAME:

80(^48-4807 wc. Mo»: 781-447-7230
a44AIL
AnnREM-

mSURERiS)AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A: Federal Insurance ComDanv 20281

WSURED JOHNSNOOl
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
44 Famswortti Street
Boston MA 02210-1206

INSURER B:

INSURERC:-

INSURER D;

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
.TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDLSUBR
WVO POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MWDDIYYVYI

POUCYEXP
IMMmrWYYYYT UMTTS

A X COMMERCULGENERAL UABIUTY

E 1 X 1 OCCUR

35873320 9/9/2022 9/9/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
6AMA6£ T6 RENTED
PRFMI.SFR (Eb oeeurraneal $1,000,000

MEO EXP (Any one peraon) $10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT /i>PUES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000

POLICY 1 1 Sect IJLI log
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 73546634 9/9/2022 9/9/2023
COMBINED SINGLE UMIT $1,000,000

X

ANY AUTO.

HEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Par parson) $1,000,000

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

 XX

sc BODILY INJURY (Pw acddant) $1,000,000

NON.OWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

PROPERTY DAMAGE $1,000,000

s

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LlAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

79861066 9/9/2022 9/9/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $20,000,000

AGGREGATE S 20.000,000

DED RETENTIONS $

A WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LlABnjTY y, ̂
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNeiUExeCUTIVE [-^
OFFICERMEMBEREXCLUDEO?
(Mandatory In NH) '
If yes. dascdbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

71733182 9/9/2022 9/9/2023
y  PER OTH-
^  STATUTE ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

n

OESCRiPnON OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICtES (ACORO 101, AddltionM Rwnarfcs SchedyM, riMy be attached a more (PM* to required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

. NH Department of Health and Human Services . •
129 Pleasant Street . •

•  .ConcordNH03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION. DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE. DELIVERED IN.
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS. .

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE.... .

.■i
ACORD 25 (2016/03)

;  r 1988-2015 ACORD CORPO^TIpN. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are reglstered'marks of ACORD ' ^ . ... .



JSI Research and Training Institute.Inc.

Mission Statement

JSI Research Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
organization in the Commonwealth of. Massachusetts. Our mission is. to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countties around the world .
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts'; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampshire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human service fields.
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Consolidated Financial Statements and
Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants and Reports in
Compliance with Uniform Guidance

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
Affiliates

September 30, 2021
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Board of Directors
JSI Research and Training Institute, inc.

Report on the financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliates (the 'Entity"), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to die financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Entity as of September 30, 2021, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance,
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance svith
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government
Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities under those standards are further descnt>ed
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Entity and to meet our other
eUiical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidate .financial statements in accordance with accounting principles gerterally
accepted in the United States of America, ae for the design, implementation, and _ ...
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and foir presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether .
due to fraud or error. i:-

tn preparing the consolidated financial statements, management.is required to .
evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that -
raise substantial doubt about the Entity's ability to continue as a going con^m for.
one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued. - . ;

jXry-ry-
.■,)K

■ V T'_^ ■-.rr'i •

- -r-: s : .-J

' i f • "n; .ri.rTn^X-' t .-

.SIIBlii
' >• - - - .

Gfant Thornton tXPisBw U.S.'nwnMr,(km of Grant Thornton MamiOonal Ltd (GDL). GTIL arxfecnomi trxmbortlrTW?-;
' V(md«ne*«worWwW«partnerthfp:^Tm-,;~—^

■ ■mW'-



;i:.7
•  • '

ViPogjSIgn Envelope ID;;E'l89A0C[>MB7-4807-B9DE-4BB3F'l^FBn 'h-::"" '
7, ■}. (U'.i .,'f. ,' -.'(2^.- • ' ••

#tvu.«s5ii ttiv.Lti- • vfixrs v«-i-T.-i -i

}• . : -.i.v - '■•'■•■. . ■

^ Gt^tThoml^

-ferT" . : y 7 tt.-;
• -1- • : •

' ' •' .:'
I; • :■$. ■ . .-•

■; ■£»'-■-

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance atx>ut whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit corKlucted in accordance with US GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that; individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perforrn audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basts, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures foat are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's intemal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
v^ll as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Entity's ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged wifo govemance regarding,
arnong other matters, the plann^ scope and timing of the audit significant audit ..
findings, and certain intemal controkelated matters that we identified during the audit

'. Ss' ji- "Vr .
:r ; t •

i.T.r.

Supplementary information . .
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated

.  financial statements as a whole. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
- " required by Trtle 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
'  presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the

consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
. ... .... responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the ' .• -jj

'  underlying accounting and other-records used to prepare the consolidated finandai r/. vr ::.v-
statements. The information.has been subjected to the.auditing procedures applied.in ,• . t::
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures.';3ir.rj.-^..;:j4;r/^
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direcdy to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to. the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with US GAAS. In our
opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated, in alt material
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated June 24, 2022 on our consideration of the Entity's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectivenesis of the Entity's intemal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Entity's intemal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Lue

Boston, Massachusetts
June 24, 2022
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JSI R..-A-COij esearch.andrTraining Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30,2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables for program work
Field advances - program
Employee advances
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Otherassets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings
Accrued vacation

Advances for program work

Total current liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

r:

... . .•A.4j£a-^, ^ accompanying notes are aii integral part ofthis^
■'i-
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$  96.415.811,
44.323.0841

166,700!
96,355

85.451.482
■ 2.356.3051

228.809.737

2.722.747

494.7001
$ 232,027.190

$  77,042,213
2.128.990

86,189,016

165,360,219

66,118,555
548.416'

66,666,971

$ 232,027,190
■
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JSI Research andTraining Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVrflES

Year ended September 30,2021
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NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Support and revenue;
Public support

Global Futid
Govemnient grants and contracts:

U.S. Government
Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Other grants and contracts
Program income
Contributions . .
Net assets released from restriction
Gain on forgiveness of debt
In-kind project contributions
Other income

Interest income

Total support and revenue

Expenses:
Prograth services:

Intemational programs
Domestic programs

Total program services

Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Other expenses;
Unallowable costs

Total expenses

Change in riet assets without donor restrictions

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
' Contributions, net of net asset releases of $78,524

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS '

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

I
$ 424,622,326

I

149,829,898 I
7,341,579 '

69,804,737 ;
96,124 I

261,599 !
78,524 I

1,074,400 I
1,834,514 !

1,999 ]
97,932 '

I

655,043,632 '

580,625,338 :
I29,137,111

609,762,449

34,127,773
1,080,428

35,208,201

345.188

645,315.838

9.727;794

•  - 229,766 I
.  I

^  9,957,560 I

56,709,411

r r, .

•• •
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Commodities

^.Freight costs
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Consultants
.. 'ill * ' •• .• . i
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ational salaries
Travel

Allowance and training
Subgrants
Subcontracts

Equipment, material and supplies
p^ercosts-' '
Information technology
Npn^cpmmodity
Quality assurance '
Inrkihd project expenses
Depredation

Total expense

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30,2021

■? %ff 'iiV,-' ■.

;  •' u"' ! l- '
.1 '

Program Services Supporting Services

International Domestic Management
Programs Programs Total and General Fundralsing Total

$  374,776,813 $ $  374,776,813 $ $ $  374,776,813'
34,169,444 - 34,169,444 -

, 34.169,444

28,610,134 14,840,513 43,450,647 10,036,241 893,143 54,380,031
16,418,084 7,634,972 24,053,056 2,125,852 30,687 26,209,595

38,458,259 273,800 38,732,059 395,260 - 39,127,319.

3,609,187 187,076 3,796,263 39,083 - 3,835,346-

3,801,160 132,510 3,933,670 531,959 - 4,465,629
18,307,467 700,914 19,008,381 50,553 42,873 19,101,807 -
25,529,700 3,313,466 28,843,166 - - . 28,843,166

3,024,350 129,075 3,153,425 .78,439 1,986 .  3,233,850.-
■  30,461,762 1,924,785 32,386,547 20,054,427 111,739 52,552,713

950 - 950 469,309. - 470,259 ■
1,606,244 - 1,606,244 - - 1,606,244

,  17,270 - 17,270 - - 17,270
1,834,514 - . 1,834,514 - - 1,834,514

. - - 346,650 - .346,650

$  580,625,338 $. 29,137,111 $ 609,762,449 $  34,127,773 $  1,080,428 $ 644,970,650

*  ' i
I V-'

i
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l"''r.'.-;::'^|The ar^riipanyiiig npfos are an integral part_pf this consolidated financial st^ement.
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JSI Research and.Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30, 2021

'Y'. I
r  - ..♦i .-.w/y-v-. I

ir n-

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Gain on forgiveness of debt
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in receivables for program work
Decrease in field advances - program
Increase in employee advances
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in other assets

Increase in inventory
Deicrease in accounts payable and payroll withholdings
Decrease in accrued vacation

Increase in advances for program work

$  9.957.560

(1.074,400)
87,706

346,650
]

(14,705,893)
3.691,792;

(92.113)
(348.177)
(229,776)'

(8,230,710)
(10,600,522)

(84,561)
36.330,138i

Net cash provided by operating activities 15.047,696i

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

15,047,696,
I

j

81,368,115
(

$  .96,415,811'.

^^ir^^g|;-:>;^:p:The accompanying npt'^'are an integral part of^this^h^lidated financial staternent;^:>>l^jl7i;
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

"  September 30,2021
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NOTE A. ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACtlVITIES

JSI. Research and training Institute. Inc. (the "Organization") was incorporated in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts on April 11,1979. JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. provides education and research
primarily to non-profit health and human service agencies both in the United States and abroad. Current
funding is principally from the United States Agency for Intemational Development ("AID") and the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is the sole member of World Education. Inc. and The Partnership
for Supply Chain Management. Inc. ("Affiliates"). JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. is accorded with
such powers as are typical for a sole member including the power of appointment and removal of the
Affiliates' board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to the bylaws and certificate of incorporation,
and the right to approve any merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of Affiliates.

World Education, Inc. was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working in
partnership with community, national, and intemational agencies in Asia. Africa, and the United States, it
provides professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-formal adult education programs.
These programs integrate functional education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth
and national development such as health, nutrition, femily planning, childcare, refugee education,
agricultural practices, literacy, and income generation. World Education, Inc's financial data is consolidated
utilizing its fiscal year-end financial statements.'as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The Partnership for Supply Chain Management ("PfSCM") was incorporated on February 14. 2005, under
the laws of Massachusetts. PfSCM began operations on October 1, 2005 as a non-profit organization
established by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Management Sciences for Health. Inc. On
October 11, 2018, Management Sciences.for Health, Inc. discontinued their relationship with PfSCM and
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. became the sole member of PfSCM.

JSI Research and Training Institute! Inc. and its affiliates are tax exempt organizations under 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") and file separate unconsolidated tax returns.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Iric. as ;
welt as World Education, Inc. and PfSCM, its affiliates (collectively referred to as the Organization).
Significant intra-entity accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. I,

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accmal biasis ,
of accounting and include the accounts of-JSI Research and Training Institute, .Inc. and its affijiates In
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Net .
assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed

;• restrictions. Accordingly, the net as^ts of the Organization and the changes thereof are classified arid t-: — • • •-;•
'. reported as follows: .

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subiect to donor-imposed restrictions, j
I  Net Assets \Mth Donor Restrictions-Conirihxi^ons. grants, and income whose use by the.Organization
•  -has been limited by donors or. grantors to a specific time period or purpose. . ••

iV!!.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires rhanagement
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, ,
actual results may differ from.those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carryirig value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair '
value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Total cash held in foreign accounts
was $3,461,909 at September 30, 2021.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is |
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective assets
over their estimated useful lives (5-7 years) of the related assets. Property and equipment purchased with
grant funds where ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the.time of purchase and Is retumed to ,
the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grant and/or donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period.

Recent Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In fiscal year 2021, the Organization adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
which outlines a single comprehensive revenue model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising •
from contracts with customers. The guidance supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance,
including industry-specific guidance, and ensures that entities appropriately reflect the consideration to
which they expect to be entitled in exchange for goods and services, by allocating transaction price to
identified perfomiance obligations, and recognizing that revenue as performance obligations are satisfied.
The Organization applied the standard using the modified retrospective transition method resulting in a
$2,275,600 reduction of net assets without restrictions as of the adoption date (October 1,2020).

As part of the adoption of the ASU, the Organization electekl to use the following transition practical
exp^ients; (i) completed contracts that begin and end in the same annual reporting period have not been
restated; (ii) the Organization used the known transaction price for completed contracts; (ill) to exclude
disclosures of transaction prices allocated to remaining performance obligations when the Organization , •
expects to recognize such revenue for all periods prior to the date of initial application of the ASU; and (iy) j
the company has reflected the aggregate of all contract modifications that occurred prior to the date of initial ,
application when Identifying the satisfied and unsatisfied performance obligations, determining the
transaction price, and allocating the transaction price.' t

Revenue Recognition

■  Grants and Contacts . .3, . " ■ . . . j. , ;
The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements, and .
grants with The Global Fund to Fight AIDS Tuberculosis and Malaria (the Global Fund), and U.S.- :• ••
govemrnent agencies, primarily USAID and the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

.- The OrgariizMion recognizes reveriue fronS^extemal organizations for services provided under.excharige ---' . r-T;
ar)d non-exchange grants and contracts: Unconditional grants, contracts,vand contributions are recognized ■ '--t -

-as revenue in the period received^ln the;appro^ net asset cMegory, based pn the exlstence.or abserice.i.-U;. , .li
'T
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of donor Imposed restrictions. If donor Imposed restrictions are present, the associated revenue Is reported
as an, Increase in net assets with donor restrictions and are' reclassified to net assets without donor-

• restrictions when the restrictions are met. Grants and contracts revenues whose restrictions are met in the
same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction.

Revenues from non-exchange transactions may be subject to conditions in the form of both a barrier to
entitlement and a refund of amounts paid (and a release from obligation to make future payments). The
(Organization recognizes revenue earned from conditional non-exchange grants and contracts as these
conditions are satisfied. At September 30. 2021, the Organization had $247,832,020 of conditional grants
and contracts not recognized as revenue In the statements of activities.

Revenues from exchange transactions are recognized as the Organization satisfies performance
obligations, which in some cases, mirrors the timing of when related costs are incurred. In the case of the
procurement and delivery of commodities revenues are recognized upon receipt by the customer. As of
September 30, 2021, the Organization has $57,626,102 of defen-ed revenue related to exchange
transactions which will be recognized as revenue upon completion of delivery of commodities and receipt
by the customer. This deferred revenue in included within advances for program work in the accompanying
statement of financial position.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as In-kind project contributions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization Is exempt from income'taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and is not a private
foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization has evaluated Its tax positions and believes that there would be no material changes to
the results of its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable taxing authorities,
federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required retums in a timely manner including
as permitted allowed extensions.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., World Education, Inc. and PfSCM file separate unconsolidated
tax retums. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and PfSCM file tax retums bas^ on a September 30
year end and World Education, Inc. files Its t^ retum based on a June 30 year end..

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have t>een summarize on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated arriong
the programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification includes all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification.. Natural expenses attributable to more than one.
functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques. • ■
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Foreign Currency Transactions

- Expenses of international operations are measured gehemlly using local currency. Expenses are translated '
to USD using the first in, first out method of exchange based on .the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a :
result, foreign currency transaction gains and losses are negligible and are included as direct program j
expenses.

Receivables for Program Work

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a provision for bad debt I
expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection ,
efforts are.written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The !
allowance for doubthjl accounts at Septerhber 30, 2021 was $0. Included in receivables for program work
is $34,790,746 of amounts billed and $9,532,337 of amounts unbilled. i

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the PASS issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which requires a lessee to recognize a right-of-
use asset and lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, in its balance
sheet/statement of financial position. The guidance also expands the required quantitative and qualitative i
disclosures surrounding leases. The ASU Is effective for fiscal year 2023 for the Organization. The •
Organization is evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE C - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At times,
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States government. The '
uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the assets of the financial <
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a financial loss to the Organization.
However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accounts In the past and management
believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal. '

NOTE D - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accurnulated depreciation account balances as of September 30, 2021:

Accumulated

'  .Furniture and equipment
> ,v; Leasehold improvements

.  i. • '

■ vV ''r/.yy.ir

Cost Net

$ 592,816 $ 583,779 $ 9,037
3.380,365 666,655 2,713.710

$ 3,973,181:' ■"'$ 1,250,434 $ 2,722,747

" Depreciation expdnse was $346,650 for the year ended September 30, 2021.
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NOTE E - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2021:

Other - non-governmental:
Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation

• ■ Various donors
Global Fund

Doris Duke Charitable Foundation

$  19,139,937
17,133,997
48,415,977

1,499,105

$  86,189,016

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash related from non-governmental
organizations. They are reported as advances because there is typically a barrier placed by the granting
organization, as well as a right of return if the funds are not used in accordance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there is no longer a right
of return, revenue Is recognized.

NOTE F-DEBT

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. has a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The
revolving line of credit was renewed on August 17, 2021. The loan is payable on demand. Interest Is
charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of cr^lt
remains in effect until May 31, 2022 and annually thereafter is contingent upon performance. The loan is
collateralized by a first priority Interest In all the assets of World Education, Inc. No funds were borrowed
during 2021 and as a result, as of September 30, 2021, the outstanding balance Is $0 and no Interest was
incurred on this loan during the year ended September 30, 2021.

John Snow, Inc.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured revolving line of credit with John Snow, Inc. (a related party) with
a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The loan was renewed on July 1,2019. Interest is charged by utilizing
a fluctuating rate based on the current prime rate plus 0.25%. the loan is payable on demand and, in any
event, on or prior to June 30, 2022. The loan is not collateralized. No funds were borrowed during the year
and as a result, as of June 30, 2021, the outstanding balance Is $0. . No interest was incurred on this loan
during the year ended June 30,2021.

Loan Payable - Paycheck Protection Act y

In April, 2020, World Education, Inc. ("WEI") was granted a loan (the "Loan") In the. aggregate amount of
$1,074,400, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the "PPP") under Division A, title I of the
CARESAct. r

The Loan, which was in the form of a Note d^ed April 23,2020, was scheduled to mature on April 23,2022 :•!
and bore Interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum, payable monthly commencing in February 2020.: Under =
the terms of the PPP, the Loan was fully forgiven as of June" 15, 2021, which is reflected as gain on
forgiveness of debt in the accompanying statement of activities. . ;
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NOTE G - CONTINGENCIES j
In accordance with the.terms of Its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization f •
are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for ahy disallowed costs.'
Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such.an audit, would be immateiial to
the consolidated financial statements. ^

JSI Research and-Training Institute. Inc. is a co-borrower (with a related party) of a demand loan with no ,
balance due at September 30,2021.

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the AID on an annual basis. As of September 30, 2021, I
actual indirect cost rates have been approved by AID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through
December 31,2015 and World Education, Inc. through June 30,2018. Based on favorable past experience, i
management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be material to the .
consolidated financial statements.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has caused disruption in operations of businesses domestically and globally. '
In response the Organization implemented cost savings and other measures to reduce operating expenses .
and ensure adequate liquidity. Due to the uncertainty of the continued spread of the virus and economic
outlook, there.may be short-term and long-term implications for operations of the Organization.

NOTE H - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
I

Donor restricted net assets of as of September 30, 2021 are restricted for use in specific programs and/or
projects that are specified by the donor. i

* •

-r.

vi -v; .'

NOTE I - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snow, Inc.

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. ("R&T) and John Snow, Inc. ("JSI, Inc.") (a non-exempt
corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. The President and Director of R&T is the sole
stockholder of JSI. Inc. The two companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill federal and state
govemments.

During the year ended September 30, 2021, JSI, Inc. billed R&T.$22,395,454 for consulting services
(technical support). This amount is reflected under program services - consulting totaling $18,511,741.and •
program services - other costs totaling $3,888,435, on the consolidated statements of functional expenses,
in addition, during the year end September 30,2021, R&T performed consulting services (technical support)
for JSIJnc. totaling $7,443,577. ■ . ■ '
As of September 30,2021 the R&T was ow^ $762,616 from JSI.

The two cbmpariies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the year ended
September 30, 2021, R&T incurred $26,151,534 of overtiead expenses (supporting services), of which
$10,887,356 was its share of JSI, Inc. incurred costs.

. R&T is a co-borrower with JSI, Inc. on a commercial demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration • •
date of May 31.2022, which allows for borrowings up to $6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a security
agreement with a^firist position lien on all coqx^te assets of R&T and JSI, l.nc. including assignment
promissory notes'and security documents between the two companies. Interest is charged by utilizing-a " '
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V'

fluctuating rate based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus 2.00% payable monthly in arrears, which at
September 30.2021 was 2.09%. At Septerhber 30.2021. there was no outstanding balance on this loan. '

World Education. Inc: has an agreement with John Snow. Inc. whereby John Snow, Inc: will provide
administrative and technical support as requested from time to time by WEI, on arms-length terms as.'
agreed by WEI and JSI. Transadions t>etween World Education, Inc. and John Snow, Inc. for the year
ended September 30, 2021 are summarized as follows;-

Administrative and technical support
Other direct charges (including rent of $1,088,603)

$  1,671,428
1,493,832

$  3,165,260

The agreement is on a year-to-year basis and can be terminated by either party upon 90 days written notice
to the other. ,

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a related company to purchase services. Transactions with this '
company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows for the year ended September 30. ,
2021:

The Manoff Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation: 40% owned by
John Snow, Inc.) $  1,564,751

$  1.564,751

NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLANS

R&T has a defined contribution profit sharjng/401(k) plan covering substantially all of its employees. R&T
contributes an amount equal to .7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll.
In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to the plan. Employees
who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account are automatically enrolled at 2%
either at the time of hire, or annually in July. Pension expense was $2,656,279 for the year ended
September 30, 2021.

WEI has a defined contribution tax sheltered annuity plan covering substantially all of its employees. WEI
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly eamings, funded with each month's payroll.
Additional voluntary contributions may be made, by the employeeis. Participants of the plan are.fully and
immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension costs incurred by World Education, jnc. were
$392,399 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

NOTE K • COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

.. The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc; leaseis space for general offices under operating leases
expiring from 2022 through 2026. The leases contain reriewal options for periods of up to.five years. , .
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During the year ended September 30, 2021, rent expense under long-term lease obligatipns were
$622,797. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term- leases as of
September 30, 2021 are:

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

$ 450,718
396,612
155,324
160,680
166,036

$  1,329,370

World Education, Inc. leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent expense for the year
ended June 30, 2021 was $1,165,904. I

NOTE L - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING
t

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various departments
and,agencies of the federal govemment.

The Organization received 16% or more of Its revenues and support from the following sources for the year •
ended September 30, 2021: ■

Revenue
% of Total

Income

The Global Fund (PfSCM)
U.S. Agency for International Development (R&T and WEI)

$ 424,622,326 65%
$  128,400,664 20%

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc. received $128,400,664 from U.S.
Agency for International Development as of September 30, 2021, which represents approximately 55% of
total income for those entities.

NOTE M - UQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Organization maintains a policy of structuring Its financial assets to be available as its general '
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. - Given the project-based nature of the
Organization's work, the annual budget is structured to break even and ensure that there are sufficient <
inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization's reserve, which Is minlrhal, is -
subject to management's review and approval.
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The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as'of September 30, 2021, reduced by amounts
- not iavailable forgeneral use. within one year due to contractual or donor-imposed restrictions.

Cash and cash equivalents'
Receivables for program work

$, 96,4.15,811
44,323,084

Total'flnanciai assets available within one year

Less contractually restricted and donor restricted assets

Total financial assets available to management for
general expenditures within one year

140,738,895

86,737,432

$  54.001,463

The Organization also has two committed lines of credit totaling $8 million, which it could draw upon in the
event of an unanticipated liquidity need.

NOTE N -SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 24, 2022, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. On November 29, 2021, the CEO and
Founder of John Snow, Inc. donated his ownership interest in John Snow, Inc. and its affiliates to the
Organization. Accordingly the Organization became the sole shareholder of John Snow, Inc., as such, it
will be included in the Organization's consolidated financial statements starting fiscal year 2022.
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F>a»fal OrartartPCTa-thfPucfi QrardortPreorOT TWa

U.S. AGDiCY FOR WTERNATKINAL DEVELOPMENT
OiraetOrant;

USMO Foraign AMtoanca lor Program* OvaisM*:
UGANDA NUMAT

NIGERIA TSHIP

SPRING

Advancing Partw*
LNaLaam&PMy

PAKISTAN HSSP

AJOSFraa

TANZANIA CKSS

ZamOiaUSAOOiacovaPlaaa)

TViwr-Laoa RSKS .

Ghana HIV/AIDS

MadagaacarCCH
BuU HaaBiy Cttat
PaUatanlHSS-SD

. USAID Adv. Nuirtton
PartnartNp* Plus
Kyrgyz Cura TubarouloM*
TFATB

0FDACBPMC2

MRITE

CHISU

.  USAJDA.aM MCli'N Actrvtty

Paaa.lhrouoh OrarR:
USAO Fcraign Asaiatanca tor Programs Ovaraaas:

Family HaaSh Intamatl
Fan«y Haalh Mamatl
PR8

HaaraarKlAa«Kalnn.

HaarOarto AEanca ML

John Snow Haalh Zambia

NC8ACLUSA

PSCM

PSCM

Paladlum Iniamalienal

Paiadkjm baanwitonai

Paiadium IniamaBcnal

PaMMar Intamaitonal

Tha Trualaes c# TUFTS Cd

Total Diract Grants-USAtO

EpiCVMMC
EgiC Global'
USAID PRB Momanun X

HAJ NIgaria TMAII
HAJ Nigaria TMA 202CV2021
ZAM-HaaSi Acbvliy
SanagalFTFCdiNul
Globd Fund PPM

PtSCM Claras

DalaFI

lAPHL HP*Grani

HP* lAPHUI.
EMopla TRANSFORM
STOPSpMovar

Total Paas-tfwough Grants- USAD

U.S. AGENCY FOR MTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT • Tatal

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIracI Grant:

Advancing 0|iiam Iwprovamant* tor Kay bsua* in Woman's HaaBi
DHHS Woman* HaaBvNTC

DHHS Woman* HaaRh-NTC

HIV-RaMad TraMng and Tachnical Aasiatanc* •
HR»

HRSA

HRSA '
. ' , HRSA

HRSA

•  HRSA

Famly Planning Parsonnal Training •
FPNTC-SO(

—hr-V" •

•i I

.  . .

HV Magratad Ping
HIV Inlagratad Ping
HIVHagratadPIr^ ^
RWHAPACEHaaHriUI
Planning CKATT t

ICHATT

Aoanev or Pass^hrouoh Numbar

eiT-A-OIMlSOOOOfrCO

e2»AK)04«-00014-00

AID-OAA.A-1140031 '

AK>OAA-A-12-00047

AID-aAA.L-12-00003

AK>-301.A.19-00002 '
AICM)AA-A-14-0004e

Al0«21-A-14-0000(M

AKM11-A-1000004

AID-472-A-16-00001

AI0-641WK-16-00007

AK>687WK-16410001

AICLOAA'J^17-00028

AID-391-;A-17-00002
7200AA18C00070 -

720QAA18CA00032

72011S110CA00001

7200AA10CAd0013 '
720FOAieGR00201.
720QAA20CA00017

7200AA20CA00009

72049821CA0001

CA«7200AA16CA00002

720QAA19CA00002

720QAA20CA00003

72062020CA00001

72062a20CA00001

720ei1121CA00001

720e6518CA00001

N/A

WA

7200AA16CA00004

AlOOAA-A-ISOOOSI

AID<iAA-A-154)OOS1

AC663A1700002

7200AA20CA00032

Fadaral

Asslslanca

Usthwaa

Fadaral.
EspandHura*

Total Suboontract

_gx2#raS8_

ASTWH2000e04>14»

ASTWH20000CM>2<00

Ue9HA30144 -

U6SHA30144-04

Ue8HA301444)S

Ue8HA30143

U69HA390&S

U68HA980e6«1

FPTPA0OeO26^

FPTPA006030 - -

20

06.001 t (1.627) % -

06.001 ' (16.757) -

06.001 (14.612) (14.612)
06.001 (06.215) (TO.SOO)
06.001 a.210) •

06.001 4.865

06.001 (76.270)
06.001 1.300 -

06.001 22.422.542 324.770
06.001 465.067 ,

06.001 4.561.556 1.145.053
06.001 4.416.221 254.615
06.001 1.164.732 463.023
06.001 . 10.000.606 1.500.465

06.001 21.724216 0.703.057
06.001 2.560.072 2465.053
06.001 3.675.035 656.500

M.001 3230.631 1.000.160
M.001 353.540 2.501
06.001 6.781.001 2.846.003
06.001 3.034.431 203.740
06.001 10.378

1

64245.306 20.664.730

06.001 600.332
)

i
06.001 2.175.005
08.001 1.666246
98.001 57.631 1
06.001 410204

06001 256.426
06001 206.067
06.001 3.020
06.001 704.366
06.001 1.606.776
08.001 32.666 ' .

08.001 242.652 16.000
06.001 4.010.626 .

06.001 022.466 -

14266.067 16.800

06.512203
i

20,001.830

03.066 .2275.M1 • 220.000

03.066 5.578 1  •

2261.010 220.000

03.145 . 128.311 - 60.500
03.145 165 • 1

03.145 550.603

03.145 76202

03.145 00.506 43.415
03.145 370,556 0;785"

1226217 157.700

03.260 2.326 1

03.260 2.657.035 .- ■ •  44.000
2.650.361 —• • 44.000
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Fxtfl QrintortP»«>4tiirauoh Qrintof/Proofim Tltto '

HMOh SyMmt Snnotfwnino and HIVMIDS Prtvantton. Car* and TraaOnant •

HRSA RRHO

HRSA RRHO

HRSARRHO

T**naea Pragnarwy PravMtfort Program

DHHS

DHHS

HIV Em«rg*ncy R*i*f Pro^ GrarU:
RWHAPACEHaaRhUi

HIV Car* FotmUa Grants:

RWHAPACEHaaKhUt

Spadat'Protacts ol Nsd^ SlgniAcarK*:
SSC tor PWH and OUO

SSC tor PWH and OUO

SSC tor PWH and OUO

TPP-NTC

TPP-NTC

Aaarwv or Paia^hrouoh Numt>*r •

UH5HA307B9

UHSHA3078Mn

UH5HA3078MM

1 TPSAHOOOCIOe-01-00

TPSAHOOOOOO-02-00

Ue9HA30143-(M

Ue9HA30143^

U90HA33190-01

U90HA3319(K)2

U90HA3319OO3

Fadaral

Asslstanea

LJstlrwst

Total Oiraci Grants- Dapanmani ol HaaKh artd Human Sarvlcas

Pass-through Grant:

Pubic HaaRh Emargancy Praparaitoass:

NH OHHS

Environmantal Pubic HaaRh and Emargancy Rasponsa:
MADaptalPktoHcHaalth

NHDHHS '

HH DHHS

Tachnical and Non-Rrtandal Assistanc* to Haalth Carwrs:

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

Corran HIth Cv CT

CommHIthClCT

PHPSFY21

MDPH Asthma

PHP$19

PHPSPI21

HITEQ

HITEO

HITEQ

HRSA HITEQ ARP

CHCACT Training FY21

CHCACTUDS

AgraarnantQ?.00.20

RFR 500224

AgraamantO7.00.20

AgraamanlQ7.09.20

U30CS293ee

U30CS2936e-06

U30CS293e6

U3FCS41776

AgraamantQO.15.20

Agraamani09.l4.2l

Cooparadva Agraamam to Stataa/Tanltoha* tor ths Coordination and Davatopmant el Primary Car* Cllcas:
StataolUaina -

Wyoming Oapl of HaaRh

RiDapLoiHaMn

ME DHHS HPSA Fy20

WYPCOFY20

RIEPIFY21-2e

ln|ury Pravanllon and Control Rasaarch and Stats and Community Basad Programs •
RlDaptolHaMto RIEPIFY21-28

Community Programs to Imptov* MIrwrily Haalth Grant Program •

Boston Madical Cantor Pioiact RECOVER Eval

HlV-Ralalad TraMng and Tachnical Asslttanca:

NatfonMABanca'olStat ' NASTAD EHE SCP Sito

Nattonal Minority AIDS Co ELEVATE

ChMhood l^ad Potooning Pravanlton Prisiscts. Stata and Local CNHhood Laad Pdsoning
Pravandon wtd SurvaBanca ol Blood Laad Lavals'to ChUdrarT:
' NH DHHS

NH DHHS

Family Planning Sarvtoas:

' UADapLol Pubic Haalth

NH OHHS

NY Dapt ol HaaRh

Mississippi Stata D^ ol HaaRh

PHPSFY21

PHPSFY22

MOPH FP Data Sys

NH Fp'Oata Systam FYIS -
NYSFP Training

MSOH FP Naads Assassmant

. ~Z T Grants to Statas to Sup^ Oral H*^ WorWorc* ActMUas •

■'yji-riLZ:'::-:

Vn"-,:-;'*"

...

v-sCr.

NHDHHS

NH DHHS

Oral HaaRh Promo:

PHPS " •

. Substanca Abusa and Marital Hiafto^^Sairirlea* Projacts of Rsgional and Nattor^ Sgira^^  J- '

L:rs

..1 '-f.r*.;

CDO-20-2215

ORH-0212-D

7607811

7607811

N/A

2020CO-326401-e57

tj69HA39335

Agraam*niQ7.09.20
AgraamantQ7.10.21

1 FPHPA006425-01-00

05-9S-9D-902010-S530

' DOH01-C33229GG-M500

FPHA008475-02-00 '

05-95-90-902010-45270000;
AoraamantQ7.09.20 " <j. •

-  .

•  -Vl's*** I a.t

, V. .A w • S. I

.  Fadaral

Ew*p*tura*

03.266 192.142
93.266 (489)
93.266 578,503

770,156

93.297 1,302,843

93.297 4,035
1,306,678

93.914 (7.560)

93.917 . 275.175

03.928 (651)
03.928 2,104,895

93.928 105,015
2,209.259

10,920,505

93.069 ' 87,793

93.070 65.740
93.070 (400)
93.070 68.115

133,455

93,129 ' 80,258
93,129 051,262
93.129 63,218

93.129 13,950

93.129 591

93.129 663

809.942
J

93.130 32,500
93.130 39,960
93.130 4,990

77,482

93.136 59,480

93.137 28.384

' 93.145 82.327
93.145 60.715

143.042

93.197

93.197 164507
" 203,195

93i17 48,569

93517 3,642
93517 253532

93517 90542

401,685:

93.236 194.546
. 93.230 29.87.4:

1., 224.420

. , -J - . .

Total Subcontract

Exnartsas

I  .

{7.W)

■38.000

359.021
20.^

379,503

I
831,703

40.520
40.520

149.133
30.815

3,906

183,654

-  45,445
' 2625

48.070

70.600
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FadanI nranterlPasMhmtinh OarOorfPrtMiram THta Aoancv or Pass-throuoh Number • 1 htirwM# PvnandHuraa . ' - Eioansas

Acta^otton Comn Oaval ABCDH^/SAEval AgraamanlOt.tt.t9 ' 93.243 -  -24.518'
NHOHKS BOASCanlBrSFYig 92058S01 93.243 622.631- -

SouOl End ConvnunMy SECHCOptalds AgiaaiiiarilOtO.tS.ta 93.243 S7528 -  -

Slonanjra lltalOicwa ' Brockton OSAT AgraamemOtOrt/iA 93.243. ■  47.104 • -

UnlvaaHyotNH SYTTA-UNHSubaaard ' tH7gTloeoi92-Dl 93.243 9.121 •

Rl Dapl of Bav HBhcr Dav PFSFY20 3629405 93543 27.134 •

HartMT Homaa, Inc Harbor Homos TCE MUD AgrenmantOtt.21.19 93.243 25.304
-

Td-Coiny Cornnundy Rl Host Campaignl AgraamariO5.26.20 93543 22.650
-

WoonicAat Ptavandon Rl Host Campaign 2 *[jiaaiiiai40in fl* Tfl 93543 1.064 ;  -
Kam County PravanOon Rl Host Campaign 4 AgraamantO5-t9.20 93.243 272 •

East Bay Ra(^onil Rl Host Campaigns Agraamar«OS-t4,20 93543 10.069
•

Nawpcrt County Pravantlon Rl Host Campaign 9 Agraamantes.14.20 93.243 4.732 1  .

Sout> County Pravandon Rl Host Campaign 7 Aoraamant05.t9.20 93543 4.996 ' •

RX>RES RCARES RCSP Evaluation' Agraamsie03.4,21 93.243 9.643

Rhoda Island Studant RISAS Rl Suicida Prvnion AgraamarV08.4.21 93543 2.854 .

Harbor Hotnat, Inc Harbor Homes GBHl AgraamantO12.4.18 93543 43.019 -  •

912,561 •

manunliatlen Cooparaltva Agraatnaras:
MA DapL o< Pubic HaaBh High Risk Adui tmm CAPACrTYBLDSO0e24MO4 93568 21.643

MA OapLot Pubic HaaWi MIISS«to^Dssk PRF61 93588 383.701

NH DHHS PHPSFY21 AgraamateO70B.20 93.268 41.479 29,623

NH OHMS PHPSFY21 AgraamantQ7.09,20 93.268 16.415

NHOHHS PHPSFY22 AgraamantO7.10.2t 93588 16543 5.146

483,481 34.769

Drug-Fraa Communiias Support Prcgrwn Grards •
Boys A GMi Club o( Scull SoUiapinViisyEvil N/A 93578 6593

East Boston Naiglibortiood E Boston vaps A MJ Prov 1 Agraan>anlO8.4.20 -- 93.278 15339
^1532 -

CbM Davatopman and, SuriaBbica.' Raiaarcfi and Pravanbon •
Aroostook County Action MEJVN Aoreamant07.23.te 93.312- 18071 1  .

Epidamiology and Laboratory Capadly tor Irtfactious Oiiaatas (ELC);
MA Dapi ol Pubic Haatoi MDPHHAIFY20 500824 93.323 152,410 •

MA DapL of Pubic Haaith ' MA DPH Covid Dash Support PRF6t 93.323 125,608 •

NH DHHS SORH NH Proisci Fksiins Agraamant012.1.20 93.323 114.668 •

NHOHHS PHPSFY22 AgraamanlO2.t0.2t '93.323 122,443 •

515,515
•

National and Ststa Tobacco Conbol Preoram
NH DHHS SORH - Com Based Tob Prav AgraamantOt 1.5.20 93.387 156,109 13.400

Pubic HaaDi Emarpancy Rasponsa; Cooparativa Agraamani tor Emargancy Rasponsa: Pubic
HaatoiCriaiaRaapcnsa:

NH DHHS PHPS FY21 AgraamsnlO2.09.20 93.354 628,685

21st Century Cures Act - Pradsien Madktoa toMathfa-
NH DHHS Oral Haaih Promo . 05-95-90-90201CM5270000 93.366 66,822 6,009

Improving tba Haaih of Amaricans teough Pravanian and Managamant of Olabalas and Heart.
Disaasa and Stroke:

CTOapl of Pudfc Haaih CT Chronic Disaasa #20200021 - - 93.426 3125S3 40504
GA Dapl Pubic Haaih ' GA OPH CHW NaiMorli Dav 40500031-21213493 93.426 18.639 1.

MA Oapl of Pubic Haaflh MOPH Oiabaiat 3 PFR 500224 93.426 28560

NH DHHS ^ m m I**-' - - -vnrerac vonoFeoni MuBpla sea notes ' 93.426 53.514 11.660
NHOHHS. SORH CInnIc CcndUm Agmemsnl04.52t'. 93.426 106.812 ',

SlalaofMaina ME rvaJMiatai MsrkMing 1 NUS8OP00eS4S-04 83.426 - 00527 •  .

.. . - . 1, _
■

" 609.705 - 51,864

Every Student Succaadi AcifPfaschoial Oavatopmant Grants
' School Adminisbaiva Unl SAU21 POG 93.434 7,975 •

. IMtadWayofMassBay UWGSNA 2B40 - 93.434 54.445 .  .

.; ■ . . .
62.420 ••

Innovattva Stole and Local Pubic I laaiOi Stratagiat to pravam and Manage DIabatas and Heart *.

Otoaesa and Snka;

. MA OapL of Pubic Haaih '.MOPHDIabalas . RFR 560224 83.435 -68.518 i-
CoforadoOPH Sbaiaglc.Plannino .  93.435 1.484

.' 70.002

,-;,WELL4kTEGRATED SCREENING AND EVALUATION FOR WOMEN ACROSS THE NATION (W1SEW0MAN).
•ts.'JtJii*' tss^ ; NHOHHS' t r.cj.v. ■ -SpRH Chror* Condtions 7=;- • AgreenteniOi.Mt . ' -  - 93.436 * " ■ 35.035

•-T-' ;
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rx>»r>t Qi>iilo«<PM«-thre«jrti QrafitwIProtiwm THt« totncvofP—MhrooQhWiOTbf

F«danl

AMl^tVW* Fadml

EximydHuna

Total St^eontract

eatpowtaa

SuMtanca Usa-OiaorMr Pfovanlion thai Promotat Opioid Racpvary and Traatmant
(SUPPORT) lor Pallanu and CommuniOaa Act •

RlwdPrevldmaPlwiiat RCLAS C^araar PaOwiayt
PPHF: RadH »>d Ethnic Approatfia* id Ccrnnyrtty M i*>i Ptogram flnancad aolaly by PtFde
Pravanilon and iiiawi Ftatdi

LowalComnM^HaaBi LoWalREAOl

3605080-1 03.064 150.854

59.097

75.903

Pravandva HaaRh and HaMi Sarvieaa Block Grant lundad Mtaly «ftt)
Ho«t Fund* (PPHF);

Pravandon and Pubic

MisaourtOp(c4H»t&Sn
Rl Oapl ol HaaRh

Opioid 8TR:
MA Dapi o< PtMc HaaRh
NHAtconciSDruoAbuaa
RlDaptdSavHlhaDav

BC8HFY21

R1EPt2016

SOR and COC Grant '

NHADA NH SOiMant SummR

RIWPDSORFVZO

PaU Covardai NadonM Acula Stroke Program National Cantar tor Chronic Oiiaaii Pravantion
and HaaRh PronwRon •

MADaptdPuMcHaan Covardai Chart FV21
MA Dapt d Pubic HaaRh SFoka Chart AudRa

Capacity BuMng Aaalttanca (CBA) lor High-Impact HIV Pravartion:
CCATELL) ASSOCIATES. MC COC HP Training
CCATELU ASSOCIATES. INC CAI PROMISE HMI TRAINING

Matamal. Irdad and Earty ChMtwod Homa ViaNlrtg Grant
NHOHHS PHPSFY22

Nalotdl BMarroiiam HoapRal Praparadrtaaa Program; .
NHOHHS PHPSFY21
NH DHHS PHPS FY22
VTOapartnantdHaaHh 2020VTCSC

Cancar Ptavaraion and Contrd Pregrarm tor Stata, Tarrttorial and Trbal OiganUaitona:
MA Oapld Pubic HaaRh Proitata Cancar Oiapatity
NHDHHS Oral HaaRh Promo

NH DHHS

NH OHHS

UnivartRy d Varmoni

HIV Cara Formula CSrants:

MA Oapt d Pubic Haaflh
MA Oaptd Pubic HaaRh

SpacMPro^d National Signlflcanca:
National ASanea d Stat '

Naiva Haiiain HaaRh Cara Syatarrra
' UnlvaraitydNH

HIV f>a»ar«lori AdMbaa HaaRh Daparanani Baaad:
.  NHDHHS'

MA Oapt d Pitoic HaaRh
NH OHHS '• -

Chronic CotrdRiona

SOR H Chronic CondRiont

UVMCC PId EvafeMion

PoicyOavEvalOl
FY17 HIV OA

NASTAO • TAVIE Eval Proj

BuMing FuRjraa Togalhar

PHPS FY22 '
FY17HlvaA

PHPSFY21 •

Aaaitlanca Prbgrama tor Chronic DIaaaaa Pravaittlon and Conrct
NH OHHS Chranic CoridWona
tlHOHHS ' ^ ' SORHC^htoricCondi^

Stock Grants tor Pravantion anid Traabnant d Subatanca Abuaa;

CS202519001

7549794

PRF61

BOAS-21-22-SOR

N/A

RFR 500224

PRF61

AGREEMENTQ 4.8.21

AgraamarRQ?.10.21

AQraamarrlfl7.09.20
Agraamafrtfl7.10.21
'39704

500224

05-95-90-902010-15270000

MuRipia' aaa notaa
/^)raartrantfl4.5.21
/^aanrarafl <27.21

CAPACITYBL0500e24M04

PRF61

WA

T26HP39462

Agraamarafl7.l0.2l
PRF61

A|yaamarttfl7.00.20

MuRipla-aaa notaa
Aoraanrantfl4.5.21

93.758

93.758

93.788

93.788

93.788

93.810

93.810

93.834

93.634

93.870

93.889

93.889

93.889

93.898

93.898

93.898

93.898

93.898

93.917

93.617

93.928

93.932

93.940

93.940

93.940

93.945

93.945

46.038

41.678
87.714

383247

43285

JV
404.664

35.587

6

35.593

3.861

66.549

4.159
24.545
29.653

32.677
5.680

33.838
21.648
2,909

96.752

270.158
1.356.370
1,629.528

30,419

25.475

18.044

152M
89.047

,122.347

25.419
5.775

376.067
378.087

24,985

31,194

11,600

11.660

Rl DaparbnarR d Oahavloral llaalBrcara.
OavatoptTiaol DitabRtiaa and HoapRah

RPRCR

Saxuaiy TranamMad Oiiaaaai (STD) Pravantion and Contrd GraM
- MA C^dPttoie HaaRh ' < -MOPH

Pravaniva HaaBt and I laaWi Sarvicaa Stock (jrant

..MitaourrOddHlh&Sn r
'NHDHHs/-'r"

;tr-.r«J-. •v.=r,-3cr.v»Tti

v.:

^ l-ij-r'ri.*. ■ ^

■ ■' '■ '■ i

-.s; i-ii-.ij;'.

CS2Q2519001 *. r-ci r.rv-177-
05<5«>-6O»icMS27pO0O^;^^^^ .

23
"jrafsf;-

MH-

-'.'.IJ V!?.' ■ - ,'

93.959

93,977

93,901

93,991

310,616

.-••13.551
.  I

-■15,489 •

656250 585,377
671.739-1;-' 585,377
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Ymt wtdM St|»t>illbf M. 2021.

F«df»l Or»T«ortP—»-Wirouoh Or»i«m/PiiKii«m THU-

Malamai and CMd HmB> SwvicM Block Gnm e Om StMK
RIDoptafHMRtl RI0>IFY21-26
NHOHMS PHPSFV21
UnlvwtfyOfNH . SHApi

AoawevofPwMhrouQhWuHibar

7007811

ABfMfflanlO7.09.20
Subawwd UI032

Faftaral

Uattnoa §

93.094

03.094

93.994

Fadaral

JSBSSSSaSl—

68.707
64.803
21.312

132.882

Total SMbeonlracl

Expanaaa

Total Pau-dvough Grant*- Daparknonl of Haatft and Hianan SarvlcM

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • Total 30.S2a,77B

V525 098

2.3M.a01

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTKM AGENCY

TSCA TWa IV Staia Load Grant* Cartfcallon of Laad-8a*ad PaH ProfoMionali:
NH DHHS PHPS FY21
NHOHHS PHPSFY22

Agi aan>ani07,09.20
ABraamantO7.l0.21

88.707

88.707

88.397
19,473
85,870

28.330
2,505

30,835

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY - Total 88,870 30.836

SNAP CLUSTER

Paaa4hrou0li GrarM:
Cotnmurity Food Projacta

SpcinBftald Comrnunlty
SNAP CLUSTER • Total

SCGHFP AgraamantOSn (VTO 10.225 20.180
20,180

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
OfractGrard:

Boa«ng Salaty Fbiandal Assiftanca;
U.S. Cowt GuftR)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY ■ Total
Ufa Jackal Study 3319FAN119207 07.012 278 318

278,318 18,080

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Paaa-Otrough Grant:
Education Stabafeatton Fund

NatkxiM Cornmunity HaaSi
Hampton Urdvaraity

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- Total

NCHP Arizona
HMPTN UNIV - VA Wortdorca

Aofflam*niA8.8.2l 84.425
84.425

23,154
147,192
170,348

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

DIract Grant:

Ttio U.S. Praaidanrt EmarBoncy Plan lor AIDS Rataf Program* •
U.S. Stata DapMnant DREAMS OGAC

U.S. DEPARTM ENT OF STATE • Total

S-LMAQM-18-CA-1103 19.020 (80,935)
(80,935)

(83.418)
(83,418)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Paat-lhrough GrarM:
Stata and Community HighMay Safaty-

Rl Dapartrnard of
Offlea of Intarnatlonal Sctanca and Englnaaring- total

Total Eapandtoaaa of Fadaral Award*

RIOOT-PREVCON 20.800 15.404

Ji22L

8  119,8M,250 23,221,830
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JSi Research and:.Training Institute, Inc. and Affijiate
-.-.l -iiii

■.-.iiU

UQjes to schedule of expenditures of fede^ awards
September 30, 2021 ' -

NOTE 1- BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended September 30, 2021. The infomnation in this Schedule is presented in accordarice with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adrninistrative Requirements.
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements. Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.. it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures ar^e recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Negative amounts shown on the Schedule'represent adjustrhents or credits, which management
has determined are not material to the Schedule nor the program to which they relate, made in the
normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Accordingly, such
adjustments are presented on a current basis.

(3) Federal Assistance Listing numbers and pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented
when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT
AUDtriNG STANDARDS

Board of Directors
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the.
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govemmonf Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States {Govemmant Auditing Standards), the consolidated financial statements of JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc. and subsidiaries (the 'Entity'), which comprise '
the consolidated statement of financial position as of SeptemlDef 30, 2021, and die
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2022.

Report on internal control over financial reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we
considered the Entity's internal control over financial reporting ('internal control') as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Eritity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a. .
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, ;
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough i
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for foe limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal ;
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these •
liniitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies In intemal control that i
we conskfor to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant,
defidend^ may exist that were not identified.

r.:.

ii
.  'i rr-r

GT.COMI'I't-rS.

L-.. • •»

GnrtTTwmlonLl.Ptt lha U.S. mtmbar fbm of Gnnt Thornton intwnattontf Ltd (GTIL). GTILandMchoftomembarflnns
iaqtntB la^ anittlas and ara not a «vo«l(Mda 'pariiiarahip.'.'.^;: ■/, ■ " '>

..::7rr:.



-"— rr- •--iVtsTiw.

• -OocuSJgri,Envelope, ID: E189A0CD:MB7-4807-B9OE-4BB3F122FB13; .-"f
V- • u:"

I  •sn.aa'** uir .'r#. », .<* aug"*
1 , -J ■.•-■• ,1,- • . ,-vV r-r^::-; • • • • •'/•'if.--'..V <\

. I .. t •.-t.' ; . , ...h-.-i • r...-{',-i-'. , ■• M-y.
■  ■•'■ • ; -yr^-S.rantlliomtpri

•  v,.w-

•J: p.-.

:i' . •

- j

-I .i.;.

J.'

:■

-.v' ^ •■ ■ '."

i. V .-j.!.
■r;.^» rf

■I

Report on compliance and other matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Entity's consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with tho^ .
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government AudiUng
Standards in considering the Entity's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this.report is not suitable for any other purpose.'

Boston, Massachusetts
June 24. 2022
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MIAHT ItteMNTON LLP

75 StMStrM(.iy Floor
eostorvMA 02100

D *1 817723 7000
W *10177233840

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Report on compliance for each major federal program

Opinion on each major federal program
We have audited the compliance of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the 'Entity') with the types of compliance requirements identified as
subject to audit in die U.S. Office of Management and Budget's 0MB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Entity's major
federal programs for the year ended September 30,' 2021. The Entity's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Entity complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Basis for opinion on each major federal program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance vrith auditing standards
generally .accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS); the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States {Government Auditing Standards); and
the audit requirements.of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Unifonrt Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of Compliance section of our report

We are required to be independent of the Entity and to meet our other ethical '
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Entity's compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above. '

f.r ivV.L.-.
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other matter-federal expenditures not included In the compliance audit ir...- . - .
The Entity's consolidated.financial statements include the operations World
Education,. Inc. ("WEI"), which expendied $29,799,901 in federal awards for the period J . •.
from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, that is not included in the Entity's schedule of |
expenditures of federal awards during the year ended September 30, 2021. Our > - i.
compliance audit,- described in tife Opinion on Each Major F^erei Program section^qfi

w"- •-*' .•
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our report, does not include the operations of WEI becau^ WEI was subjected to a
separate audit of its compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the 0MB Compliance Supplement for the period from July 1. 2020 to June 30,
2021.

Responsibilities of management for compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above .
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effoctive intemal control over
cornpliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions
of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Entity's federal programs.

/u'tn c iLiCi.i .. . --r_. - .."s. -I.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material . ,
noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether
due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Entity's compliance based on our
audit Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with US GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Entity's {
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniforrh Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such i
procedures include examining, on a test basis, eviderice regarding the Entity's |
compliance with ti^e compliance requirements referred to above arid performing'
such Other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. '

•  Obtain an understanding of intemal control over compliance relevant to the audit
.. in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the drcumstances.and

. to test and report on intemal control over compliance in accordance with the
.  Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Entity's intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, no •
•■ '.f ' such^pinion is expressed. .

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regardirig,
among other rhatters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, and any significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in intemal control over compliance that we

. identified,during the audit.- - !:
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Report on Internal control over compliance

A deficiency in internal control over complianpe exists vtrhen the design or operation of
a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing tt̂ eir assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance .
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a •
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakr»ess in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weakriesses or significant deficiencies. Given these lirriitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in the Entity's intemal control over
compliance that we consider to t>e material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance may exist that have not been identified.

I

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

The purpose of this Report on Internal Control Over Compliance is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of intetmal control over compliance and the results of that
testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Li-f

Boston, Massachusetts

June 24,2022
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' V v:tT:; schedule of findIngs andQUESiibNEDcosts • • ;SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

:2' .1

September 30,2021
f

SECTION I • SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS:

Financial Statements

The type of report Issued on vyhether the financial statements
audited were prepared In accordance with U.S. GAAP

Intemal control over financial reporting:

•  Material weaknesses identified?

•  -Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

•  Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Intemal control over major programs:

•  Material weaknesses Identified?

•  Significant deficiency(les) Identified?

Type of auditors'.report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings which are required to be reported under 2 CFR
section 200.51(a):

Identification of major programs:

Federal Assistance Listings Number

98.001

Dollar .threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs:

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?

Unmodified

No

None noted

No

No

None noted

Unmodified

No

Name of Federal Program

Foreign Assistance for Programs
Overseas

$3,000,000

No
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l  i JSI R^earch and.tralnlng Ins^tute. lnc. and Affiliate , t;. i '^

" ^HEDULE OF FINDINGSJAND QUESTIONED COSTST- CC^-nNU^^" - - : ' K
•  September 30, 2021

SECTION II • FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None noted.

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None noted.
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" t"( JSI Research!ah^.Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate V; i .. >
p. i i r ^ STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS Of t i

September 30,2021

Finding
Number Finding Summary Status

.2020-001 Certain Partnership for Supply Chain Management
accounts receivable and deferred revenue
amounts were improperly recorded in the fiscal year
2020 financial statements, prior to being identified and
adjusted as part of the audit process. <

Management has
implemented processes and
controls such that this finding
did not reoccur in 2021.
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Board of Trustees =
"  . T Ken Olivoia, M.C.p:, M-Arch

Alexander K. Baker, MBA International Division
Chief Operating Officer JSI
JSI

3
.-r •

David E. Bloon), MA, Ph.D.
Clarence James Gamble Professor of Economics
and Demography '
Harvard School of Public Health
Chair, Board Audit Committee

Margaret Grotty, MPH, MBA
President & CEO

JSI

Paul Osterman, Ph.D.
Nanyang Technological University (NTU) Professor
of Human Resources and Management
Sloan School of Management at MIT

Mike Useem, M.A., Ph.D.
William and Jacalyn Egan Professor of Management
Wharton School at University of Pennsylvania

Abdourahmane Diallo, MD, MPH
CEO

RBM Partnership to End Malaria

Patricia Fairchild, M.A.
Health Services Division

JSI

Sandro Galea, MD, MPH, DrPH
Dean and Robert A. Knox Professor

Boston University School of Public Health
Chair of the Board
Chair, Board Governance Committee

Carolyn Hart, MSPH
International Division

JSI

Paul Musante
Vice President, Client and Market Insights

, T. Rowie Price, Inc.
• Chair, World Education, Inc. Board
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JSI, 501 South Street. Bow, New Hampshire 03i04 (603) 573-2519 acobb@isi.com

Education

FEMA Ek^oency Management iNSTrruiE, Emmitsburg, Maryland
Mcuter Exercise Practitioner, 2020

Boston University School of Public Health, Boston, Massachusetts
Masters of Public Health in Infectious Disease Epidemiology, 2015
Delta Omega Honorary Society in Public Health

Bucknell University, Lbwisburg, Pennsylvania
Bachelor of Arts in Chemistry, Minor in American Literature, 2009

Trainings

NH Division of Fire Standards and Training and EMS, Concord, New Hampshire
IS-300 Intermediate ICS for Expanding Incidents, 2017

FEMA Emergency Management Institute, Independent Study Coursk (Online)
. IS-IOO.a Introduction to the Incident Command System, 2009
IS-I20.a: An Introduction to Exercises. 2015
IS-I03.a How to be an Exercise Evaluator, 2018
IS-200.a ICS for Single Resources and Initial Action Incidents, 2009
IS-700.a National Incident Management System- An Introduction, 2009
IS-800.C National Response Framework, An Introduction, 2018

Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program, Agawam, Massachusetts
Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program Training Course, 2010

Experience

JSI, Bow, New Hampshire
Consultant, August 2015 to present
Project Associate, August 2010 to August 2015
AmeriCorps*VISTA Member, August 2009 to August 2010

Selectedprojects:
Massachusetts Department of Public Health Patient Placement Coordination Plan & Pediatric Surge Annex
Working with MA DPH OPEM to update Patient Placement Coordination Plan and develop a Pediatric Surge Annex to
MpPH's Emergency Operations Plan. Convening Project Management Teams of key stakeholders to advise the.
edits/development of plans. ' .

New Hampshire Division of Public Health Services COVID-19 Support.
Supporting NH's response to the COVID-19 pandemic as the Contact Tracing & Active Monitoring Branch Deputy
Director. Overeee three units with 5 unit leaders and -50 staff members with the missions of notifying exposed contact, •
monitoring'cases and contacts, and workihg'with businesses to slow the transmission of SARS-CoV-2 around the state;
Recently helped select, test, and implement an electronic contact tracing software; Regular responsibilities include
training new staff members, developing and updating scripts and job aides, and coordinating with others within the
oi^anization structure to make improvements to response processes.

■  ' Massachusetts Department of Public Health Emergency Operations & Recovery Plans Development-'- - --
rj : .. Worked with MA DPH OPEM to.update a depaitmentrwide Emergency Operations Plan and develop a Recovery Annex. - U/.

■ - ™r:-^Facilitatcd collaborative process'witli.MA^PPH staff to develop an Emergency Operations Plan that met thc needs and' -

%:yfrf7-r- .



tii '-■■r -. i'

-—DocuSfgn Envelopie lD: E189A0CD-AbB7-4807-B9DE-4BB3F122FB13

v:.'

?* li' ' ..'•'.s- / . «cs. •«.. s'". v^
-...-v..-. ',, '-V:;-;-"-• • • .

-  V--L-- y< •• ■ 7. ^

r'.v

-v«. v'";

"* r "■ c^cems of all bureaus and offic^jnvolved in a response.
. - - ■''liyiyy-.-r.

-•v t

•r..' i

——rr..v •: -•

• •. ^ .

"i""- .Vf I' ,. 1

■  ■■■

Massachusetts Jurisdictional Risk Assessments

Worked with Massachusette Division ofPublic Health, Office of Prq)aredness and Emergency Management (MA DPH,
OPEM) to design and implement a participatory, multi-sectoral risk assessment process for the six Health'and Medical
Coordinating Coalitions (HMCCs). Project included development of an online suryey for coalition" members to prioritize
risks from a set of nine hazards and assess regional preparedness using a JSI^developed instrument derived from the
CPC's 2011 Public Health Emergency Preparedness Capabilities and the 2016 Health Care Capabilities. Analyzed data
and facilitated in-person meetings wi^ coalition members in each region to review results and plan appropriate
mitigation strategies to reduce risk. Developed toolkit to assist HMCCs with mitigation strategy development and
implementation.

New Hampshire Public Health Emergency Planning Technical Assistance and Training
Lead project to provide technical assistance and support to the 13 Regional Public Health Networks in NH around public
health emergency preparedness, planning, and response. Assess statewide needs to provide technical assistance to all 13
Networks and provide one-on-one technical assistance to Networks upon request. Develop and deliver trainings, plan
templates, and tools on a variety of public health and emergency response topics, including medical surge, standard
precautions, points of dispensing, and public information. Develop," facilitate, and evaluate exercises and real events.
Conducted After Action Report development processes in New Hampshire for 2009 HINl, 2012 Hepatitis C Outbreak,
and 2014-15 Ebola responses. Serve on the planning committee and conference staff for the annual NH Emergency
Preparedness Conference.

New Hampshire Ebola and Emerging Infectious Disease Readiness
Implemented project to improve preparedness of the health care system to identify, isolate, and manage high threat
infectious disease cases. Conducted an assessment of current infectious disease readiness capacity of hospitals, based on
the CDC Infection Control Assessment and Response Program's methodology. Planned and facilitated two
HSEEP-compliant tabletops focused on isolation of an infectious disease patient and transporting an Ebola patient to the
Regional Ebola Treatment Center in MA. Drafted NH's fi rst ever High Threat Infectious Disease Plan and updated state
Ebola Response Plan to address new guidance and findings from tabletop exercises.

Active Ebola Monitoring Program for Low RiskTravelers in Massachusetts
As a consultant epidemiologist for MA Department ofPublic Health, actively monitored incoming travelers from
Ebola-affected West Africa with a low risk of exposure for 21 day incubation period. Role included daily communication
with travelers, entering traveler information into web-based secure surveillance system (MAVEN), and coordinating with
local health departments to ensure continuous monitoring.

S pea re Memorial Hospital High Threat Infectious Disease Plan Development
Work with Speare Memorial Hospital to revise existing plans to incorporate most recent guid^ce on the identification,
isolation, and management of suspect and confirmed hi^ threat infectious disease cases, including protocols for
personal protective equipment donning and doffing, readying isolation rooms, laboratory.sample management, internal
patient transport, and radiology procedures.

North Central Wisconsin Healthcare Emergency Readiness Coalition Exercises
Assist in the development of exercises to assess regional plans, including a workshop to develop plans to meet the needs
of individuals with access and functional needs using the Community Outreach Information Network (COIN) {
frameworic, and tabletop exercises focusing on surge management, fatality management, and critical infrastructure staff'
dispensing. Responsibilities included deigning, facilitating the exercises, and evaluating and developing the After^
Action Report Md Improvement Plan.

MA Region 4AB Critical Staff Di^nsing Tabletop lories •
Led project to design, facilitate, and evaluate a series of three tabletop exercises for local public health staff and their .
critical infrastructure partners.

yts-.rirT... .

"vi r"--

MA Region 4AB Medical Countermeasures Dispensing in Response to Emerging Infectious Disease Workshop i
Technical Advisor on project to develop, facilitate, and evaluate a woikshopfor Region 4AB Board of Health;_;^;ir •.;t:
representatives to strengthen capabilities to 'protect the health and safety of critical staff in public health emergencies. ~<f~
Developed teniplate plan language basedoh'workshop findings.
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Community Health Institute/JS!, 501 South Street, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573r3S00 jstewart@jsi.com.

EDUCATION

Duke University School OF Medicine^ Durham, north Carolina
Department ofHealth Administration, Master of Health Administration, 1986
Department ofBiochemistry, Master of Arts, Biochemistry. 1984

University OF Delaware, Newark, Delaware
School of Arts&Sciences, Bachelor of Arts, Biology, 1981 -

Experience

NH Community Health Institute / JSI Research and Training Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Senior Advisor - 2019 to present; Director - 2000 to 2019

. Provide technical assistance, training and evaluation to health and human service organizations to support the development of
effective public health and health care systems with a focus on sustainable rural health delivery systems.

Selected Technical Assistance & Training Projects

NH Public Health COVlD-19 Operations Center: Co-Branch Director for Epidemiology and Surveillance providing
management of teams and processes for case coordination and review, data analysis and synthesis to support case
investigation and daily reporting of summary information describing the COVID-19 pandemic in New Hampshire.

NH Community and Public Health Development Program: Project Director providing technical assistance and training
support to communities involved in development of improved local public health infrastructure; worked with multiple
partners to develop the statewide New Hampshire Public Health Network.

Community Health Services Network and Partnershipfor Public Health: Community assessment, workgroup facilitation and
plan development for regional integrated behavioral health system as part of a NH Delivery. System Reform Incentive
Payment initiative(II15 Medicaid Waiver). .

HRSA, Bureau of Primary Health Care, Uniform Data System: Trainer and editor for annual Uniform Data System reporting
for the federal Community and Migrant Health Center program.

Boston Metropolitan Area Hazard Vulnerability Assessment: Technical Assistance with Massachusetts and New Hampshire
State Health Ekpartments and regional partners for assessment of hazards, risks and preparedness for health care, behavioral
health and public health infrastructure. . •

Metrowest Community Health Care Foundation (Massachusetts): Capacity and readiness assessment of seven municipalities
in Metro-Boston for developing collaborative models for local public health service delivery.

NH Division of Public Health Services: Project team member providing assistance on development of a Comprehensive HIV
Needs Assessment; role is focused on client and community stakeholder engagement and qualitative needs assessment. ,

Robert ̂ ood Johnson Foundation; New Hampshire Turning Point Initiative: Project Director for multi-year initiative to
. develop sustainable strategies for improved local public health capacity. >

Selected Program Evaluation Projects

Central New Hampshire Health Partnership: Evaluator for two federal Rural Health Outreach Grant Initiatives: the first for
improving care coordination of socially and medically vulnerable populations; the second for improving care transitions fix)m
hospital to home and community. . i

'  "r V Division of Alcohol & Drug Pre\^nti6n<& Recovery: ProjectDinctor for twa\u2i(ioh of state-Wide ATODprevtntion ' "
initiative involving multiple community-based.coalitions implementing a range of programs including family strengthening,
school-based education, mentoring and community action for environmental change. '

Family Planning Private Sector Project (Nairobi, Kenya): OpentionsresearchoncosttftectivenessdndsustzinabiWty of
Y  J!£"i:FP/MCH service delivery sites throughout Kenya to assist USAID in resource allocation d^isipns and.to improve cost.

■>^.;iJf■■^^-recovery capability of clinics. •

• 7 u: .■
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"..T:: '^ selected Research Projects
Endowment for Health: Study of the effect ofNew'Hafnpshire's Community Benefits'Law for Health Care Charitable Trusts. '
Cooperative effort with NHDHHS Office of Heaith Planning and the NH Office of the Attorney General.
Bureau ofHealth Professions (Rockville, MD): Study of the effect of AIDS Education and Training Centers on physician |
attitudes and practices; Comparative analysis of parallel CDC-funded study ofthe general primary care physician population.
Bureau ofPrimary Health Care Delivery and Assistance (Rockville, MD): Study to assess preparedness of C/MHC's to 1
respond to HIV-felated service needs

Bureau ofPrimary Health Care, Rockville, Maryland: Survey project designed to gather information on provider practices in
Community and Migrant Health Services relative to recommendations of the 1988 US Preventive Services Task Force.

National Network ofPublic Health Institutes and Robert Wood Johnson Foundation: Qualitative Assessment of Local and
State Health Officials awareness of, interest in, and capacity to employ computer modeling for emergency preparedness.

North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, New Hampshire
Executive Director, 12/97 to 8/00 Founding Director of rural health network formed by four hospitals, two community health
centers, two home health agencies, a mental health and developmental services organization, and a community action program.
Start-up funding through the Federal Office of Rural Health Policy Rural Network Development program

Ammonoosuc Community Health Services, Littleton, New Hampshire
Operations Director, 11/94 to 12/97 of federally-funded, multi-site rural Community Health Center Network.

John Snow, Inc., Boston,'Massachusetts
Consultant, 10/86 to 7/94 providing assistance in health services evaluation, financial analysis and program management. \

Selected PuBucATiONS | reports

Rosenfeld, LA, Fox CE, Kerr D, Marziale E, Cullum A, Lota K, Stewart J, and Thompson MZ. "Use OfComputer Modeling i
For Emergency Preparedness Functions By Local And State Health Officials: A Needs Assessment". J Public Health Management
Practice, 15(2), 96-104, 2909.

Stewart J, Kassler W, McLeod M. "Public Health Partnerships: A New Hampshire Dance". Transformations in Public Health,
Volume 3, Issue 3, W/«/er 2992.

Stewart, JA, Wroblewski S, Colapietro J, Davis H. "Survey of US Physicians Trained by Regional AIDS Education and Training
Centers". Abstract No. P0-D21-4047; IXth International Conference on AIDS. Berlin, Germany, June-I, 1993.

Kibua T, Stewart JA, Njiru S, Gitari A. "Sustainability and Cost Effectiveness ofFamily Planning Private Sector Subprojects". \
United States Agency for International Development; Nairobi, Kenya, A^arc/j 7999. ,

...+

Selected WORKSHOPS I PRESENTATIONS

Dartmouth College, The Dartmouth Institute, ^H Program, (formerly CECS) guest lecturer - project management^ evaluation,
coalition development. Public Health 101; community health needs assessment; academic review of capstone theses; 2004-2021.
Public Health Performance Improvement - The New Hampshire Experience (with Joan Ascheim, NHDHHS); 6th Annual
National Public Health Performance Standards Training Workshop; Nashville, TN; April 1-6, 2008.

Building the Public Health Infrastructure: State Lessons Learned and Keys to Success, Nebraska Health and Human Services,
Exptindihg Our Vision - Transforming Vital Public Health Systems, Oc/o6cr 2996. i

Building Infrastructure in Public Health: RWJF National Turning Point Showcase Conference, Denver, CO, Mc^ 2004

Selected Boards I Affiliations - -

. 2!lNational Network of Public Health Institutes, Board ofDirectors, 2008 to,2018, Chair, 2014 -.2016 - l-. * i
'- x-New Hampshire Public Health Serviceslmprovement Council, 2995/6presew/ r x -xtTj--;:-::: - .
f NH Prescription Monitoring Prograih, Advisory,Council, 2012 to 2019 • v - ' • Tr ■.
'jij New Hampshire Healthy People 2010 Leadership Council; Co-chair, 200(jfr2002!riy -. -New H^pshire Public Health As^i^(^n;\Treasurer, 1999-2003, B^d-^erhber.2018 to

=jsn
•, -v-,- .vv-
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Name Job. Title Salary . % Paid from
this Contract

Amount Paid from
this Contract

Jonathan Stewart Project Director $189,900 16.15% $30,677
Alyson Cobb PHEP Advisor $98,700' 18.55% . $18,316
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,  r STATE OF NE\Y HAMPSHIRJE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmS/QN OF PUBLIC HEAlTH SERyiCES

,  29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27i-4S01 I*8064S2O345Ezl4S01

Fai: 603*271-4827 TDD Access: I-800-73S-2964
, - www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 18i 2022
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301 .

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division' of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. {VC#161611),
Bow. NH, by modifying the scope of services to include additional public health support services,
by increasir^ the price limitation by $244,906 from $2,836,829 to $3,081,735 with no change to
the contract completion date of December 31. 2024, effective upon Governor and Council,
approval. 99% Federal Funds. 1% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 22,2021, item
#35.

Funds are available in the following accounts for.State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed arid justified.

/See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION i

The purpose of this request is to modify the scope of services to include public healthprofessional support services for the traveler Health Program and School-Based Inspections and
Infection Prevention program, which includes developing and implementing risk and rieeds
assessments; developing training programs and educational materials; planning for statevvideconferences and meetings; providing technical assistance to local partners; and providir>g subject
matter expertise. Additional^, the Department is adding Radon Program.funds to support work in - j
State Fiscal Year 2022, the original contract included the scope of work and funding, for State ^
Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024. |

The Contractor will work with the Department to promote COVID-19 prevention mitigation J,
. measures, including vaccination and other personal protective measures. The Contractor will hold .. vl
a virtual meeting with stakeholders regarding COVID-19 prevention mitigation. measures,
including test and vaccine access, variant surveillance, mitigation measures, and outreach
methods. Additionally, the Contractor will'develop and implement a training program to address . ^

^  Seasonal communicable respiratory diseases prevention in school facility settings, in collaboratioft
municipaljheaith officers, in at least 20 school buildings in each county.>The Contractor will

complete the .training curriculum In collaboration writh the Department by adapting existing;
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educational materials from the NH Department of Education; the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, and other relevant sources.

Tt^ COVID-19 Traveler Health Program, including the education programs and social
media campaigns, is expected to reach New Hampshire residents statewide.

The Department will monitor, contracted services by ensuring the following performance
measures are met:

• A minimum of 85% of participant's rate training programs as not less than Very
Good' in evaluation surveys.

•  A minimum of 85% of conference planning committee member's rate logistical
support for conferences as not less than 'Very Good' in evaluation surveys.

• A minimum of 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as not less than 'Very Good' in evaluation surveys;

• A minimum of 85% of workgroup participants rate elements pertaining to workgroup
logistics as not less than 'Very Good' in evaluation surveys.

• A minimum of 85% of planning group members rate meeting logistics as no less
than. Very Good' in evaluation surveys.

• A minimum of 90% of all requests for high-prionty consultation services are
,  responded to within twenty-four (24) hours.

• A minirrium of 90% of all requests for high-priority technical assistance are
responded to within twenty-four (24) hours. •

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of sen/ices,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is not exercising its option to rer>ew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department's capacity to
provide training, educational materials; and technical assistance information- on COVID-19
traveler health and seasonal communicable respiratory diseases prevention will be significantly
limited.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) #93.069 FAIN
NU90TW22018; ALN #93.354 FAIN: NU90TP922144; ALN 93.323. FAIN: NU50CK000522; ALN
66.032, FAIN 0016233

In the event that the Federal Funds t)ecome no longer available, additional General FurxJs
wrill not be requested to support.this program.

Respectfully submitted,

gweaigweeir:

(IbUA. (V. l/Mjbru
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- Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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<S-4S-M>90151P-742S HEALTH AND SOCIAL SEftViaS, OCPT Of HEALTH AMO KUMM SVS. HHS: OMStON OF PU^ HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC
HCALTHPftOnCTtON.ENVIRONMCI^ALPU8UCHCALTH.TRACiaNGPROCRAM t

AIN 93.070 FAIN NUC1EH0013$7 LOOK FEDERAL FUNDS

suit FbcM Yew Cbss/Account OauTltlt Job Number Curront Budgat .  (ncraisa/OKraRM RmtSKl Budgat

2022 102'S00731 Contract! for ProR Svc 90041000 515,000 .  SC S15.00C
. 2023 1C2S00731 Contracts (or Prot Svc .  90041000 S15.000 SO SlS.OOO

2024 . I02-S00731 ContfTCU for Proi Svc 90041000 SlS.OOO SO SIS,000

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Pr0| Svc 90041000 SlS.OOO sc SlS.OOO
SubteCof S60.000 so $60,000

•• (

OS-9S-90.901S10.S390 HEALTH AND SOOAL SCRVICES. DCPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: OIVlStON OF PUSUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC
HEALTH PROTECnON. FOOD PROTECTION 37K GENERAL FUNDS. S3H OTHER FUNDS

SUta FtscsJ Year 0»ss / Account OauTttH lob Number - Current Budget Incraasc/Decraasa Revbad Budgat

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog SVC 90000022 $7.sa SO S7,S00
2023 102-S00731 < Contracts for Prog Svc 90000024 SlS.OOO SC SlS.OOO

2024 1C2-S00731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000024 $15,000 so SlS.OOO

202S 102-S00731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000024 SlS.OOO so SlS.OOO

SlAt9t«i $52JOO so S5EJ00

OS-SS-SO-SOISIO-TSM. HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERViCCS. DCPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PU8UC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUSUC
HEALTH PROTECTION. LEAD PROnCTlON . AIN 93.197 FAIN NUE2CH001457 lOOK FEDERAL FUNDS

SUU Fiscal Ytar Class/Account OassTltlt Job Number Current Budget iTKrcase/Oecresse Revbed Budget

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 529.333
n

S29.333

2023 102-S00731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 S6S.000 sc S6S.C0C

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prot Svc 90036000 s&s.ow sc S6S.00C

202S I02-S00731' Contraas for Prog Svc 90036000 S32.SOO sc S32,SOC

Subterof S190J33 so $190,833

05-95-90-901510-7904. HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DCPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC
HEALTH PROnCTION. LEAD PROTECTION CFOAfi&fiOS FAIN BC00A0O73I lOON FEDERAL FUNDS

State Fbcal Year Class / Account Class TItIt Job Number Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revbed Budget

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90039022 SS0.730 SC -  S90.73C

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90039022 . S92.16S SO SS2.16S

2024 102-500731 Contracu for Prog Svc 90039022 SSS.734 sc S5S.734

2025 102-S0073I Contracts for Prog Svc 90039022 S27.867 so 527.867

Subtotal S24S.496 so $248,496

0S-9S-90.901$10-$39^ HEALTH AND SOCWL SERViaS. DCPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBUC
HEALTH PROncnON. RADIOLOGICAL HEALTH ASSESSMENT. CFDA'SSJ>32 FAIN 00162332 lOOK FEDERAL FUNDS'

State Fbcal Year Class/Account OassTRte • Job Number . Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revbed Budget

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90C3S100 SO S60.00C 560.00(1

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90C3S100 $40,000 SC S40.00C

2024 102-S00731 . . Contracts for Prog Svc 9003SI00 540.000 sc 540.006

202S 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 9003SIOO $20,000 sc S20.00C

' Subtotal SlOOfiOO $80,000 Si60.000

3.

>r

OS-SS-BO-SOSSlO-llU. HEALTH AND SOOAL SERVICES, DCPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISipN OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF..:'i, _ 1
- -EMERGENCYPREPAREDNESS RESPONSE. KO^AlWPARfDNISS; ALN934t9 FAINU3Rpi90$«0.100* FEDERAL-'

State Fbcal Year Class/Account OassTRta' -v:;'--: . ' Job Number CurrentBudgM Increase/Oecrease Revbed Budget

2022. .. 10^S007^1 Contracts for Program ScrWes 90077700 • .. SlO.000 i:"".- r . SO .1 i.-,'. sioiooo
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2023 074-SOOSt9 Gnnts for P^ Asu and Relief ' 90077700 •$10,000 '  50 sio:ooo

2024 D74-SOOS89 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief , 900777W • •  - $20,000 SO $20,000

202S . 074.SOOSB9 Gnnts for Pub Asst and ReDcf 90077700 . SID.OOG SO $10,000

Subtefof S50.000 $0 $50,000

"  ,
■  - ; '

0>-9>-90^SS10>lll4, HEAim ANO SOOAl {{ItVICES, OCFT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SV^, »<HS: DIVlStON.OF PUMJC HEALTH BUREAU OE
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS B RESPONSE. PH EMERGENCY MlEFAftEONESS, AIN93.06B EAiNNU90TRBZ2018 .

69K FEDERAL RINDS. ILK GENERAL FUNDS

State Fbcei Year Cta»/Acceunt QassTRIe Job Number Current Bud|ci Incrtase/Oecrease Revised Budttt

2022 074-S0OSt9 Gnnts for Pub Asst and RcOef' 90077410 $57,500 $10,026 $67,526

2023 074-500SS9 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90077410 $11S,000 $0 siis.oa

-2024 074-S0OSB9' Gnnu for Pub Assl'and ReBef 90077410 $11S,000 $0 SlLS.OOG

202$ 074.S00SB9 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90077410 $S7,SOO $0 $57.50C
Subtoto) S34S.OOO 510,026 $35S^2S

0$-9S-9O-9O2SiO-249S. HEALTH ANO SOCIAL SERVICE. DC^ OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVS, HHS; OCVIStON OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF
INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, ARP IMMUNIZATION, ALN 93.268 FAIN NHZilP922S95 LOOK FEDERAL FUNDS

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title lob Number Current Budget Incrvase/Decnase Revised Budget

2022 102-S00731 Contracts for Prot Svc 90023800 SISO.OOG $0 $150,000

2023 102-S00731 Contracts for Prbt Svc 90023800 SSO.OOO $0 550,000

2024 102-S00731 Contracts for ProR Svc 90023800 sso.ooo $0 550,000

SubtPtoJ 5250,000 50 $250,000

0S-9S-9O-9O2S1DSI78. HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OCPT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF
INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. IMMUMZA-nON,

AIN 93J6t FAIN NH23iP922S9S LOOK FEDERAL FUNDS

Sutc Fiscal Year CUss/Account OassTHIe Job Number Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Budget

2022 074-SOO5S9 Grants for Pub Asst aiHl Relief 90023320 550,000 $c sso.ooo

2022 102-500731 Conincts for Program Services 90023320 575,000 sc $75,000

2023 074-500589 Gnnu for Pub Asst and Relief 90023320 550,000 sc $50,000

2024 074-500589 Grarrts for Pub Asst and Relief 90023320 $50,000 $G $50,000

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief •  90023320 $25,000 .  $0 525,000

'Subfotef $250,000 $0 $250,000

0S-95-90-902S1D-2229. HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF
WFECnOUS DISEASE CONTROL PHARMAaUTKAL REBATES, LOOK OTHER FUNDS

State FbcalVcar. Class / Account Class Tttle Job Number Current Budget increasc/Oeaease Revised Budget

2022 102-S00731 Coruraas for Pr^ Svc 90024600 5100,000 $0 SIW.OOO

2023 102-500731 Contracu for Prog Svc 90024600 5200,000 $0 $200,000

2024 102-500731 Contracu for Prog Svc 90024600 $100,000 $0 $100,000

202S 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024600 5100,000 SO $100,000

'  Subtotef $500,000 SO jsoaooo

0S-9S-90-902SlD-753<. HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS; DfVIStON OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF
INFECTIOUS OlSEASE CONTROL STD7WV PREVENTION. ALN 93.940 FAIN NU62PS924S3B LOOK FEDERAL FUNDS

;-nCTi-/..-tftiis^

state Fts^ Year Class/Account OassTWe Job Number. Total Amount Increase/Oecrease Revised Budget

2022 D74-S00SS9 Granu for Pub Asst and Relief. 90024000 SS2.000 SO 5B2.000

2023 274-S005S9 Grants for Pub' Asst and Relief 90024000 $l64.00a SO $164.0«

2024 374-S00SB9 Gnnu for Pub Asst and Relief 90024000 -  $164,00o! $0 $164,0a

2025 374-500589 Granu for Pub Asst and ReDef 90024000 $82,000 SO $82.00C

-  Subtotal $492,000 SO $49^000
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OS-S^MSOlO-tMl. HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICU, DEI^ Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; DjVlSlpN OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OP--
lAflORATORV SERVICES, ELC CARES C0V1D.19

ALN 93.323 FAIN NU5OCX0OOS22 lOOK FEDERAL FUNDS

i.... .. 1.

state Fisc»l Year Oats/Account Cats Title Job Number Current Budget Increese/Oecrease Revised Budget -

2022 102-500731 Contracts for.Proi Svc 90IS3518 $300,000 SO S300.00G

'  " Subtotel S300,000 SO SJW.Wff
.

0S'9S-90-903$10-2448 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICZS, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, KHS:OIVISlCN Of PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OP
EMCRCENa PREPARATION AND RESPONSE, PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS RSP-ARP

Am 93JS4 FAIN NU90TP922i44 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State Fiscal Year Class / Account CUss Title lob Number Current Budget Increase (Decrease) Revised Budget

2022 102-S00731 Contracts for'Prog Svic 90027500 SO 520.000 S20.000

2023 102-S00731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027500 SO $75,200 S7S,20C
Subtotal so S95.200 595,200

OS-9S-90-9030-2$4B41EALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF
LABORATORY SERVICES, ARP TRAVELERS HEALTH PRO!

ALN 93.323 FAIN NUS0CIC000S22 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State Pitcel Year Class / Account Clau Title Job Number Current Budget Increase (Decrease) Revised Budget

2023 102-S00731 Contracts (or Prog Svc 90183558 SO S79,68D 579,680
Subtotal SO $79,600 579,680

Total 52336,829 S244306 S3.0B1,73S
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

-r-.

■ This Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services con^t is by and between the State
^ <^. New Hampshire, .,D^artment of Health and Human Services ("State" -or "Department^ antf JSI
^ R^arch & Training Institute, Inc. d/Wa Commmity Health Institute ("the Contractor'^

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "ContracT) approved by the Governor and Executive Council :
on December 22.2021. (Item #35), the Contractor agre^ to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A, Paragraph 1.3, .
the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and '
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing arid the mutual covenants and cortdHions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,081,735

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Section 1.9.3.1 to read:

1.9.3.1 The Contractor shall provide access to E-Studio, a web-based collaboration system, in
collaboration with the Department.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services by adding subsection 1.3.10 Traveler Health Program to read:
T3.10 Traveler Health Program

1.3.10.1. The Contractor shall conduct, outreach and education activities regarding'COVip-19
testing and vacdriations for the following stakeholders:

1.3.10.1.1 Travel industry leaders.

1.3.10.1.2 Civil surgeons or other health entities.

1.3.10.1.3 Traveler health clinics.

1.3.10.1.4 Other key stakeholders.

1.3.10.2 The Contractor shall: ,

1.3.10.2:1 Coriduct stakeholder outreach. ir>cluding, but not lirrjited to. . '
1.3.10.2.2DevelopeducationalmaterialsonCdVID-19trave|erheatth, induding,butnot .

limited to brochures or other printed materials.

1,3.10.2.3 Conduct one (1) virtual meeting with Stakeholders on the topics that may
include, but are not limited to. resource dissemination, test and vaccine -
access, variant surveillance, mitigation measur^, and outreach methods. j

.  1.3.10.3. The Contractor shall plan and implement social media campaigns that shall include:

1.3.10.3.1. COVID-19 prevention and mitigation measures; which includes but are not , :
limited to vaccinations and other-personal protective measures. ;

— -II 3-10.3.2. Testing requirements for individuals visiting or returning to NH.
T.3.10.4.: The Contractor shall support the Department's Traveler Health CommuriitadorisI^^afist by. providing logistic^r.:^uppbrt_.a^ coordinatiori^fiplp; least one (1) yirtua1.;tra^jr^7|:;^

jsi Reseai^'&'Tnttning institute, Inc. d/b/a Co^unity Institute A-^.V-2'%=^p^'-Contractor
- - 4* • .. . • •. it 5/19/202
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program tailored to the above Stakeholder groups.
4. .Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Seivic^ by adding subsection 1.3.11' School-Based Inspections and

Infection Prevention to read:

.13.11. School-Based inspections and Infection Prevention
1.3.11.1. In collaboration with municipal health officers, the Contractor shall develop and
implement a training program to address seasonal communicable respiratory diseases
prevention in school facility settings in up to 20 school buildings in NH. The Contractor
shall:

1.3.11.3.1. Develop and submit a work plan for Department approval within 30 days of
the effective date of Amendment #1, which shall Include project deliverables, timeline,
and responsible parties.

1.3.11.3.2. Develop a training cum'culum, in collaboration with the Department, by
adapting existing educational materials from tt^ NH Department of Education, the
Caters for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), or other relevant sources. The
training curriculum shall include:

1.3.11.3:2.1. A slide deck.

1.3.11.3.2.2. Factsheets.

1.3.11.3.2.3. Respiratory disease prevention checklist.
1.3.11.3.2.4. A school inspection checklist.

1.3.11.3.2.5. Olhermaterials, as needed.

1.3.11.3.3. Design a set of trainings based on adult learning principles to ensure the
target audience gains relevant knowledge, problem-solving skills, and confidence to act
1.3.11.3.4. Coordinate and conduct up to four (4) virtual or in-person training events
annually for municipal health officers.

1.3.11.3.5. Evaluate all training programs to measure competencies of participants,
including, but not limited to, as a pre- and post-surveys to measure participant knowledge,
skills, and confidence to act.

1.3.11.3.6. Collaborate with the Department to Implement the school Inspection and
prevention project within 20 school buildings in order to prevent the spread of seasonal
communicable respiratory diseases and improve workforce skills.

1.3.11.3.7. Collaborate with the Department to evaluate the project for changes in
process and outcome measures, lessons learned, and complete a final report that details
the activities and findings of the intervention.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms. Section 1. to read: . . " '
1. This Agreement is funded by:

. 1.1. 2% Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response, as awarded on May
20, 2021. by the United States Department of Health and Huiiian -Services (HHS), CFDA

-  93.070, FAIN# NUE1EH001357-04. . ," " "

1.2. - 8%, Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Projects, State and Local Childhood
Lead Poisoning Prevention and Sun/eiiiarice of Blood Lead Levels In Children, as awarded
on 8/5/2021, by the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). CFDA
93.197, FAIN# NUE2EH001457. ' ; -

1.3.'^ 10%, Performance Partriership Grants, as awardedjon 7/14/2021, by the
Stat^ Environmental Protection Ageh^ (EPA), CFDA 66.S05.iFAIN# 8000100731. -wS

r} JSI Research S Tuning Institute. Inc. d/b/a Comrnunity Heaim Institute-V^>: A-S-1.2 : ;L;:r.^.-:;Contractor Initials ■ r vii
5/19/2027^^i:'r=''i:-r.fv
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1.4." 7%, Stale Indoor Radon Grants, as awarded on 9/13i/2021, by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), CFDA 66.032. FAIN# 00162332.

1.5. 2%, National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program, as awarded on : .
7/1/2021, by the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HNS), CFDA '
93.889; FAIN# U3RE0190580. . :
1.6. . 10%, Public Health Emergency Preparedness, as awarded on 5/12/2021, by the ,
United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), CFDA 93.069, FAIN#.
NU90TP922018

1.7. 10%. Immunization Cooperative Agreements, as awarded on 3/31/2021, by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), CFDA 93.268, FAIN#
NH23IP922595.

1.8.- 9%, Immunization CooperativeAgreerrients, as awarded on 7/1/2021, by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), CFDA 93.268, FAIN#
NH23IP922595.

1.9. 19%, HIV Prevention Activities Health Department Based, as award^ on 3/8/2021,
by the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), CFDA 93.940,
FAIN# NU62PS924538. '
1.10. 16%, ELC Enhancing Detection Funding, as awarded on May 18, i2020 by the
Center for Disease Control & Prevention (CDC), CFDA 93.323, FAIN# NU50CK000522. I
1.11. 5% Federal Funds. Public Health Emergency Response, as awarded on May 18,
2621, by the.United States Department of Health artd Human Sen/ices (HHS), CFDA 93.354,
FAIN#NU90TP922144 ' '

1.12. 2% General funds.

'6. Modify Exhibit B. Payment Terms, Section 3. to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-49. Amendment #1 Budget, which is
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.l!.

7. Modify Exhibit I Business Associate Agreement In it's entirety with Exhibit I Business Associate
Agreement Amendment #1, which is attached hereto arrd incorporated by reference herein.l

•,?ir!&^rRe8Mreh'&'Training Instilute. Inc. d/bfe Community Health lnsetute;^^?-;yAW:V2";>, Contractor
j"^.i^RFA;2p22:DPHS-05-PU8L(C-0r-A0l;y::;.\- J^ Page 3 of 5. ' ' ■
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All tetms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in.full force and effect
This Amehdmwt shall be effective upon Gpvemor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

' State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/19/2022

Date
t_077l8Bft)Rr0iC7_
Name: lain watt
Title:

Deputy Director - dfhs

5/19/2022

Date

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community
Health Institute

.  OmwSI«m« ky:

twifiu UAtiA

Title:
Katie Robert

Di rector
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and |
execution.

. OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/24/2022

Date Name;
Title:

Robyn Guarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Coundl of
the State of New Hanipshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

7 .- c
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Exhibit"C:45AmiBndment#1 Budget'r -v

New Hampshire Department of Health and Humari Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: JSI Research &. Training Institute, Inc.
Budget Request for: HAI

Budget Period July 1, 2022 ' June 30, 2023
Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 27^68%

Line Item

1. Salary & Wages

2. Fringe Benefits

3. Consultants

T. Equipment

S.fa) SuDOlies«Educational
S.(b> Supplies > Lab
5.(0) Supplies - Pharmacy
5.(d) SuDDlies - Medical
5.(e) Suoplies Office

6. Travel

7. Software

6. (a) Other - Marketing/Communicatio
8. (b) Other - Education and Training

:) Other - other (specify below)
other (please speaty)

Meeting & tvent txpenses
other (please specify)
Other (please specify)

9. subreapient u>ntracts

Total Direct Costs

Total indirect costs

TOTAL

Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

$24,321
1

$11,406

$0

$0

JO
iO
$0
$0
$0

$0

$0

$0
JO

30
$30.000

JO
$0

$0

$65.727

$13.953

S79.68ol
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Comp/efe one budget form for each Oudget peWod.

CoryXrador Hanie: JSI Research & Training Institute, inc. . .

Budget Request for

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

Public Health Erjwrgency Preparedness

Apiil 1,2022-June 30. 2022

17.51%

Line Item .  . Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $0

2. Fringe Benefits $0

3. Ccmsultants $0

4. bquipment $0

5.1a) SuDolies - Educational $0

5.1b) SuiX)lies-Lab $0

5.fo) SuDDlies - Pharmacy $0

5 td) SuDolles • Medical $0

5.(e) SuDDlies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)
bducation a outreach $8,270

Other (please specify) -  $0

Other (please specify) $0

other (please specify) $0

8. Subrecipient contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $8,270

lotaiindirect Costs $1,756

TdYAL $10,026

rt?'icvsrw-^^t n

£.' iT:'! '

■'.•<•-.■. i l; ; •%

' 1 • **« ^ •. _

li-yjT '
i-.'. '-V- .Jit »■. Uv!->--.yve- ••«. .

•j ■ ■

Date—-'extractor Initials

•.; tur -tf
.  • i/i !A'*.
-  Ml

■» •rr.ri.ni'tit?!



• -"-. i.r.. V

'• ••
pocuS|gn€nveJope ID: E189^^MB7-4807-B9DE^.BB3F122FB13;yj2 ̂

i^W.viOocuSlgn Envelope ID: EACC241&6726-«D45-9ie3-3A3888E46E8£>. v«..!i

fiV;! Exhil^^C^7,Amerxln:«ht#l Budgetjnr:;^

v.: .....-.!. ^;RFA-2

.  . u.

d22-bPH^5WBUlC^i;A01
-{•-•<•. • •V' ■■ I

New Hampshire

Complete <

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Department of Health and Human Services

ynp bttdget form for each budget period..

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Public Health Crisis

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)

Aprill, 2022-June 30. 2022

17.51%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $11,162

2. Fringe Benefits $5,235

3. Consultants $0

4. bquipment $0

5.(a) SuoDlies - Educational $0

S.fb) SuDDlles - Lab $0

5.(ct SuDofies • Pharmacv $0

S.fdt SuDDlies • Medical •  $0

5.(6) SuDDlies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other • Marketing/Communications $0

6. (b) Other - bducation and Training $100

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
orner ipiease specify) $0
utner (please specify) $0
Uttier (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

B. Subrecipient contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $16,498

Total indirect Costs $3,502

TOTAL $20,000
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Seivices-

Complote one budget form for each budget period.

Coiitractor Narhe: JS/Research 4 rra/n/ng/nsWuf©. Mc.

Budget Request for: Public Health Crisis

Budget Period July 1, 2022 • June 30, 2023

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 27.68%

Line Item

1. Salary & Wages

2. Fringe Benefits

3. Consultants

T equipment

5.(a) Supplies - Educational

S.fb) SuDOlies - Lab

S.fc) SuDDlies - Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) iSupDiies Office

6. Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketingycommunicatio
8. (b) Other - Education and Training
8:(c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other {please specify)
other {please specify)

other (please specify)
Other (please specify)

9. subreapient uomraas

Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs

TDT5C

Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

$35,726
3

$16,756

$0

$0

$0

30
$0

$0

$0

$300

$0

$0

$1,000

$0

$0

$0

$0

$10.000

$63.782

$11.418

$75.2001
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one,budget form for each budget period.

Coniracior Hame: JSI Research & Training Institutb, Inc.

Budget Request for:
Budget Period

.  Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)

Radon

April 1, 2022 - June 30, 2022
17.51%

Uneltem Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $25,182

2. Fringe Benefits $11,810

3. Consultants $0

4. bquipment $0

S.fa) SuDoltes • Educational ■  $0
5.fb) SuDDlies-Uab $0

5.fc> SuDoIies - Pharmacy $0
5.(d) SuDOlies - Medical $0

S.fel SuDolies Office $0

6. Travel' $0

7. Software $0

8. .(a) Other < Marketing/Communications $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training .  . $0
8. (c) Other ♦ Other (specify below)
Meetmg/1 raining ijosts, h*romotion, sn/pj $12,500

Utner (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $49,493

. Total Indirect costs $10,507

■  TOTAL $60,000
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BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT ■

The, Contractor identified in Section TS of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
("Agreement") agrees, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accouritability Act,
Public Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individuallyldentifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act. Title XIII,
Subtitle D, Parfe 1&'2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009,42 USC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2,42 CFR
Part 2, (Part 2), as any of these laws arxt regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Business Associate' shall mean the Contractor and its agents who receive, use, or have
access to protected health information (PHI) as defined In this Business Associate
Agreement ("BAA") and the Agreement, and "Covered Entity' shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

b. The following terms have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH Act, and
Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time:

"Breach." 'Covered EntityP "Designated Record Set," "Data Aggregation,"
Designated Record Set," Health Care Operations," HITECH Act," "Individual."
"Privacy Rule," "Required by law," "Security Rule," and "Secretary."

c. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA, means
protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to the information
created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity, and
includes any Part 2 records relating to substance use disorder, if applicable, as defined
below. .

d. "Part 2 record' means any patient "Record." relatir^g to a "Patient," and "Patient Identifying
Information." as defined in 42 CFR part 2.11.

e. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards .
Institute.

Updated - 2.28.22 . ;;

■  •
vr»»v»tr.

r.' zv.

Chn-.-TV.'---"'--

v-v.

:raz-

.it J

?r .v.'-t •v-r

r.J

- -

■ vvvr--.:



: - ' ^ : <■ • 1 . .V- . • ' " • - -tk/.-i _ i • trJ

'^§!9"^"^'9P®J'^;^^®®^^'^A0B7-4807-B9DE-4BB3Fi22FBi3;y- - r::'-'':' ' I-' I-i™.:::':. r:
•- . .■!' •. .t -r. .--vV- • - - ■ -L •-?■ - :s. > -Envelope ID;'EACC241^M7?8^D45.fl183^3A38B9E45E8e- -r. r,vs.-ft-.-. ...

.' New Hampshlre'ipartment of Health and Humaii^n|fces_^ ' : •'''

■  • (2) Business Associate Use and Di^losure of Protected Health information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as readably necessary to provide the services outlined under.
Exhibit B, Scope of Services.jOf the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including
but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA ar^ 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit PHI in,
any maryier that would constitute a violalion of HIPAA a 42 CFR Part 2.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable:
I. For the proper mar^ement and administration of the BusinessAssociate;
II. , As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph c. arwJ d.

below;
III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard; and
IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered

Entity.

c. ' To the extent-Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor, prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement with the third party or
subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and ensures that all requirements and
restrictions placed on the Business Associate as part of this BAA with the Covered Entity,
are included in those business associate agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not, disclose any PHI in response to a request or demand
for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it is required by
law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity cari determine how to best
protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure, the Business Associate agrees
to refrain from disclosing the PHI and shall cooperate with the.Covered Entity in any effort

.  the Covered Entity undertakes to contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other
legal process. If applicable relatirig to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist
any efforts to access part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) Oblkaatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. . Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to preverit unauthorized .
use or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule and Security.Rule
with regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer at
fhft fQllowIng email address. DHHSPrivacvOfficer@'dhhs.nh.qov after the Business ,
Associate has determined that any use.or disclosure not provided for by its contract,

,  . including ariy known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach has occurred j

updated-2.28.22
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Exhibit I

r >,

potentially exposing or compromising the PHI; This includes inadvertent or accidental
uses Of disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected'Kealth information.

c. In the event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
' Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and regulations .
and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time it beconries aware of any known or suspected privacy or security
breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the Covered
Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

I. The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

II. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received'the
protected health information;

III. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed; and
. IV. How the risk of loss of confrdentiality to the protected health

information has been mitigated.

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion of its
incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to the
Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business Associate's
investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the US Secretary of
Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the Business Associate's and
the Covered Entity's compliar>ce widi HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, and
Part 2, if applicable.

g. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and
conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to
return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section (3)n. and an agreement that the
Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party.beneficiary of the Business.
Associate's business associate agreements with Business Associate's intended
business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this BAA, with rights of
enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed
by standard provision #13 of this Agreenr>ent for the purpose of use and disclosure of.
protected health information.

5> .

'■y-'

h. . Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all.:£x~i^;:
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records, books, agreements,- policies and procedures relating to the use anddisclosure
of PHl.to the Covered Entity. fpr purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the Agreement.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) business days.of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related to
any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a. request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHl in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

I. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting,of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

m. inthe event any Individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n. Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, ^e
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity. all PHI
received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in ariy form or
platform.

I. . If return or destruction is noUeasible, or the disp^ition of the PHI has , V
. been othenwise agreed to In the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit
further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the

:  fn:-:. return or destructiori;infeaslble for as long as the Businew Associate
..A-
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maintains such PHI. If Covert Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that
the Business Assodate destroy ariy or all PHI, the Business Associate
shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has t)een destroyed. - i '

.  if - . . .

(4) ObllQations of Covered Entity -

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. A current version of Covered Entity's Notice of Privacy .

Practices and any changes thereto will be posted on the Covered Entity's website:
httDs://www.dhhs.nh.Qov/oos/hiDaa/Dublications.htm.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation ,
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals ^ose PHI .may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFRSection 164.506
or 45 CFR Section 164.506.

c  Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 9 of the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the
Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's I

, knowledge of a material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate the Agreement or

- provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach vrithin a ^
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. ^

(6) Miscellaneous ^

a. ■ . Definitions. Laws, and Reouiatorv References. All laws and regulations used, heran,
shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A reference in . . l.
the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2,
means the Section as in effect or as amended.

•jZ
.f.n

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is ,
-  - necessary to amend the BAA, from time.to time as is necessary for Covered Entity . . -

and/or Business Associate to comply with the changes in the requirements of > . ^
^ -HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other applicable federal and state law. . . .. -

• -r-:^ -J
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Data OwnershiD. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.'

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the BAA and the Agreement
shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate to comply with
HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2. . :

Segregation. If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared seyerable.

Survival. Provisions In this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) n.l., the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) g. and Paragraph 13 of the
General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate Agreement.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State
^^—OawSlgnH br.

1  uk44-
sfiKSittTf^'STAuthorized Representative

lain watt

Name of Authorized Representative

Deputy Director - ophs
Title of Authorized Representative

5/19/2022 . i.

Date

isi Research & Training institute. Inc.

Nan^9,ftfj^\e,j:ontractor

^—rM»wiri>M«>>-i — —
Signature of Authorized Representative

Katie Robert

Name of Authorized Representative

Oirector.

Title of Authorized Representative

5/19/2022

Date .
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVtSfON OF PUBLIC HEMTH SERVICES

nHAZEN DRIVE, COtNCORD. N)4 03301
(03.27MS01 1-I00-053-334S Ext 4501

Fai: 603-271-4127 TOD Aceeu: 1-800.735-2964

www.dbluj)h.|ev

December 7. 2021

His ExceDency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
. and the Honorable Council
State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department'of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (VC#161611-B0001).
Bow. NH, in the amount of $2,836,829, to provide a broad range of public health support services,,
with the optioh to renew for up to four (4) additional years, effective January 1, 2022 or upon
Governor and Council approval, whichever Is later, through December 31, 2024. 77% Federal
PufTds^ 4% Genefal Furids. 19% Other Funds (Pharmaceutical Rebates and Food Protection
Fees).*

Funds are available In the foliowing accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide a broad range of public health professional
support services that includes, but is not limited to: developing and implementing risk and needs
assessments; training programs; developing educational materials; planning for large statewide
conferences as well as smaller meetings and conferertce; providing technical assistance to local
partners: and providing subject matter expertise.

All New Hampshire residents may be reached through these efforts, specificaDy the
education programs related to radon, lead poisoning, and Immunizations.

The Contractor will provide support to the following programs:

•  Public Health Preparedness ~ Professionals trained in emergency preparedness
and response, including disease Investigations, contact tracing and training
programs for public health responders. .

•  Radon Program-Development and delivery of stakeholder engagement; public
outreach and education, and an Inventory of existing municipal policies and

•  ordinances. .
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•  Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program-Ongoing outrea«:h •
and education to stakeholders thm indude medical providers, families fn/ing in pre-
1978 properties wHh chBdren 72 months and younger, contractors, and landlords.

•  Immunization Program - An Immunization Coalition with the goal of developing
education and outreach tools for medical professionalis and the general pubTic.

•  HIV Prevention Program - Procurement, management and self-tesdng HIV kits
and other prevention supplies to indiylduats artd develop and maintain an online

'  ordering system to request these items.

•  Food Protection -Food Service Establishment training for inspections in
municipalities that are classified as selfH'nspecting.

The Department will monitor contracted services by ensuring the following performance
measures are met:

•  A minimum of 85% of participant's rate training programs as not less than Very
Good' in evaluation surveys.

•  A minimum of 85% of conference planning committee member's rate logistical
support for conferences as not less than 'Very Good* In evaluation surveys;

• A minimum of 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as not less than 'Very Good' in evaluation surveys.

i  ■ '
•  A mininuim of 85% of workgroup participants rate elements pertaining to. workgroup

logistics as not less than 'Very Good' In evaluation surveys.

•  A minimum of 85% of planning group members rate meeting logistics as no less
than Very Good'in evaluation surveys.

•  A minimum of 90%-of all requests for high-priority consultation services are .
responded to within twenty-four (24) hours.

• A minimum of 90% of all requests for high-priority technical assistance are
responded to within twenty-four (24) hours.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Applications (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from Octot>ef 6.
2021 through November 8. 2021. The Department received one (1) response that was reviewed
ar\d scored by a team of qualified Individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A Of the attached agreement, the parties have the optipn to extend
the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon ^trsfactory deBvery of services.
avaBable fundlrtg,- agreement of the parties, artd Governor and Council approval

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there wiO be a reduction in
the capacity to provide training to a range of public health partners ort multiple health topics; host
large scale conferences; develop plans to evaluate the effectiveness of services; develop and ^ ^
produce educational materials; ar>d provide technical assistance to local and state parlrters. u.

Area served: Statewide.

Sourw of Federal Funds: . Assistance Listing Number CFDA 93.070, FAIN# :
NUE1EH001357.04;CFDA93.197,FAIN#NUE2EH0014S7;CFOA66.605.FAIN#BG00A00731; i
CFDA 66.032, FAIN# 00162332; CFDA 93.889, FAIN# U3REP19D580; CFOA 93.069. FAIN# :" . ! - : " ir

'• wj 1 • r i v .i-n"

-.— :

- :-j

-

-'•Uiisii-,? .-.rvLv- II
■c:.f



■ :3 -vj car.

;V

I-

.  •. . - TT.. .--sc.-Su- .T. 'ijcnUis

ensign Envelope ID: E189A0CD^B7-4807-B9DE-4BB3F1MFB13- •

Docu^nEnvek>pelb: EACC24lE:flb6^C)45.9183-3A3eB9£!«EBE ' ... i

/Oocu^ Envelope 10: M323EC24£BF-4B^EBC^0Amw
A.,..: •• •

—• ; Hl$ ExceDenqr. Governor. Chitstopher T: Sunonu
. andthe.HortorobleCouncll •
Page 3 of 3.

•7^

■ V- - li
•rt--- .

■  •A.n.—'i .i

■JS ■
•• i-. c".''

■  ; ;;

NU90TP922016; CFDA 93.268. FAIN«^ NH23IP922595; CFDA 93.268. FAIN# NH23IP922595;
CFDA 93.940. FAIN# NU62PS924538: and,CFDA 93.323. FAIN# NU50CK000522; . .

In the event that the Federal or Other Fimds become no longer ayaSable, additiohal
General Fimds will not be requested to support this request.

Respectfully, submitted.
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Lorl.A. Shibinette

C^missioner
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05 95-9^90X510-7426 HEALTH AND ^lAL SERVICES, DERI OF HEALTH AND HUMAN HHS: PUBUC
HEALTH OlVi ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH TRACKING PROGRAM CFDA 93.070

■ FAIN NUE1EH00X3S7.04 lOOH FEDERAL FUNDS

State Fiscal Year Class / Account .  Oiss Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 102-S00731 • ;Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $15,000

2023 102-500731 'Contracu for Prog Svc 90041000 $15,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $15,000

202S 102-500731 .Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $15,000

1  Ill Subtotal $60,000

05-95.90-901510-5396 HEALTH AND SOOAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
OF PU8UC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PU8UC HEALTH PROTECTION, FOOD PROTECTION 37H GENERAL

FUNDS, 63H OTHER FUNDS

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Oass Title Job Number Total Amount

.2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog SVC 90000022 $7,500

2023 • 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90P00022 $15,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $15,000

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $15,000

Subtotal $52,500

• - -i -

05-95.90.901510^7364, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBUC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD PROTECTION CFDA

93.197 FAIN NUE2EH0014S7 lOOH FEDERAL FUNDS.

State Fiscal Year Qass / Account. Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 102-500731 . ■Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $28,333

.  2023 102-S00731 . Contracts for Prog Svc 9003GOOO $65,000

2024. 162-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $65,000

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $32,500

Subtotal 5i90,fi33

05-95-90-901510-7964, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBUC HEALTH PflOnCTION, LEAD PROTECTION PPG

CFDA 66.605 FAIN BG00A00731 100% FEDERAL

Class / Account Class HHe Job Number Total Amount

2022- 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038022 . $80,730

■  ; 20a 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038022 $82,165

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038022 555,734

2025 102-500731' Contracts for Prog Svc . 90038022 $27,867
SubtotoJ $246,496.00 .-...r-;'. • 'V-
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05-95-90-90U10*5391, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, RADIOLOGICAL HEALTH

. • .

.. r-'*

., i... ii ?.
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ClassTltle

2022 102-500731 . . Contracts for Prog Svc, 90035100 SO

. 2023 102-500731 90035100 $4,0.000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc '  90035100 $40,000

2025 102-500731 90035100 $20,000

Subtotal $100,000
einrt rwvt

05-95-90-903S10-llUi HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU Of EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPONSE, HOSPITAL

Class Title

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90077700 $10,000

■ 2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief $10,000

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90077700 $20,000

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90077700 $10,000

Subtotal $50,000

05-95-90.903510-1114, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPONSE, PH EMERGENCY

PREPAREDNESS, CGDA 93.069 FAIN NU90TP922018

i---

Class / Account Oass Title job Number

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90077410 $57,500

2023 074-500589 .. Grants for Pub Asst ar>d Relief 90077410 $115,000

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90077410 $115,000

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90077410 $57,500

■HMH Subtoro/ $345,000

05-95-96.902510-2496, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUM^ SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFEaiOUS DISEASE CONTROL, ARP IMMUNIZATION. CFDA

Oass / Account -  Class Title Job Number

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023800 $150,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc . 90023800 $50,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023800 $50,000

L .. Subtotal $250,000

. 05-95.9O-W2S10-S178, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT Of H^TH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:.
. DMSIONOF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION,. ;

.  CFOA9lZ68.FAtNNH23IP92259S IDOK FEDERAL . ' .
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Class Title Job Number Total Amourit

2022 074-S00589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief. 90023320 $50,000

2022 102-S00731 Contracts for Program Seivlces 90023320 575,000

2023 074-S00589 Grants for Pub Asst .aod Relief 90023320 $50,000

2024 074-SOOS89 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90023320 .  $50,000

202s 074-500S89 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90023320 $25,000

:  Subtoto/ $250,000

05-95-9D-902S10-2229, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT Of HEAITM AND HUMAN SVS, HHS;
division of RUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES,

ICON OTHER

State Fiscal Year Class / Account aass Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 102-500731 Convacu for Prog Svc 90024600 $100,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024600 $200,000

2024 102-S00731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024600 $100,000

2025 102-S00731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024600 $100,000

• Subtotal $500,000

05-95-90-902S10-7536, HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, STD/HIV PREVENTION, CFDA

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90024000 $82,000

2023 074-500S89 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90024000 $164,000

2024 074.S00S89 . Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90024000 $164,000

2025 074^500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief 90024000 $82,000

Subtotal $492,000

05-95-90-903010-1901, HEALTH AND SOOALSERViaS, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS;
DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF LABORATORY SERVICES, EIC CARES COVID-19

.u-TTjr.s-. j ,

rPDA 93. EDERAL

Oass / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90183518 $300,000

—■■rnwiifrifiTWiiiniMitr Subtotal $300,000

Total $2,836^29.00
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Subj«i:_PubIic Health Professional Support Services (RFA'-2022-DPHS-05-PUBLIC)_

Notice: Thii element and all of its ettachmenls'shall become' public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for opproval. Any information that 'is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identired to the agency and agreed to in writing prior.to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The Slate ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIO.NS

_L IDENTIFICATION.
1. i State Agency Name "

New Hampshire'Oepanmeni of Health and Human Services'

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1J Contractor Name

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

501 South Street, 2nd Fl
Bow NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

(603)57313300

1.6 Account Number

See attached.

1.7 Completion Date

December 31,2024

1.8 Price Limitation -

12,836,829

1.9 Contraaing OfTicer for State Agency

Nathan 0. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signattjre
y ' Vr;

RpU/Jt Dalea2/6/2021

1.12 Name and Title of Comracior Signatory
Katherine Robert

Director

1.13 Stale Agency Signature
.  DtwIU"** >T'

I  TtXi^ Date: 12/6/2021
1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Patricia M. Tilley

l.tS ApprovaTb^heRH. DepanmentofAdministration, DivisionofPersonnel fi/opp/icob/e/

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execut'ion) f(fopp//co6/<^

12/7/2021

1.17 Approval by th^G6V22n^^^ Executive Council (if appticob!^
G&C Item numb^: Gd^C Meeting Date:' '

'i* .

.! '.Fi.-r-r
.

i-.s-1:

7:" rtiVift,*.

'nr^iC/
■

; .Pagclof4 A-.a;,;.
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Contractor Initials
r. ^712/6/202 i
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1. SERVICES TO BE PCRFORMEO. The Sutc of New
Hampshire, sctmg through the agency identified in block I.)
("State**), enpges contractor tdentified in block 1.3

' ("Contncior**) to perfonn, and the Contractor shall perform, the
wort or sde of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorpoi^ed
herein by reference ("Seiviccs").

3. EFFECTIVE DATEyCOMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the appro'ol of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, arxl all obligations ofthe parties hereunder, shall
become cfTedive on the date the Governor' and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block, 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall • become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2'If the Contra^or commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, oil Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the EfTeclive Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Ccnirector, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effeciive, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitai'ion, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs Incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete ail Services by the Completion Date
specifted.in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
Mnirary, all obligations of the Slate hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding, for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a.reduction or termination of appropriated-funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such ftmds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this.Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
eyent funds in that Account ere reduced or unavailable; -

i

5. CONTRACTPRICE7PRICE LIMITATIOIS/
PAYMENT.
5. i The contract pricej method ofpayrrtent, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which, is incorporated herein by reference.
9.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Conlractor for all
expensics, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and; the. complete

V* X*' f *• ' <

:C 4.

... . .-

■ ■SA'"' 1, . .. .
-—I' r 'I.-.. I.-"

compensation to the Conlractor for the Services. The Suie shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract prke. •
5.3 The State reserves the right to o^set from any amounts
dtherwise payable to the Contractor under thi^Agrecment those
llquklatied amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA S0:7'
through RSA S0:7-€ or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the,
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no'
event shall the total of all payments authoriacd. or actually made'
hereunder, exceed ^ Price Limitation set forth in block I .t..

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNm'.
6.1- In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Conlractor shall comply >vith all applicable statuiea, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal •
autl^ities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal i
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is •
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal e.xecutive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules,'regulations artd guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also.comply with all applicable intellectual
property Ia>v8.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shal l not
discriminate against employees or applictnis for mployment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex. handicap, sexual i
orientation, or itaiionql origin and will take affirmative action to I
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Slates

. access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this

. A^enrent.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel -
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged 'in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and '
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicablclaws. .
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the terrri of
this Agreement, and for a .period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the.Contractor shall not hira. and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other pei^; firm oi;
corporalion with whom It is engaged In a combined effon to ;
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employe •
or official, .who is materially involved in the procurement
administration or performarfoe of this Agreement. . This '
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement: .
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any, {
dispute coneeralng the interpretation of this Agreement, the ;
Contracling Cflicer's decision shall be find for the State. [

•;.4.^:!y7W-■Pagc 2of4
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.8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more, of the following ecu or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on

. .• schedule; . '
. 8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

• • 8.1.) failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
•  this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defoult, the State may
takeanyone, ormore, orall, ofthe following actions:
6.2. t give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied widtin. in the absence of
a greater or lesser speclflcaiion of lime, thirty (30) tlays from the
date of .the notice; and if the Event of Oc fault is not timely cured,

terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice.of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Eveni of
Defauli 'and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the ponion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of stKh notice until such lime as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Defauh

shall never be paid to the Contractor,
. 8.2.) give the (^tracior a writlen notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the Slate may
owe to the Contractor any damages the Stale suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; on^or
8.2.4 give the Contractor o written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of Its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any ̂subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver.of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions liemf upon any further or other Event of

. Default on the pan of the Contractor.

9.tERMINATI0N.
9.1 Norivithstanding paragraph 8, the Siaie may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason. In \vhole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days written notice to the'Contractor that
the State is cxercising'its option to terminate the Agreernent
9.2 In the event of an early termination of ihii Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Seririces, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliv^ to the
Contracting Officer, not later than nfteen(IS)daysaftcrlhedate
of termination, a repon f'Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the diste of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and nuntber of copies of the Termination Report shall

' be idenfical to Ihose ofany Final Report described in the atiKhed
:■ EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Slate's discretion, the Contractor
!'?sImJI, within IS days of i^ice of early termination, develop and

'  •.•vi-i-; .V-. ■i > K i'iw-i; la ^. iKl -T. - -liVs-ist-

•  v.-.-:-? i fiy.fr'

wrr:
rrr
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Submit to the State a Tradition Plan for'services under the,
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.
10.1 Asused inthisAgrtemeni, the word "data** shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, bin not limited to, all studies, reports. i
files, formulae, surveys, rhaps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reprodtictions, drawings, analyses, graphic
represenialions, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and dbcuatents, ail v4veiher
finish^ or unftnish^.
10.2 All data and any property.vrhich has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for thai purpose
under this Agreemtni, shall be the property ofthe State, and
shall be rcturrred to the State upon demand or upon termination ,
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Conndenliality ofdaia shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9t>Aorother existing law. Disclosure ofdaia requires '
prior written approval ofthe State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an indepeitdcnt contractor, and is rteither an agent nor ah
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTicers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any briiefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. .

12. ASSICNM ENT/DELECATlOr^UBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
Interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (IS) days prior to
ihe assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of .this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Chaise of Controf* means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of rtlat^ trenstctlons in
whkh a third party, together wi.th iu affiliates, become) the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50H) or more of the
voting shares or similar equi^ interests, or combined voting;
power of Ihe Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of ihe assets of the Contractor.'
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the I
Contractor without prlo'r written ctorice ond consent of (he Stale. '
The Slate is entitled to copies of all subcontraas and ossignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or im assignment agreement to which it is not &
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise c.xempted by law, -
Ihe Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
offieeri end employees, from and against any and all claims, .
liabilities and costs for tiny personal injury or property damages,
paieni or copyright infringemenit, or other claims asserted against I
the State, its officers or employees, whkh arise out offor^jtkh = •_
may be claimed to ari'se out oO the acts or omissibn,^the >

^  ■ . ■ ■ ■ I ^
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'-.Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
' negligence, reckless or mtentional conduct. The State shall not

be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing hemn
contained slull be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign

' immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby rexrved to the
State. This covenant' in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

U.lNSURANCe.
M.I The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and

■ ccininuousiy .maintain in force, and shall r^airt any
subconuactor or assignee to obtain and maintairi iii force, the
following insurance:
M.l.i commercial general liability insurance against all claims

.  of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounu of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in on amount not less than
80% of the wtole. replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described In subparagraph M:l herein shall be
on policy forms pnd endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Oepanmeni of Insurance, and'
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractof Shall furnish to the Contracting OfTtcer
identined in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a ceni(icate(s)of
Insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtif1cate(s) of insurance
for all rentwal(s)of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than (en (ID)'days prior to the expiration date of each,
insurance policy. The ccnificatefs) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be anached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS*COMPENSATION. 1
ISll By signing (his agreement, the ContrKior agrees, certifies
and warrants thai the Contractor Is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requiremems ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("lyorkers'
Compensation
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RS.A chapter 281-A. Contractor shall maintain,- and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure, and maintain,
payment of Workers* Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuwt to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the extracting OlTtcer
identified inblbck 1.9. or his or her successor, proofofWorkers*
Compensation in the manner desc^bed in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcnewal(s) thereof; ivhich shall be
anached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers*
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers*' Compensation laws in connMtion with the

L-r'pcrformance ofthe Services under this AgtMnKni-

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have beenduly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage, prepaid, in a United States
Post Ofllce addressed to the parties u the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement maybe amended, waived'
or discharged only by an instnimerit in writing signed.by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendmdtt,
waiver or discharge by (he Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstance^ pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE.OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement ^11
be governed. Interpreted and consinied in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors^
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording'
chosen by the parties to e.tpress (heir mutual intent, and no rule
of ̂ struction shall be applied against or In favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exchisivt jurisdiction (hereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS; In the event of .a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT.
A) and/or attachmems and amendment thereof, (he terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

.  I

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to'
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the'Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated!
herein by reference.

23. SEVCRABILITY. In the event any of (he provisions of ihist
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining proyisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counierpaits, each of which shall be
deemed an'original.-consiiiut^ (he enilre- agreement and
understanding between the paitiei; and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandir^ tvith respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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Publk Health Professional Support ^rvices.(RPA-2022-DPHS-OS-PUBLiC}.

■  .Account Numbers:

OS-95.90.901510-7426

05-95-90-901510-5390

05-95-90-901510-7964

05-95-90-901510-7964

05-95-90-901510-5391

05-95-90-903510-1113

05-95-90-903510-1114

05-95-90^902510-2496

05-95-90-902510-5178

05-95-90-902510-2229

05-95-90-902510-7536

05-95-90-903010-1901
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Servces

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

1.2. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and subject to
the approval of the Govemor and Executive Council of the State of New

Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17. this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties hereunder, shall become effective upon G&C approval or January 1,
2022, whichever is later. .

1.3. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon. satisfactory delivery of
services, available'funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Govemor and Executive Council.

1.4. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12;3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have, written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreerrient and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor perfomriance.
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New Hampshire Departmentof Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

EXHIBIT B

V f ■■ t' .vyI

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contract

i>.:V
Jl---
m-y

or shall provide a broad range of public health professional
support ^rvices Including, but not limited.to:
1.1.1. Conducting needs assessments to determine specific professional

.  development needs.

1J.2. Developing and Implementing prevention-focused training prograrns;
1.1.3. Providing logistical support for conferences and meetings.
1.1.4. Providing technical assislance ensuring subject matter experts are

available to the Department and its Contractors.

1.1.5. Developing educational materials.
1.1.6. Developing and implementing evaluation-plans.-

1.1.7. Assisting the Department with updating strategic plans.
1.1.8. Ensuring the efficient use of resources.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services to increase the capacity of local, regional
and state-level public health practitioners to provide high-quality public health
services by:

1.2.1. Coordinating an'ongoing community-based human immunodeficiency
vims (HIV) planning group; , '

1.2.2. Developing and implementing a variety of training programs;
1.2.3. Developing evaluation plans;'

1.2.4. Facilitating several conference planning groups and providing
logistical support services for these conferences; and

1.2.5. Providing technical assistance to the Depaltment and its Contractors, .
as determined by the Department.

1.-3. Evaluation of Needs Assessments and Development and implementation
of Integrated Planning Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation &
Care

.  1.3il. HIV Corhprehensive Needs Assessment (HiV-CNA|
.  , 1.3.1.1. The. Contractor shall review the completed, published FY 2020 H1V_. ..

Comprehensive Needs Assessment (HIV^CNA), as provided by the :*
Department, and ensure that it is in compliance according to the CY ..
2022-2026 Centers for .Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 'y
Division of HIV/AIDS Prevention (DHAP) and Health Resources and

, Services Administration (HRSA) HIV/AIDS Bureau (HAB) Integrated.•i.-U
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New Hampshire Department of Health ar^i Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

EXHIBIT B

Prevention and. Care Plan Guidance, and the rules, regulations, arid -
policies outlined by the HRSA. the CDC. and the Department.

1.3.1.2. The Contractor shall Incorporate the HIV-CNA into the NH integrated
HIV Prevention and Care Plan development, including:

1.3.1.2.1. Information from the most recent HIV^NA regarding People
Living v^ith HIV/AIDS (PLWHA) as well as from their families

- and caregivers In order to identify common themes and trends
outlined in data includir^, but not limited to:

1.3.1.2.1.1. Qualitative feedback from the needs assessment; and

1.3.1.2.1.2. Survey item responses previously conducted with
targeted statewide populations including, but not limited to,
individuals who:

1.3.1.2.1.2.1. Are in or out of HIV medical care: and

1.3.1.2.1.2.2. Have comorbidities that may include, but are not ■
limited to. tuberculosis, sexually transmitted
diseases, Hepatitis C. mental illness, and/or
substance use disorders.

1.3.1.2.2. Priority PLWHA population data included in the needs
assessment.

1.3.1.2.3. Services identified In the inventory of resources are
accessible, available, appropriate, affordable, and acceptable
to PLWHA. The Contractor shall;

1.3.1.2;3.1.1. Estimate how much of each service can be
provided; and

1.3.1.2.3.1.2. As^ss how. well providers provide services.
including expertise of agency staff and its
accessibility;

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable responsibilities,
outlined in the HRSA National Monitoring Standards, as Instructed
by the Departrnent.

The Contractor shall ensure the HIV-CNA Report complies with
needs assessment principles and strategies outlined in the Ryan
While HIV/AIDS Program Part B Manual and by the Department. ^
The Contractor shall review and include in the NH. Integrated HIV,
Prevention and Care Plan development, all specific components as
outlined and detailed by HRSA, the CDC, and the Department^
including, but hot limited to: ..

1.31.3.

1.3.1.4.

1.3.1.5.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services * r-\
Public Health Professional Support Services

EXHIBIT B

•  -. -f. ' ■ ••'-■- • . •
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_  1.3.1.5.1". Eptdemiologic Overview;
1.3.1.5.2. HIV Care Continuum;

1.3.1.5.3. Financial and Human Resources Inventory;

1.3.1.5.4. Assessment of Needs, Gaps, and Barriers;

1.3.1.5.5. Data Access. Sources; and Systems; and

1.3.1.5.6. Epidemiological Profile Report.

1.3.1.6. The Contractor shall review HIV surveillance data, as provided by
the Bureau of Infectious Disease Control (BIOC).

1.3.1.7. The Coritractor shall review and include in the NH Integrated HIV
Prevention and Care Plan development process, the FY 2020
epidemiological profile report including:

1.3.1.7.1. Pertinent information including, but not limited
to. prevalehce. incidence, and unmet need data by;

1.3.1.7.1.1. Age.
1.3.1.7.1.2. Gender.

1.3.1.7.1:3. Race/ethnicity.

••1.3.1.7.1.4. Transmission mode. .

1.3.1.7.1.5. Geographic.area.
1.3.1.7.1.6. Desaiptive trends in HIV and associated

com'orbidities since case reporting by
name began in-2005.

1.3.1.8. The Contractor shall ensure the profile that projects the status of the
HIV epidemic, statewide, over the next three (3) to five. (5) years,
includes comorbidities whic*h may include, but are not lirhited to:
1.3:1.8.1. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STDs).
1.3.1;8.2. Tuberculosis (TB).

1.3.1.8.3. Hepatitis associated with the HIV/AIOS epidemic in NH.
1.3.1.9. The Contractor shall review and incorporate into the New Hampshire

Integrated HIV Prevention and Care Plan development process
comrnunity population estimates which include, but are not limited to:
1.3.1.9.1. The number of Individuals diagnosed and living with

HIV/AIDS within each Public Health Region;
4i * • f .V

1.3.1.9.2. A comparison of the fate and percentages for the state;
and "• "
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New Hampshire Department of Heallh;^and Human Services . , •" : ; i\™ '
Public Health Professional Support Services

EXHIBIT B

1.3.1.9.3. A description of lr>dlvidualsat-risk for HIV infection based
on rates of sexually transmitted diseases.

1.3.1.10. The Contractor shall review and evaluate options for rneeling sen/ice

needs by:

1.3.1.10.1. Maximizing identified resources;

1.3.1.10:2. Identifying barriers to resources; and

1.3.1!10.3. Overcoming identified barriers, including-coordinating
Ryan White and HIV Prevention services with other,
health care delivery systems.

1.3.1.11. The Contractor shall present recommendations for improving service
delivery, bridging gaps, and reducing duplicat'ive services within the
Ryan White and NIB Prevention service delivery syslern. as
appropriate. The Contractor shall: .

1.3.1.11:1. Provide.a written assessment of service gaps and unmet
needs, in an electronic format acceptable lo the
Department, for Department review and approval upon a
mutually agreed timeframe.

1.3.1.12. The Contractor shall make recommendations for future gap analysis
with emphasis on perceived and unmet needs statewide. The Contractor
shall:

1.3.1.12.1. Develop a strategy for meetmg training, education, and
capacity needs of HIV providers, as identified by the
assessment of service gaps and/or unmet needs.

1.3.1.12.2. Provide a written strategy for meeting the needs of HIV
providers, as identified by the .assessment of service
gaps ar>d unmet needs, in an electronic format
acceptable to the Department, for.review and approval
no later than August 31, 2022.

1.3.1.13. The Contractor shall make an in-person or virtual, as mutually agreed

upon, presentation on the final Epidemiological Profile report to the
Department no later than June 3D. 2022.

1,3.2. Integrated HIV Prevention and Care Planning . , i

: =-v,: . 1.3.2.1. TheConlractof shalliocorporatethe HIV-CNA1.1 38describedv: ■ ;
in Section 1.6.1. into.the New .Hampshire Integrated HIV.
Prevention and Care Plan development.

_  1.3.2.2, The Contractor shall conduct the following activities: ,
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1.3.2:2.1. Coordinate stakeholder engagement, . including'
logistical planning of meetings and distribution of

.  minutes and information ais needed.

1:3.2.2.2. Maintain documentation of project in a shared,
secure file with OPHS.

1.3.2.2.3. Coordinate quarterly meetings, including all
logistics for all project and stakeholder.'meetings.

1.3.2.2.4. Comply with the rules, regulations, and policies as
outlined by HRSA, Department, and BIpC.

1.3.2.3. The Contractor shall comply with legislative and programmatic
planning requirements as outlined in the HRSA National
Monitoring Standards, and as instructed by the-Department.
Universal, fiscal, and program monitoring standards, and NH
CARE Standards of Care are available through the Department
and at: httDs://vwvw.dhhs.nh.qov/dDhs/bchs/std/provider-
info.htm.

1.3.2.4. The. Contractor shall:

1.3.2.4.1. Review funder requirements (CDC and HRSA) for
a Statewide Comprehensive ^ Integrated HIV
Prevention and Care Plan, available through the
Department and online at:
httpsi/hab.hrsa.gov/siles/default/files/hab/progra
m-grants-managernent/intergrated'hiv-guiclance-
6-2021.pdf.

1.3.2.4.2. Review available and relevant literature and data
for HIV services in NH, including the Statewide
Coordinate Statement of Need (SCSN) and the

. HIV National Strategic Plan. %
1.3.2.4.3. Share literature and data with key stakeholders,

collect feedback, and make recommendations for
plan deliverables.

1.3.2.4.4. Develop a five key,phases of integrated planning
'  to ensure objectives are met

.1.3.2.5. The. Contractor shall determine . and plan submisstori
requirements including a final published report according to the
CY 2022-2026 CDC D.HAP and HRSA HAB Integrated
Prevenllon and Care Plan Guidance (see Checklist. Appendix
1  for yprojec^ outline) which' can - be reviewed at
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1.3.3.

1.3.4.

1.3.5.
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httos://hab.hrsa.Qov/sites/defaijlt/files/hab/proGram-<irants^
manaaement/inteQfated'hiv-Quidance-6«2021.pdf.

Environmental Public Health Tracking Program .

1.3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide loglstical support, Including by
not limited to: meeting planning, participant list
development, invitation creation and distribution, meeting
hosting, and a written summary for at least one focus group
to conduct user testing of National Environmental Public
Health Tracking (EPHT) Network data products that will
guide future product development.

Development and Implementation of Prevention*Focused
Training Programs General Training Requirements
1.3.4.1. The Cohtractor shall consult with the. Department subject

matter experts to develop and/or Implement program-
specific training programs for all programs described in this
Contract.

1.3.4.1 The Contractor will ensure training programs are based on
aduH learning theories utilizing various training modalities In
order, to maximize reach.

1.3.4.3. The Contractor will ensure training modalities Include, but
are not limited to:

1.3.4.3.1. In-classroomA/irtual sessions.

1.3.4.3.2. Web-based training. .

1.3.4.3.3. Traln-the-trainer sessions.
1.3.4.3.4. IDPICSS.

1.3.4.4. The Contractor shall assist with maintaining ongoing
Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation and Care
Services Section (IDPICSS) provider training programs In
consultation with lOPICSS as defined in Section 1.13.1.

Food Protection Section (FPS) -

1.3.5.1,. The Contractor shall. In consultation with FPS staff, develop
training curricula and standard operating procedures for

" FPS slaffand Food Sen/ice Establishinent(FSE) inspectors'
in municipalities that are classified as self-inspecting.

1.3.5.2. The Contractor shall, in consultation with FPS staff, develop
training curricular for staff from stale agencies who conduct
food safety. Inspections as on component of a more
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EXHIBIT B

comprehensive operational inspection for Deparlrnent staff.
1.3.5.3. The Contractor will, in consultation with FPS staff, develop

training curricula for Food Service Worlters Including, but not
limited to. Individuals who work in or for;

1.3.5.3.1. Restaurants.

1.3.5.3.2. Retail food stores.

1.3.5.3.3. Schools.

1.3.5.3.4. Caterers.

1.3.6. Public Health Emergency Preparedness
1.3.6.1. The Contractor shall develop and implement training

programs for Regional Public Health Network (RPHN)
emergency preparedriess coordinators, either in-person or
web-based at the direction of the Department, including but
not limited to:

1.3.6.1.1., New Hire orientation.
1.3.6.1.2. Continuing education.
1.3.6.1.3. Operational Readiness Review (ORR)

requirements.

1.3.6.2. The Contractor shall , develop and implement training
programs for individuals who are engaged In regional PHEP
planning and response including, but not limited to:
1.3.6.2.1. Slate employees.

1.3.6.2.2. Local municipal officials.

1.3.6.2.3. Healthcare preparedness personnel.
1.3.6.2.4. Volunteers.

1.3.6.3. The Contractor shall provide, logistical support for
Lat>bratofy Response Network Trainings sponsored by the
Public Health Laboratories, as needed.

1.3.6.4. The Contractor shall participate in the State Training and
Exercise Program (STEP) workgroup that is convened by

... . - • - the Department.

1.3.6.5. The Contractor shall support the Bureau of Emergency
Preparedness" Response, and Recovery (BEPRR)
Volunteer Coordinator as requested. Responsibilities may

1= . , .rj;. include, but are not limited to: - . . v.;
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.  —L. ..^v.

1.3.6.5.1. Coordinating regional training for vohinleers.
1.3.i5.5.2. Coordinating the annual integrated volunteer

conference, per the tasks noted in Section
1.13.1.

1.3.6.5.3. Planning and conducting quarterly'meetings of
Medical Reserve Corps (MRC) and Community
Emergency Response Team (CERT) leaders

,  statewide.

1.3.7. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Programs
1.3.7.1. The Contractor shall support the outreach and education

activities of the program's Health Promotion Advisor as they ■
pertain to the medical and early childhood education
community.

1.3.7.2. The Contractor shall support the program's Health Educator
by providing logisticar support and coordination for two (2)
virtual training programs, annually, made available to local
Health Cifficers.

1.3.8. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program (EPHT)
1.3.8.1. The Contractor shall work with the program to implement

virtual training sessions and materials on the new data portal
to the Regional Public Health Networks which shall include:
1.3.8.1.1. Providing a minimum of four. (4) virtual training

sessions to the thirteen (13) Regional Pubic
Health Networks; and

1.3.8.1.2. Developing a how-to guide for users of the DHHS
Data Portal. The guide will include, but not be
limited to, search, export., confidence intervals,
trends, and geographies.

1.3.9. Radon Program

1.3.9.1. The Contractor shall support the outreach and education
activities of the program as they pertain to radon resistant
new home construction using methods which shall include,
but are fiotlimited to:

1.3.9.1.1. Stakeholder outreach.

■ ' . 1.3.9.1.2. Brochures or other printed rnaterials.
i,3.9:-1.3.i,Three (3) virtual rneetings that will target,

. "■ ' " contractors, home buiiders, home buyers, and | '-4^
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realtors and provide continuing education
credits, If applicable. Topics may include, but are
not limited to: new radon resistant technologies,
policy and advocacy, cost vs. mitigation, and
working with home buyers and realtors.

1.3.9.2. The Contractor shall support the outreach and education
activities of the program as they pertain to real estate
professionals using methods which shall Include, but are not
limited to:

1.3.9.2.1. Stakeholder outreach.

1.3.9.2.2. Brochures or other printed materials.

1.3.9.2.3. Two (2)'virtual meetings, including credits, if
applicable.

1.3.9.3. The Contractor shall plan and implement social media
campaigns which shall include:
1.3.9.3.1. Radon awareness training for new home buyers;

1.3.9.3.2. Radon awareness training for real estate
professional; and

1.3.9.3.3. Radon awareness training for. real estate
development contractors.

1.3.9.4. The Contractor shall support the program's Health Educator
by providing logistical support and coordination for two (2)
virtual, annually, training programs made available to local
Health Officers.

1.4. Logistical Support for Conferences, Meetings, arid Planning Groups
1.4.1. General Logistical Support for Conferences

1.4.1.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for
conferences, as approved by the Department, which shall
include, but Is not limited to:

1.4.t.1.1. Convening, facilitating, and documenting
meetings pf each conference planning team.

T. .1.4.1.1.2. Developing, the conference, agenda in
coordination with planning teams.

1.4.1.1.3. Compiling e-nriail lists to pronr>ote conferences
using addresses supplied by members of the

^  -planning team. • ctt trnti r*. sz,
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1.4.1.1:4. Designing and electronically publishing
■  conference brochures, "Save the Date*

announcements, and other marketing materials
as funding allows.

1.4.1.1.5. Designing the layout and printing materials for
conference attendees.-

1.4.1.1.6. Coordinating logistics with speakers.
1.4.1.1.7. Coordinating logistics with vendors and

supporting their logistical needs during
conferences.

. 1.4.1.1.8. Providing operations support during conferences
including, but not limited to:

1.4.1.1.8.1. Registering attendees;
1.4.1.1.8.2. Coordinating IT needs;

1.4.1.1.8.3. Coordinating with the conference site
staff; and

1.4.1.1.8.4. Conducting other. activities typically
associated with conference support. •

1.4.1.1.9. Compiling data from evaluation forms completed
by attendees, analyzing data, and providing

.  ■ written reports to programs.

1.4.1.1.10. Receiving payment from vendors, which shall be
utilized (or supporting conferences, with any
additional funding to be utilized for activities
funded by the program sponsoring the
conference.

1.4.1..1.11.Faci!iiaUng reservations and logistics of each
conference site.

1.4.1.1.i2.Reporting all costs and income generated for
each conference to the program funding the
conference.

1.4.2. Gene|ral Logistical Support for Committees and Planning Groups
1.4.2.1. The selected Applicant will provide logistical support, as approved by

the Department, for conference committees and planning groups which
may include, but Is not limited to:
1.4.2:^1.^Cbnyeriing. facilitating, and docurnenting rneetings.jndp.djpg

;> .those of subcommitteesi work groups, or similar bodies." :.v
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EXHIBIT B

1.4.2.1.2. Developing meeting agendas in coordination with Department
. staff.

•1.4.2.1.3. Dissemirialing announcements of meetings to members and
posting pubUcty, as requested by the Department.

1.4.2.1.4: Maintaining contact information for alt members of
corhmittees. and/or planning groups. including
subcommittees, workgroups, or similar bodies.

1.4.2.1.5. Maintaining existing websites to inforrn members and the
public of the purpose, rnembership, and activities of planning
groups ar\d committees.

1.4.2.1.6. Coordinating logistics with speakers.
1.4.2.1.7. Coordinating logistics with" vendors and supporting their

logistical needs during conferences.
1.4.2.1.8. Providing operations support during meetings Including, but

not limited to;

1.4.2.1.8.1. Registering attendees

1.4.2.1.8.2. Coordinating IT needs

1.4.2.1.8.3. Coordinating with site staff
.1.4.2.1.8.4; Publishing minutes
1.4.2.1.8.5. Conducting other activities typically associated

with meeting support

1.4.2.1.9. Compiling data from evaluation forms
completed by attendees., analyzing data, and
providing written reports to programs.

1.4.3. Healthcare Acquired Infections
1.4.3.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for up to

. eleven (11) meetings per year of the Antimicrobial
Resistance Advisory VVorkgroup (ARAW).

1.4.3.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support
for the annual Antimicrobial Stewardship Symposium for up
to 400 attendees, which includes, but is not limited to.

.  providing continuing education credits.
,-1.4.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services

Section
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1.4.4.1. The Contractor Shall provide logistical support to the NH HIV
Planning Group (HPG) which Includes, but is not limited to;
1.4.4.1.1. A maximum of six (6) regular meetings of the full

HPG.

1.4.4.1.2. A maximum of thirty (30) committ4ee and/or
>Morkgroup meetings per year.

1.4.5. Immunization Program

1.4.5.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for the annual
Immunization Conference for approximately 400 attendees,
which includes providing continuing education credits to
attendees.

1.4.6. Public Health Emergency Preparedness
1.4.6.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support

for the annual NH Statewide Preparedness conference for
up to 800 attendees.

1.4.7. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program
1.4.7.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the New

England Lead Coordinating Committee (NELCC). which
includes, but is not limited to:

1.4.7.1.1. No more than four (4) virtual meetings of the full
NELCC;

1.4.7.1.2. No more than one (1) in-person committee
and/or Workgroup meeting per year for up to
twenty (20) attendees; and

1.4.7.1.3. Support and maintenance' of the NELCC
membership list serve.

-1.4.7.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support
■  for a minimum of or^ (1) regional dinner meeting, which has

capacity for 120 attendees.

1.4.7.3. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the
^  Statewide Clinical Lead Advisory Committee which

Includes, but is hollimited to, no more than three (3) virtual
meetings, per Agreement period, of the full committee.

1.4.7.4. The Contractor shall support and maintain the Statewide
•  Clinical Lead Advisory Committee membership list serve.
t  . 1.4.7.5. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support
!; • for the Environmental Health annual conference for an

t tl".
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EXHIBIT B

estimated 250 attendees.

1.4.8. Environmental Public Health Tracking Prograrri (EPHT)

1.4.8.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the EPHT
Program for outreach to its Technical Advisory Group which
includes, but Is not limited to:

1.4.8.1.1. Developing a membership list; and

1.4.8.1.2. Organizing a minimum of two (2) virtual
meetings, per Agreement period.

1.4.9. Radon Program

1.4.9.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the Radon
Program in the development and coordination of a new
Radon Stakeholders Group, which includes a minimum .of
two (2) virtual meetings, anually.

Technical Assistance1.5.

1.5.1. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services
Section

1.5.1.1. The Contractor shall, in consultation with the Department
subject matter experts, identify and coordinate technical
assistance providers to the Department. Department
contractors, and sen/ice provider agencies.

1.5.1.2. The Contractor shall conduct special projects as directed by
the Oepartment including, but not limited to:

1.5.1.2.1. Communication plans;

1.5.1.2.2. Trainings;

1.5.1.2.3. Social media management;

.  1.5.1.2.4. Development of social media posts to raise
awareness about child., youth, artd adult
immunizations;

1.5.1.2.5i Generation of summary report to inform
programmatic decision making;,

:  .1-5.1.2.6. Survey mariagement and/pr focus groups
^  facilitation;

1.5.2.

1.5.1:2.7. Project rrianagement; and

1.5.1:2.8. Graphic design and creatior) of printed materials.

ImmunizatioaPrpgram
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1.5.2.1. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance to the
Department to support the outreach and education efforts of .
the NH Immunization Program (NHIP) including, but not
lirnitedto;

1.5.2.1.1. Organizing external stakeholders Identified t>y
the Department to assist .with developing:

1.5.2.1.1.1. Methods to foster communication; and

1.5.2.1.1.2. Education and outreach tools and
materials.

1.5.2.2. The Contractor shall conduct special projects as directed by
the Department including, but not limited to:

1.5.2.2.1. Communication plans;

1.5.2.2.2. Trainings;

1.5.2.2.3. Development of social media posts to raise
awareness about child, youth' and adult '
Immunizations;

■  . 1.5.2.2A Social media managemer»t including, but not
limited to. strategic response to myths.and
misinformation, analyzing social media listening,
and engagement on social media platforms for
content and outreach effectiveness;

1.5.2.2.5. Generation of summary report to inform
prograrinmatic decrsion-making;.

1.5.2.2.6. Development and dissemination of NH specific
childhood vaccinatiori toolkit for providers,
schools, and other stakeholders to provide
materials to promote childhood vaccines, answer
parent questions, and address barriers to receipt
of COVID-19 and routine vaccination;

1.5.2.2.7. Survey managemerit and/or focus group ^ ^
facilitations; . ,

. . 1.5.2.2.8. Project management; and !

'  ' 1.5.212.9. Graphic design and creation of printed materials. ' >

i.r.. 1.5.2.3. The Contractor shall facilitate the -work of the NH - .
Imrnunization Coalition for the purposes of promoting public

.  .awareness of immunizations and improving vaccinationv^—w-j
■  ' rates for NH's residents by conducting activities including- -

. r.
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1.5.3.

_ -SfA" Tt^ r.-i

but not limited to:

1.5.2.3.1. Conveying external stakeholders, which may
include the NH Public Heajth Association-and
others identified by the Department, to recruit
and maintain coalition members representatives
of the community, public and private health care
organizations, state agencies, service agencies,
and businesses;

1.5.2.3.2. Developing broad-based strategies and
implementing activities to raise awareness of
child, youth, and adult immunizations;

1.5.2.3.3. Developing and implementing educational and
oiitrea^ strategies to increase the number of
children, youth, and adults receiving
immunizations;

1.5.2.3.4. Expandirig partnerships through the private and
public sector to increase awareness of
immunizations through education, partnerships,
and marketing;

1.5.2;3;5. Utilizing methods to foster communicatbn; and
1.5.2.3.6. Developing and disseminating education and

outreach tools and materials . that target
stakehotders.who include, but are not limited to:

1.5.2.3.6.1. Medical Professionals.

1.5.2.3.6.2. Parents.

1.5.2.3.6.3. Seniors.

1:5.2.3.6.4. Other members of the public.
1.5.2.3.6.5. Other entities engaged in promoting

immunizations.

Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.5.3.1. The Contractor shall, in consultation with the Department
subject matter experts, provide technical assistance to three

"  (3) discrete groups directed toward meeting riationah
standards described in the CDC-s Public Health Emergency
Preparedness Capabilities (October2018, Updated January
2019) and subsequent editions, the groups are as follows:
1.5.3:1.1:" Departrnent preparedness/

RFA.2022OPHS:0SWBLIC
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EXHIBIT B

1;5.4.

1.5,5.

1.5.3.1.2. Public health preparedness coordinators at the
• thirteen (13) organizations providing. Regional
Public Health Network services. Teaching
assistance will be available to both individuals
and as a group; and/or.

1.■5:3.1.3. Medical Reserve Corps (MRC) units recognized
and registered with the U.S. Surgeon General,
Office of Civilian Volunteer Medical Reserve
Corps, to support recruitment, training, and
deployment of the MRC volunteers.

1.5.3.2. The Contractor shall provide professional staff to support
public health incident response at the- direction of the
Department, if requested.

1.5.3.3. The Contractor shall ensure that professional staff:
1.5.3.3.1. Have the appropriate licensure, certification, and

skills to meet the requests made by pPHS;
1.5.3.3.2. Work the minimum hours requested by DPHS;

and

1.5.3.3.3. Submit all documentation regarding hours
worked and other documentation, as requested.

Radon Program

1.5.4.1. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance for the
collection of radon information and data which includes, but
is not limited to: ■

1.5.4.1.1. NH municipalities with existing building codes for
radon resistant new construction;

1.5.4.1.2. The estimated number of radon mitigations for
existing homes per year;

1.5.4.1.3. The estimated number of radon tests performed
in NH per year; and

1.5.4.1.4. Historical data from external partners arid
stakeholders for the purpose of updating the

, . . .. -Departmentdata portal.
-Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP)

T5.5.1. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance to MRC
. ; and Community Emergency Response Team - (CERT)

- -.V ; leaders throughout the state. . ; *
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EXHIBIT B

1.6. Development and Production of Educational Materials
1.6.1. General Standards for Educational Materials .

1.6.1.1. The Conlractor shall, in consultalioh with the Department
subject matter experts, develop and/or produce educational
materials on topics identified by Department staff.

1.6.1.2. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval prior to
distribution of any produced materials, and ^sure all
materials produced give credit to the funding source utilized
to create the matenals.

.  1.6.1.3. The Contractor, shall ensure all materials are developed in
accordance with CDC recommendations specified in Simply
Put; Guide to Developing Easy-To-Understand Materials.
CDC July 2010. including any updates that, may be issued
by the CDC-

1.6.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services
Section

1.6.2.1. the Contractor shall, in consultation with the Departmenl.
maintain and update the HIV Planning Group (HPG) and the

- Granite State PrEP Conned websites.

1.6.2.2. The Contractor shall, In consultation with the Department,
create social media posts relevant to infectious disease
prevention topics.

1.6.3. Immunization Program (IP)
1.6.3.1. The Contractor shall, in consultation with the Departmenl,

develop and conduct a statewide education campaign effort
for testing and prevention of COVlD-19 among travelers.
The Contractor shall:

1.6.3.1.1. Create and disseminate printed, poster and
- website materials on the availability and access

;  . of the following, which shall Include but is not
'  limited to:

••c : •

'  1 -

• ^. .11
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•rviTs

.1.6.3.1.1.1. COVID-19 testing;
;,.jl6.3.1.1.2. Quarantine guidance; and
1.6.3.1.1.3. Guide on prevention of COVID-19 during

travel. ^
1.6!3;i.2. Distribute the materials of all travel hubs in NH,.:^

^  which shall include, but are not limited to;
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EXHIBIT B

1.6.3.1.2.1. Airports:

1.6.3.1.2.2. Bus stations;

1.6.3.1.2.3. Highway gas stations; and
1.6.3.1.2.4'. Other ports of entry, as identified by the

pepartrnent.

1.6^.1.3. Distribute personal protective materials, which
include but are not limiied to, facemasks and^
hand sanitized, as purchased by the Contractor.

1.6.3.1.4. Ensure all materials have a graphic design label,
as approved by the Department.

1.6.4. "Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program
1.6.4.1. The Contractor shall assist the program's Health Educator;,

with the development of outreach and educational materials,
that include, but are not limited to:

1.6.5.

1.6.6.

1.6.4.1.1. Development and coordination of at least two (2)
social media campaigns;

1.6.4.1.2. Design and limited printing.(500 copies) of an
.  annual 4 to 6 page blood lead surveillance report;

and

1.6.4.1.3. Maintenance and quarterly updates to the About
Lead Free Kids NH - Lead Free Kids NH
website.

Radon Program ' _
1.6.5.1. The Contractor shall develop educational materials for the

radon program, in collaboration with the program, that are
appropriate for to 8*^ grade science students, which
include, but are not limited to:

1.6.5.1.1. Creating a stakeholder outreach list and securing
a minimum of five (5) schools to participate;

1.6.5.1.2. Developing curriculum: and

1.6.5.1.3. Promotir>g and organizing a poster contest.
Core.Services Planning

1.6.6.1. The Contractor shall implement an annual survey of
program clients for the purpose of core services planning, in
consultation with care services staff.^.'

• ir.-
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,  . . . j ...

1.7. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

1.7.1. The Contractor shall develop evaluation plans, in consultation with
Department subject matter experts, which clearly outline goals,
objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and performance measures.

1.8. Update Strategic Plans

1.8.1. General Assistance with Strategic Plans

.  1.8.1.1. The Conlractor shall, in consultation with the Department,
subject matter experts, assist the Department with: •

1.8.1.1.1. Updating pre-existing strategic plans; and

1.8.1.1.2. Outlining goals, objectives, activities, outputs,
outcomes, and perforrhance measures for
various programs.

1.9. Maximize the Efficient Use of Resources

1.9.1^ Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation 8i Care Services
Section (IDPICSS)

1.9.1.1. The Contractor shall faciGtate reimbursements of costs-
incurred by approximately five (5) public members of the NH
HPG and/or contracted vendors to attend out-bf-state
conferences identified by the Department, as well as
mileage costs to attend in-state meetings.-

1.9^1.2. The Contractor shall procure and disperse prevention
supplies as determined by the Department' to a minimum of
six (6) clinics funded by the Department to provide testing
and treatment for sexually transmitted infections and HIV.

1.9.1.3. The (Contractor shall procure, manage, and disperse
prevention and self-testing supplies for NH .residents, as
directed by the Department.

1.9.1.4. The Contractor shall develop and maintain an online
ordering system that enables NH residents and partners to
order prevention and selfMesting supplies.

1.9.2. Coordination and Logistics, Web-Based Trairiing

1.9.2.1. The. Contractor shall, in consultation with the Department.
coordinate and monitor ongoing provider and/or DPHS staff.
technical assistance and facilitate reimbursement to

vendors for web-based case management entry-level
. competency training modules and other programs as

t": -' designated by the Department.
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EXHIBIT B

1.9.2.2. The Contractor shaP deveiop and maintain a
partidpant/user tracking system for the comprehensive self-
directed, web-based medical cases management training.

1.9.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.9.3.1. The Contractor shall provide access to E-Studio. a web-
based collaboration system-, to the Regional Public Health
Networks and the Department.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Inforrriation in
compliance with the" Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rufe) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance,
with the attached Exhibit I, Business Assodale Agreement, which has been
executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shali rhanage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the. terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements
3.1. Needs Assessments and Integrated Planning

3.1.1. The Contractor shall conduct training needs assessments for eleven
(11) MIECHV home visiting sites.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall provide a review of the epidemiological profile to
the Department for review and approval no later than 'June. 30, 2022.

3.1.3. The Contractor shall provide a review of service gaps and .unmet
needs with the Ryan White and HIV Prevention service delivery
system to the Department for review, and approval on a date mutually
agreed upon by both parties.

ll .4. The Contractor ishall provide a written strategy for meeting the ne^s
of HIV providers as identified by the assessment of service gaps-arid

. unmet needs no later than June 30, 2022.

3.1.5. The Contractor shall make an in-persbn presentation of the final
Epidemiological Profile report .to the Department no later than
November 31,2022.

3.2.~ integrated HIV Prevention and Care Plan ; ;
.  ..

'4 ;:f y The Contractor .shall develop and prepare the required written
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components of the integrated strategic plan including, but not limited '
to:

3.2.1.1. Executive Summary of Integrated Plan and Statewide
Coordinated Statement of Need;

3.2.1.2. SItuational analysis;
3.2.1.3. 2022-2026 goals and objectives;
3.2.1.4. Jurisdictional monitoring plan; and
3.2.1.5. Letters of Concurrence as outlined In CDC DHAP and Hf^SA ,

guidance.

3.2.2. The Contractor shaD:

3.2.2.1. Maintain quarterly meetings and email communication with
IDPICSS staff.

3.2.2.2. Submit a written final summary on or before May 31. 2022.
3.2.2.3. Presenta.ftnal written report on or before June 30, 2022.
3.2.2.4. Develop strategic plan recommendations and submit final

work plan to DPHS for final approval on or before August /
3Q.2022.

3.2.2.5. Conduct a minimum of four (4) strategic planning sessions
with stakeholders before November 15,2022.

3.2.3. Immunization Program

3.2.3.1. The Contraclorshall:

3.2.3.1.1. Participate in monthly meetings/calls arid
maintain email communication with NHIP staff.

3.2.3.1.2. Hold NH Immunization Coalition meetings at
feast quarterly. .

3.2.3.1.3. Submit ■ NH. Immunization Coalition . Meeting
Agenda to the Immunization Program at l^ast
five (5). business days in. advance of each
meeting. Submit NH Immunization Coalition '
meeting minutes with meeting attendance list to

.  . L the Immunization Program within five (5) . - .
business days following each rrieeting.

3.2.3.T.4. Submit quarterly written reports for the • .
.  . Immunization Program and the Immunization - ,
f  iriL'tTilt. .Coalition to describe project administration and ''  ?■. " cbordinationwhichincludes. butisnollimited to: I . > -
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•  summary of social media listening/engagement
sessions, communications, program and project
oversight, reporting, programmatic activities,
successes. chaBenges/barriers. meeting
minutes, and project deliverable timelines.

3.2.3.1.5: Develop strategic plian recommendations and
submit work plan to DPHS for final approval on
or before 60 days after Governor & Executive
.Qoundl approval.

3.2.3.1.6. Conduct a minimum of four (4) strategic planning
sessions with stakeholders per year.

3.2.3.1.7. Subrnit final drafts of NH specific childhood
vaccination toolkits: one (1) for schools and one
(1) for general public by June 30, 2022.

3.2.3.1.8. Submit conference budgetproposal for program
approval by February 15, 2022, for the
Immunization Fall 2022 conference.

I

3:2.3.1.9. Submit conference budget proposal for program
approval by October 15, 2022, and annually
thereafter for fall conferences.

3.2.3.1.IO.Submit -monthly reporting of conference
expenditures and revenues to include

^.expenditures per the NH Immunization-
Conference - Income & Expense Detail Sheet,
as provided by the Departrrient.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall meet or exceed performance measures for Develop and
Implement Prevention-Focused Training Programs, as follows: .
4.1.1. A minimi^ of 85% of participant's rate training programs as not less

.  than Very Good'in evaluation suweys.

4.2. The Contractor shall meet or exceed performance rneasures for Logistical
Support for Conferences, Meetings and Planning Groups as follows: -

.  14:2.1. A rhinimum of 85% of conference planning committee members rate
logistical support for-conferences as not less than Very Good' in
evaluation surveys. « •

4.2.2. A minimum of 85% of coriference participants rate the elements
L::. pertaining to conference logistics.as not less than Very:Good'.in
-V.: evaluation surveys. ■
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4.2.3. A minimum of 85% of workgroup partictpants rate elements pertaining
to-workgroup logistics as not less than 'Very Good' , in evaluation
surveys.

4.2.4. A minimumof 85% of planning group members rate meeting logistics
as no less, than 'Very Good' in evaluation surveys.

4.3. The Contractor shall meet or exceed performance measures for Provide
Technical Assistance, as follows:

4.3.1. A minimum of 90% of all requests for high-priority consultation
sen/ices are responded to within twenty-four (24) hours.

4.3.2. A minimum of 90% of all requests for high-priority technical assistance
are responded to within twenty-four (24) hours.

4.4. The Contractor shall identify barriers to meeting performance measures on a
semi-annual basis and provide a corrective action plan which:
4.4.1. • Identifies barriers to success;

4.4.2. Includes a work plan for mitigating barriers; and
4.4.3. Includes a timeline in which compliance with performance measures

will be met.

4.5. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance outcomes and
measures are achieved and monitored throughout the contract period to
measure the effectiveness of the agreement;
4.5.1. 100% of staff deployed have the appropriate licensure, .certification,

and skills.

4.5.2. 100% of staff deployed submit all required documentation.
4.6. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to

enharice contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based'on successful outcomes.

4.7. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data ar>d metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data., . - •

4.8. vyhere applicable, the. Contractor shall collect arid share data with the
Department in a fonmat specified by the Department. • . .

Additioriat Terms ' " ' ' - ^ ; -

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
5.1.1. The Contractor^ agrees that, to the extent future slate or: federal i. r

~  legislation or-court orders may have ari; impact on the Services^^"
;  |v described herejn, the Stale has the right to modify Service priorities ,
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EXHIBIT B

and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. the Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the comrhunication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision;.and individuals who

have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Oepartnnent of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.'

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.21 Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

Posters.

Reports.

'  5.3.4: The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
' . Agreernerit without prior written approval from the D^artment. \

6. Records .

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

.-.6^1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
; . rk • evidencing and refleciing all costs and other expenses incurred by the

5.3:3.4.

5.3.3.5.
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EXHIBIT B

't / *. J *

Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
•  procedures and practices, which sufTtciently anid property reflect all such

costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to incJude. without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and onginal

■ evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,

labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representative^ shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase.by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except .such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shaP terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Re^rt the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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. EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:
1.1. 2%'Environmental ; Public Health and Emergency Response, as

awarded on May 20. 2021, by the United States Department of Health
and Human Services (HHS). CFDA 93.070, FAIN# NUE1EH001357-04.

1.2. 7%, Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Projects. State and Local
, Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention and Surveillance of Blood Lead

Levels in Children, as awarded on 8/5/2021, by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), CFDA 93.197. FAIN#
NUE2EH001457. ,

1.3. 8%, Performance Partnership Grants, as awarded on 7/14/2021. by the
United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). CFDA 66.605,
FAIN# BG00100731.

1.4. 6%. State Indoor Radon Grants, as iawarded on 9/13/2021, by the United
States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). CFDA 66.032, FAIN#
00162332.

1.5. 2%, National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program, as awarded
on 7/1/2021, by the United States Department of Health and Human
Services (HHS). CFDA 93.889. FAIN# U3RE0190580.

1.6.- 8%, Public Health Emergency Preparedness, as awarded on 5/12/2021,
by the United States Departmerit of Health and Human Services (HHS),
CFDA 93.069, FAIN#. NU90TP922018

'  ' 1,7. 9%, Immunization Cooperative Agreements, as awarded on 3/31/2021.
by the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS),
CFDA 93.268, FAIN# NH23IP922595. .

1.8^- 9%, Immunization Cooperative Agreemerits, as awarded on 7/1/2021,
by the.United States.Departmenlof Health and Human Services (HHS),
CFDA 93.268, FAIN# NH231P922595.

1:9. 17%. HIV Preventiori Activities Health Department Based, as awarded
on 3/8/2021. by the United States Department of Health and Human
Services (HHS), CFDA 93.940, FAIN# NU62PS924538.

1.10. 10%, ELC Enhancing Detiectton Funding, as awarded on May 18, 2020
by the Center for Disease Conlror& Prevention (CDC), CFDA 93.323,

V FAIN# NU50CK00D522.. ^

1.11. 4% General funds.

1.12. 18% Other funds (include specific information if available^.
1:

^•2. -iVFor the purposes of this Agreement:
.'.i-
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EXHIBIT C

3.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

Tr
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2.1:

2.2.

2.3.

. The .Department has identified the Contractor as a Subreciplerit, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

The Departrhent has identified this
accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

Agreement as NON-R&D. in

The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 21.2% applies in accordance with
2 CFR §200.414.

Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
44, Budget.

The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteerrth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized- expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to ihiliate payment..
|n lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to OPHSContractBillinQ@dhhs.nh.Qov. or irivoices may be mailed to;

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion bate.

The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part iii the event of non-compliance with the terms arrd conditions
of Exhibit B. Scope of Services.

-Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have, not been
satisfactorily completed in.accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

RFA.2022-OPHS4)5>UBUC

C.1.2
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EXHIBIT C

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the Genera! Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

12. Audits

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

12.5.

. .---f ~ .

r'.M: •
IC

.■.ji . . . ..
•; . r" ^ • rt'-• C-1;2

'■k-. ftFA.20

The Contractor ' must email an annual audit to
metissa.s.mofln@dhhs.nh.Qov If any of the following conditions exist:
12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in

federal funds received as a subjecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

T2.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit

If Condition A exists, the'Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certifted Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit-Requirements for Federal awards.
If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.
Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Departnr>ent's
risk assessment determination indicates the Coritractor is high-risk.
In addition to, and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the-
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions:
and shaD return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG>FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of.1989 (Pub. L. 100^90. title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representati^, as identiHed In S^ons .
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisbhs execute the foDowtng Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEaLth AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This ceftlfication is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Tille V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21M1-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
coritractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.S30(c) of the
regulation provides that a graritee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certirication lo the Department In each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
ea(J> grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representalioh of fact upon which refiance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or \nolation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
teiminalion of grants, or government wide suspension or debamient. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505 '

1. The grantee certifies that it wiD or win cortfirure to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5..

Publishing a statemant notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled sutistance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that win be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;"
Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of dnjg abuse in.the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available ̂ ug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; ar>d
1.2.4. the penalties that rhay be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant bb
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Apide by the terms of the statement; and

. 1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after su^

.conviction;
Notifying tlie agency In writing, v^hin ten calendar days after receiving riotice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Em^oyers of convicted erhployees must provide notice, including position title, to.every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the rederal agency

I.

cuo>*<snio»n

WMM
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1.6.

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shaliinclude the
identincation number(8} of each affected grant;.
Taking one of the following actions; within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employe who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel actidn against such an employee, up to and inciuding

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate ager^

Making e good faith effoil to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
cmplenwntatlon of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitefs) for the performance of work dor»e in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city,, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

1.7.

Check □ |f there are workplaces on file that are not identifled here.

Vendor Name:

12/6/2021

Date
GNamef^^'aW^TrJrToEert'
Title: Oirector

/
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor jdentlfied in Section 1.3 of the General Pro^ions agrees to comply with the provislohsof
Section 319 of Public Law 101-12.1, Government wide Guidance for New Restridions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 ofthe General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
TempofBry Assistar)ce to Needy FamSies under Title (V-A
'Child Sup^ Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
*S6cial Services SlocX Grant Program under Title XX
"Medlcald Program under Title XlX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Cere Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

2.

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or ̂ ^1 ba paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Cor)gress, an officer or employee of Cor)gress. or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, coniinuation. reriewal, amendment, or
modHication of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sut>-grantee or sub-contraclor).

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been pakJ or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Cor^gress, or an.cmployee of a.Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperate agreement (and by specific manlign sub-grantee or sutH
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhfbil E-l.)

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the-award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disdosa accordingly.

This certification is a materia) representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Sutimission of this certification is a prerequiske for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Titla 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to fi le the required
certification shaD be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

■Vendor Name:

3.

rJ;i-

12/6/2021

Date
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;  CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

the Contractor identined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive OfTice of the Presidenl. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part76 regarding Debannent,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification: ' .

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submittlr^g this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certificalion required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shaO submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in conneclion with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determinafion virhether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shaR disqualify such person from participatbn in
this fransaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon v4)lch reliance was placed .
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certirication, in addition to other remedies
avallatile to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4: The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to Ihe DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification vras erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covert transaction,' 'debarred,* 'suspended.' 'ineligible.* 'lower tier covered
transaction,' 'participant.* 'person/ 'primary covered transaction.' 'principal,' 'proposal,* and
'voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implemenling Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Piart 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) thai, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lovrer tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered trar^sactlon. unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary partidpanl further agrees by subrtiitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tided "Certification Iftegarding Debarment, Suspension^ IneiigibBlty arKl Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by OHHS, without modification, in aD lower tier covered
transactions and In aD soRcitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A parlidpant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certlftcation of a prospective participant in a
lo^r tier covered transaction that it is not de^rred, suspended, Ineligtole. or invoiuntahly excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A pailiclpanl may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its princip^. Each '
participant may. but is nol required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shaD be construed to require establishment of a system of records :

•.tr:

in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The.knowtedge and
•- rl iJL
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. information of a participant is not to exce^ that which is normally possess^ by a pntdent
parson In.the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participent in a
covered transaction krtowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
subtended, debarr^, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemmmt, DHHS may teirrhinatathis transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to .the best of Its krwwiedge and beOef. that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmont dtoctared Ineligible, or

vt^nlarily excluded from covert transactions by any Federal department or agericy;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvii judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or .a contract under a public transaction; vidation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlemervt, theft forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements.- or receiving stolen property;

11.3. ^ not presently indicted for otherwise crimlnaltyorclvfflycharged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) vrith commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default

.12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of (he statements in this
certification, such prospective partid^nt shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpant as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of Its knowledge end belief that 'll and its prindpals:
13.1. arenotpresentty debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenL declared ineligible, or

voluntarily exdi^ed from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective Iom^ tier participant is unat>le to certify to any of the above, such

prospective pa^dpanl shall attach an explanatioo to this proposal (contract).
14. The prospective lower tier partidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will

indude this dause entitled 'Certification Regarding DebarmenL Susperision. tneUgibUity. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transklbns.' without modification in all lower tier covered

. transactions and in all soGdtations for lower tier covered transactions. '

Contractor Name:

12/6/2021
hp

Date WmWine Robert
Title: ,

Director
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NQNDISCRIMIHATIQM EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^SEO ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS TT ^

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections -1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foUowInQ
certification: ^

Contractor wfll comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondrscriminaiion requirements, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) wfiich prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In employment practices or In
the deliveiy of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency.Preventioo Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. ̂ llcn 5672(b)) wrfiich adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Redplenls of federal funding under this
statute are prohibit^ from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of-services or
benefUs, on the basis of race, color, religion, natlona) origin, and sex. The Act IrKhides Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits redplents.of federal finanda!
assistance from discrimtr>atlng on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), i^lch prohibits recipients of Federal finandal
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any.program or activity;

. - the Ariwicans with DisabiBties Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity (or persons wUh dlsabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial fadlities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. i'W3.1685-88). which prohibits
di^rimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

"  Otscfimlnatlon Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not indude
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations-OJJDP Grant Programs); 28C.F.R..pt. 42
(tJ.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies "
and Proc^ures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559. which pr^e fundinental prindples and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with failh-based arKi neighborhood organizations;

-28C.F.R. pL 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulalions-Equal Treatment for Faith-Based' "
Organizations); and Whistleblowcf protections 41 U.$.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization

. Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections', vriuch protects employees against
reprisal for ̂ rtain whistle blowing acliviiies In connection with federal grants and contracts. •

The certificate set out below Is a material represenlation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant Fal» certification or violalionottheceftificalion shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

;  :v't :E*hW»0 •, r
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In the event a Federal or State court or Tederal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due proems hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex '
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the flnding to the OfTice for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health end Human Services Office of the Ombudsmaa

The Contractor.identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represerUative as rdentified in Sections 1.11 arxl 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foCtowing
certification:

1. 8y signing and submitting this proposal fcontract} the Contractor agrees to compfy with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

12/6/2021

Dale

.  OiiiSlyiiilW:

Narne!^atHie^''lne Robert
Tide: Director
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f CERTIFICATION REGARDING EIMRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103'227, Pad C • Environmental tobacco Smoike. also known as the Pro-Chiklren Act of ^994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or teased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regvtarty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to chBdren under the age of 1.8, If the services are funded by Federal programs'either

- drectiy or through State or local governments, by Federal granL contract, loan, or toan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences. facinUes funded solely by
Medicare or M^lcaid ^nds, and portions of fadiities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the (aw rhay result in the imposition of a dvil monetary penalty of up to
SlbOO per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to. make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1934.

Contractor Name:

12/6/2021 0
Date f^ame:''V'al'>ie^'1nc Robert

Title-
Director
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILiTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEf^ENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreemerit agrees to
comply v/ith the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for. Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable. Health Information^ 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shad mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health artd Human Services.

n) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code .of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Sectionl64.501.

e. 'Data AaQreQatlon' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meanirig as the term "health care operations'
in'45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
AcL TitleXIII. Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestrnent Act of
2009. '

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Pubftc Law. ■
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. "Irwfividuar shall have the same meaning as the term 'Individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and Shan include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 '
CFR Section 164.501(9).

j. 'Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health •
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United. States
Departrnent of Health and Human Services.

.'•7*lv '"T-
T.-vT'r.~ WSK

k. "Protecfed Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
r  information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or recewed^ -_j-7ir:7^r7.v^^

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^ ^ ■■
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'Reouifed bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health arid Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendment's, thereto.

o- "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endors^ by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the AmeHcan National Standards
Institute. * -^r

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenfinse defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 arvJ 164, as amended from time to time and the
HITECH
Act.

(2)

a.

b.

c.

ct:

'T.l .J
Vi-.i;

'■s-i

3^014

Business Associate Use and Dlsclosufe of Protected Health Information

Business Associate shali not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Inforrnation (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement." Further. Business Associate, including but not JImited to all
ilis directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may uSe or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper rnanagemcnt and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. 'belqw; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covert

Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and

or further disclosed onJy as required by law or for ^ purpose for whtcfi it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained i .
knowledge of sjuch breach.

The Business A^odate Shan not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary toprovide services under Exhibit A of the Agre^ent, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure arid r * ■
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disdpsure, the Busifi^S

■-■r-'-rr' -- ^Co»»>cto< WUil»>—- - "
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Exhibit I

lie

Associate shaQ refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhaust^ all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bour^ by additional restrictions over and.above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business.Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in.violation of
such additional restrictions and shall al:>ide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) _0bltaat[on9 and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becorhes avrare of any use or disclosure of protected
health information rv)t provided for by the Agi^ment including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security inciderit that may have an Impact on the

^  protected health information of the Covered Erttity.

b. - The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when ifbecomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to: ■

The nature and extent of the protected health inforrhation involved, including the
types of identifiers and this likelihood of reHdentificatlon;
The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;
Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
The extent to which the risk to the protected health inforrnation has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. . The Business Associate shall comply with an sections of the Privacy. Security, and.
Breach Notification Rule.

d. . Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies artd procedures. books
arxl records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or

.  . received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for '
.  purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and

Security Rule.

e. . Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing' to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, iricluding
the.duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I)- The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party t>eneficiary of the Contractor's business assgpiate■'" V'' agreennents with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivi|lg^1l '

-1.-
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pwwant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnificalion from suchbusiness associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph i>13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. 'ive (5) tjusiness days of receipt o( a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during nprmai business hours at its offices all

SQfse'nents, polldes and procedures relating to the use and disctosure
of PHI to me Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity '
Business As^ciate shajl provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet ttte
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. VWthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the ̂ slness As relate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shaD document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
reijjest for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.526. ^

k. ")*heevenianyindlvidualrequestsaccessto. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
respwsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individuars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or. the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. - -

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason the
.  . .. Business Associate Shan return brdestroy. as specifledbyCovefedEnlity. au PHI - v - -

r'®ceived from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI If return or " . 1destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In •

. the Agreement, Business Assodate shall continue to extend the protections of the ; . i
.  ,. _ -Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of siich PHI to thee^irl -^1

V, wifessible, for so long as Busines^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) bbliaations of Covered Entity

a. Cover^ Entity shaD notify Business Associate of any changes or Bmitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shaQ promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used of
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
(Bsclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

fS) Termination for Cause

in addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
Violation to the Secretary.

f6) Miscellaneous

a. Derinillons and Reouiatorv References. All terms used, but not otherv/ise defined herein,
shaQ have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended

.  from tinfie to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as. in effect or as
amended.

.  ..

•... ..

d.

-x'i i. -.r.i r.

£r i;vx

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business A^ciate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law. .

Data Ownership. The Business A^odate ackriowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI pfovlded by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interbretation. The parties agree that ariy ambiguity in the Agreement shall be
to perimit Covered Entity to coni^ vsrith HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

•  . . J ■/. —rrCbntractoi WU*!j
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e. Segregation: If any term or corxiition of this Exhibit! or the af^licatlon thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall hot affect pther terms or -
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provi^ons in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destiuction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) i, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions.(P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services 3SI Research & Training insticuce. inc.

pieoStatftkr.
1 ^4r«ii. A4.

^GBAsoUbe Contractor
RptfCAb

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature oD^.uthorized Representative
Patricia m. Tilley Katherine Robert

Name of Authorized Representative
.Director.

Name of Authorized Representative

01 rector

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

12/6/2021 12/6/2021

Date Date
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CgRTfFICATION REGARDtNG THE FEDERAL FUNDINQ ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE .

The Fedei^.Funding Accounlabfltty and Transparency Act (FFATA) raQuires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sut>grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but sut»equent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to (he FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting SutMward and Executive Compisnsation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report (he following information for ariy
subaward or contract award subject to tiw FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Nameofentity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency.
4. NAICS code for contracts/ CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award tide descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Prindple.ptace of performance
9. Untqueidentlfierof the entity (DUNS#)
10. Totahcompensation and names of the top five executives H;

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annu^ and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the'month. plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-2B2 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation tnforrhation), and further agrees .
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections'1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certirtcatlon:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information Oi outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Servto end to comply with ail applicable provisions of the Federal
Rnancial Ac^untability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name:

12/6/2021

Date
0
Tide: oirector
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L.

• r-. f
-

•ir : - •

EihWl J,-,Cd»t2lc«Jofl Reo«ftfhtfl the Federd Funitlng'-' CoftUidor •'
i2/6/202i:^i:-:fei-?'.:

Dste_

"  .-i-.
-i.;

"v

V  /JllLT

• XT- ' t'l -r •



OocuSign Envelope 10: E189A0CO^B74e07-B9DET4BB3F122FB13

Dooj^ Envelope iO; EACC24iE^6-4D45-9l^3A386d£46£8E.' . -"I • ̂

^  OocuSl9nenvelopolp;22a4EW-eil2-4efWC5(>«27Ete£CW

.. /a-.'.,

.  - y." ,

Now Hampohiro Dopartmenl of HoaKh and Human Sorvlcos
Exhibit J . .

I;

• I'j. -T - -li. ly-i
1  .1

,  j -'I

FORMA
'  * I ' *• *

As the Contractor tdentiRed in Section 1.3 of the G^era) Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your tMsiness or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or nrtore of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, Mbcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grarus, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreenienis?

NO YES .

If tfie answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If tfi,e answer to #2 8t>ove Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78rri(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES, stop here

.  If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer (he fotlowii^:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follovrs:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

^ i
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DHHS Information Security Requirements-

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:'

1. 'Breach" means the loss of coritrol, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or (Mtential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health-
Information, * Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45^ Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
hfandllng Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
0f Commerce.

3.- "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data' means all confidential information
disclosed, by one party to, the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services • of which colteclkm, disclosure, protection, aixf disposition Is governed by
state or federe) law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4; "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
buslrvess associate, subcontractor,- other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance PortablDty and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations prornulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied s^rity policy,
which includes attempts (either fait^ or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of

■ a systep for the processing or stor^e of data; and changes to systerri hardware,
firmware, or software cfwracteristics wittwut the owner's knowtedge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardco^ documents, and misrouting. of physical or electronlc

u  .. :
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DHHS information SectiHty Requirements

mail, all of which may; have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any network or seqment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHt or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or 'PP) means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their rtame, social'security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, biomelric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Humar) Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Informatioo at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. .

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a techrwiogy standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

.'ji:

Hi

;v".

10109/18V5;

r".v^r.a

1. The Contractor must not use, disdose, maintain or transmit Confidential lnforrnatlon . i
except as reasonably necessary as ou1llr>ed under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation -; .
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2; The Contractor must riot disclose any Confidenlia[ Inforrtiation in response loj a^^^
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a-
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying OHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure;

'3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound t)y such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must at>ide by any addltior>al security safeguards.

4. * The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of tNs Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees OHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicdted inlhis Contract

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

It METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

: .£ins-:r./.-Ktr

.  -t •

' -i;

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applicatior^. the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet

2. Computer Disks and Poitable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and t>eln9 sent to arid being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employir>g the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used apd the web site must be
secure. SSLencryptsdata transmitted via a Web site.

5. Rle Hosting Services, also known as File Sharir)g Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Stbrage.- to transmit
ConfidentialData.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certifiBd ground
- mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual; . ' - * ' -

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable .devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be erKrypted and passwordH>rotected.

8. ̂ Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open .t:-;

r
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the Erxl User'smobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
stnjcture the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via v^retess devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

ni. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this>
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in wtiatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required ^ law or permitted
under this Contract. Jo this end, the parties must; '

A. Retention

'1. . The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process, data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

. States. This physical location requirement stiall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, doud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security morxtoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential infoimation for contractor provided.systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protectirig Department confidentidi information.

.4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
.  in. a secure location and Identified in section iV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be' in a.
■  FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
'  regulations regardirrg the privacy and security. AD servers and devices rnust have

currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
^  hacker^ anthspam. aritHspyware, and antknalware utilities. The environment, as .a

;^,--si-?6 .V5. U»tMpO«t© I0«9n8.
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusiorwletection and fir^ali protection.
6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Itsf complete cooperation with the Slate's

Chief Information Officer In the detection of any seurity vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

^  1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (w its
.  ' ■ sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for

securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination;' and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcoritractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
reco\^ operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion' and media
sanrtizatlon, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for. exampte,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitizalion, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certlification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necess^ to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jotntly :
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otheiwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data usir^g a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified,, within th'irty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to .completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also Imown as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY .

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received, undier this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows: • •

1. The Contractor will mamlaln proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the deGvery

...w. . - - of contracted services. .3 1 .

-rr • - - 2. rThe ContractOT will , maintain policies and procedures to protect Department - -
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle^ where applicable, (from

.  , creation, tr3nsformation..;.use. ̂ storage and secure destnjcUon) regardless of tlw '- -i
:  mediauMdtostofe.thedata(i.e.. tape,di^,paper,etc;). .

•>; -
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3. The Contractor wilt maintain ap^ppriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems ar>d/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department conftdential information.

6. If the Contractor will be subcontracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor v^ll work wth the Department to sign and comply with alt applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access foms. and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreemients wBI be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sut>-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintainir^ compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabifities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor er^agerhent. The survey win be completed

' annually, or an alternate.time frame at the Departn>ents discretion with iagreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed* when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

I

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New.Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from* the Information Security Office

.  . leadership member within the Department. - ;

V --ii-.c-. ~r.-ssz

'~-zzrcVj.
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II. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, prornptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. -

-5v_Xjhe State shall recover frprn the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from:..^::.f^H
•M
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the breach. Inctudlr^ but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center senrices necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply vrith all appbcable statutes ar^ regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is r>ot less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, induding,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
PrivacyAct Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPM Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State 1^.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. the safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is rv>t less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Irrformation Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doil/vendor/trKlex.htm
for the Departmerit of Information Technology poljcies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy, Officer and the
State's Security Officer, of any security breach immediately, at.the email addresses
provided In S^on Vt. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their offidal duties In connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: :

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section. IV . A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. - safeguard this information at all tirnes.
,  # . •

c. ensure that laptops and other, electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PR are encrypted ^d password-prdtected. ~ •

d. send emails containing Ccmftdentia! Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to.
receive such information. , . .

• u. . i \ ^ .
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.  e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Inforrhation to the extent permitted by law.
f. Conndehtlal Information received under this Contract arvf indlviduany

identifiable data derh/^ from OHHS Data., must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized Er>d Users may transmit the Confidential Data. ir>cluding any
derivative files containing personally identlftable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV ^bove.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used arKl
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the drcumstarwes Involved.

I. • understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential irdormation secure.'
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to' monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirementis provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents arxJ Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

I

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handlir>g and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures rnust also address how the Contractor wilh ,

,  1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine If personally Identifiable information is involved In Incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; .

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based.responses to Incidents; and

^'y 'v;-Vv~V;|v'-.'Sv Etfiibil K -V ' ' Y
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
^ach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and t)ear.co$t$ associated with the Breach notice as well as any mKigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate pr must be addressed and * reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-0:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer

DHHSPrivacyOfricer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformatior>Security6ffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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